STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
TUESDAY, JUNE 16T, 2015 10:00 A.M.
DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN ' DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN

VICE-CHAIRMAN

JACK MCGUFFEY | VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners
for the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey
County Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and
during this meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted
agenda.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for June 16, 2015
4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for June 1, 2015

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

5. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 06/05/15 $112,381.28, $429,879.52 and
$50,541.64. Accounts payable checks date 05/29/15 for $311,876.18, $14,463.50 and $7,635.80.

1




6.

7.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

For possible action approval of May 2015 Treasurer Report.

For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:
A. HARDSCAPES, INC. - Contractor / 950 Dartmouth Drive ~ Reno (paver installation)
B. ACE GRADING & PAVING - Contractor /.6015 S. Virginia St., ~ Reno (asphalt paving)
C. AJELECTRIC, LLC - Contractor / 3659 Crestridge Way ~ Reno (electrical contractor)
D. ARROW SIGN COMPANY - Contractor / 1051 46th Avenue ~ Oakland, CA (sign contractor)

- END OF CONSENT AGENDA

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the Governmental Services Agreement for Storey
County Economic Diversification District No. 1 between Storey County, Storey County Fire
Protection District and Tesla. - - '

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve second reading of Ordinance 15-263 adding
section 3.50.200 to the Storey County Code providing for a pilot project for granting partial
abatements of permitting fees to participants in a qualified project in Economic Diversification
District No. 1 and providing for other properly related matters.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Presentation from the Nevada Department of
Transportation to discuss Storey County’s Work Program. (This item will be heard at 11:00am)

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action ~ No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #15-428 Authorizing transfer of
funds to the Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association for crack-sealing of
Cartwright Road.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve bid award to low bidder Sierra Nevada
Construction Inc. in the amount of $1,044,830.00 for Public Works Project No. ST-2015-181; Cape
Seal Project on approximately 12.31 miles of selected roads and streets in Storey County.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve a License for use of County Property between the
County of Storey (County), a political subdivision of the State of Nevada and Mark Twain
Community Center (MTCC), a Nevada non-profit corporation.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve and authorize the chairman to sign the contract
between Storey County and the State of Nevada, State Public Works Division of the Department
of Administration to continue to provide water service from the Marlette system.

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:  Approve second reading of business license for

Montgomery Turner, CCW Instructor/Personal Defense.




18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #15-423, Augmentation of the
Tech Fund.

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #15-424, Augmentation of the
Justice Court Fund.

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #15-425, Augmentation of the
Park Fund.

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #15-426, Augmentation of the
Virginia City Tourism Commission Fund.

22, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #15-427, Augmentation of the
General Fund.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD

23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of transfer of appropriations, Virginia Divide
Sewer, per NRS 354.598005.

ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD

24. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of transfer of appropriations, Fire Protection
District 474, per NRS 354.598005

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

25. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of transfer of appropriations, General Fund, per
INRS 354.598005.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
26. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

A. SOLAR CITY CORPORATION - Contractor / 3055 Clearview Way ~ San Mateo, CA (solar
install.)
TESLA MOTORS, INC. - General / Gigafactory Electric Avenue (manufacturing) TRI
SEQUEL ELECTRICAL SUPPLY, LLC - 1425 4t Street ~ Meridian, MS (electrical contractor)
EDWARDS ELECTRIC SERVICE, LLC - 6222 St. Louis Street ~ Meridian, MS (electrical
contractor)
SMITH STORAGE SYSTEMS - 18875 Mesquite Avenue ~ Reno (racking installer)
STEPHON'S MOBILE BISTRO - General / 1810 Andesite Avenue ~ Reno (food truck)
IONIX, LLC -~ General / 3033 Waltham Way, Unit 5 (metal fabrication) location change TRI
RICH DOSS, INC. ~ General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

INw

=0

27. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
28. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:




* Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

e Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

e Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

e Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

e Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before June 9, 2015; Virginia City
Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands Fire
Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

Vanessa Stephens Cl ¢ rk—Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min,

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for June 1, 2015

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.

5. Supporting materials: Aitached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
County Manager QOther agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

L

Agenda Item No. A{,




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
MONDAY, JUNE 1°7, 2015 10:00 A.M.
DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
MINUTES

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN

VICE-CHAIRMAN

JACK MCGUFFEY | - VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER - CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, County Manager Pat Whitten, District
Attorney Anne Langer, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Public
Works Director Mike Nevin, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Administrative Officer/Senior Planner Austin
Osborne and Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis.

Absent: Commissioner Jack McGuffey

1. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for June 1, 2015

County Manager Pat Whitten requested continuance of Items 9 and 10 to June 16, 2015, public
comment will be accepted today. Mr. Whitten also requested Item 16 be continued to June 16, 2015,
and Items 21 and 22 to August 4, 2015.

Motion: Approve Agenda with continuation of Items 9, 10 and 16 to June 16, 2015, and Items 21 and
22 to August4, 2015, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Chair

McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for May 5, 2015




Motion: Approval of Minutes for May 5, 2015, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,
Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for May 18, 2015

Motion: Approval of Minutes for May 18, 2015, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,
Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

CONSENT AGENDA

6. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 05/22/15 $311,350.23 and Accounts payable
checks date 05/15/15 for $394,641.84 and $2,515.52.

7. For possible action approval of Montgomery Turner, Personal Defense, requesting a business
license for CCW Instructor in Storey County.

8. For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

a. SOLAR CITY CORPORATION - Contractor / 3055 Clearview Way, San Mateo, CA (solar

install)

b. TESLA MOTORS, INC. - General / Gigafactory Electric Avenue (manufacturing) TRI
SEQUEL ELECTRICAL SUPPLY, LLC - 1425 4th Street, Meridian, MS (electrical contractor)
d. EDWARDS ELECTRIC SUPPLY, LLC - 6222 St. Louis Street, Meridian, MS (electrical

contractor)

e. SMITH STORAGE SYSTEMS - 18875 Mesquite Avenue, Reno (racking installer)

g

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approval of Consent Agenda, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,
Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the Governmental Services Agreement for Storey
County Economic Diversification District No. 1 between Storey County, Storey County Fire
Protection District and Tesla. Continued to June 16, 2015 at 10:00 a.m.,

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve second reading of Ordinance 15-263 adding
section 3.50.200 to the Storey County Code providing for a pilot project for granting partial
abatements of permitting fees to participants in a qualified project in Economic Diversification
District No. 1 and providing for other properly related matters.

Continued to June 16, 2015 at 10:00 a.m

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of renewal proposal from Nevada Public
Agency Insurance (POOL) and approval for payment from fiscal year 2015-2016 funds.

Carol Ingalls with Ingalls & Associates and Doug Smith with Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool
presented this item.




Ms. Ingalls explained because of the stability of the insurance rates and program, this year’s
renewal is almost flat, with a 2% decrease in premiums. Coverage has increased a small amount
with more flood and earthquake coverage. This applies to the entire program. There is a slim
chance that all participants would need flood or earthquake coverage at the same time.

Mr. Davis said the County’s support and involvement with the Nevada Public Agency Insurance
Pool is appreciated. Grant facilities will be expanded this year, aimed at risk management issues
and anything related to training,

County Manager Whitten stated he is honored to work with this group for many years. They get
better every year. '

Motion: Approve renewal proposal from Nevada Public Agency Insurance (POOL) and payment
from fiscal year 2015-2016 funds. Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by:
Chair McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

12, DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Shaun Griffin, Community Chest:
e The library is moving forward to obtain formal approval of a five-year plan from the
State Library. A letter of support needs to be signed by the Commissioners.
¢ The five-year plan includes the following goals:
o Achieve a high level of public awareness and visibility;

Explore collaborative opportunities and community connections;

Provide relevant/current collection in both print and digital formats;

Develop and implement programs and services that support the citizens;

Establish and maintain sustainable funding;

Regain legal public library status;

o Improve and increase all levels of types of services.

» With the five-year plan, the library can obtain collection development funds, obligated
by tax payers to every county.

* An advisory board has been established to develop the plan.

* The plan must be submitted by July 1st.

* During the last year, over 450 people used the library. The library is located in 3 sites
throughout the County.

»  Mr. Griffin will be meeting to discuss the Health Services contract for the coming year.

» Health Services is searching for a nurse to do out-reach in Lockwood.

» A nurse is still needed to do primary care. Currently there is a nurse doing pediatric
well-baby checks and a nurse who does women's health. If a primary care nurse is
unavailable through the offices of the two nurses mentioned, negotiations will have to

* be made through another health care provider. There is an issue with the liability required.

o 0O 0 Q¢ O

Mike Nevin, Public Works Director:
e Mr. Nevin and Mr. Whitten met with other entities to pursue additional funding for
wastewater and other water projects.




Meeting one was with NDOT to see if they would assist the County in removal of some of
the NDOT storm drains on the south end of C Street. It appears the County will enter into
a partnership with NDOT for at least 50% of the funding to accomplish this task.

The second meeting was with BLM and USDA relative to water projects. Specifically,
needed easements and changes in right-of-way from the Five Mile Reservoir into Virginia
City. This meeting went well.

Next week hopefully a meeting will be held with Federal officials who control funding on
water and wastewater.

Last week bids were opened for the slurry and pave/seal County-wide project. Funding
has been set aside for the next fiscal year for this project.

Swimming pool opens Sunday, June 14,

The property purchased by the County north of the swimming pool has been made
graded providing additional parking for the pool

Mr. Nevin is working with Mr. Whitten and Mr. Osborne on plans for the courthouse
parking Iot.

Temporary/seasonal workers started today.

The Marlette system will be shut down on Wednesday for one day. There should be no
problems as the Five Mile Reservoir is kept topped-off.

Hugh Gallagher, Comptroller:

At a recent V&T Rail Commission meetmg, Jack McGuffey was selected as the
Commission Vice-Chair.

The Rail Commission approved a $100,000 check to Storey County for payment that was
due.

In the next month or so, the audit will proceed so it can be determined if there are any
additional amounts owed.

This should help in reaching a resolution of this matter. After that, another interlocal
agreement with the Rail Commission may be proposed.

Gerald Antinoro, Sheriff:

The Bureau of Indian Affairs has made adjustments to the contract regarding the housing
of tribal inmates. The contract is being reviewed by the District Attorney’s office.

If there are no problems, hopefully the contact will move forward.

The annual Senior Awareness Program will be held later this month.

This Friday members of the Sheriff’s Office will be running the Special Olympics torch
through Virginia City on its way to the opening ceremonies in Reno that evening.

Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer/Senior Planner:

There will be a grand opening / ribbon cutting on State Route 342 tomorrow at 11 am,
commemorating the new alignment of the road.

Comstock Mining has already begun Phase 2 of the realignment of SR 342. Completion
date is anticipated to be December 16, Plans have been submitted.

In order to cut costs on the Courthouse parking lot, thank you to Mike Nevin for stepping
up and having Public Works crews do a lot of the work. This would include some
landscaping and maybe paving and base.




* The next Planning Commission meeting will be held June 18t at 6PM at the Mark Twain
Community Center. A master plan workshop will be held.

» At the last Planning Commission, a discussion was held regarding the County-wide sign
ordinance. Some adjustments should be made between the County’s ordinances and the
those of the Comstock Historic District.

e Mr. Osborne is still working with Congressman Amodei’s staff and John Porter’s office on
the Land'’s Bill to clarify language on how to transfer those lands from the BLM to Storey
County, and from Storey County to the respective property owners.

Pat Whitten, County Manager:
* Saturday, June 6% at 10 am, the annual 10 acre meeting will be held at the Highlands Fire
Station. Key elected officials are invited to attend.

13. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
None

14. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Discussion and direction to staff
regarding legislation or legislative issues proposed by legislators or by other entities permitted by the
Nevada State Legislature to submit bill draft requests, or such legislative issues as may be deemed by
the Chairman or the Board to be of critical significance to Storey County.

County Manager Pat Whitten reported the Governor’s Budget passed the Assembly and it should
pass the Senate. A lot of good legislation has been killed, including possibly a collective bargaining
bill. SB111 was amended to only affect the Nevada Highway Patrol. Elected officials salary bill is
currently in conference committee and hopefully will pass.

Two bills being watched by the County including an entertainment tax bill, which could have impact
on many of the County’s venues.

SB170, the Switch Data Center Bill, has passed both Assembly and Senate.

15. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Discussion and direction to staff
regarding the request to the Federal Government for an additional zip code in Storey County
specifically for the McCarran portion of the County.

Pat Whitten said he has been requested by the Las Vegas Postal system to write a letter to the
Director of the Nevada - Las Vegas Post Office, requesting consideration of an additional zip code.
Approval is not expected as the Post Office would only approve this request if it were to help
efficiencies in the postal system. Congressman Amodei will assist the County with this request.

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve a License for use of County Property between the
County of Storey (County), a political subdivision of the State of Nevada and Mark Twain
Community Center (MTCC), a Nevada non-profit corporation. Continued to June 16, 2015 at
10:00am.




17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve and authorize the chairman to sign the contract
between Storey County and the State of Nevada, State Public Works Division of the Department of
Administration to continue to provide water service from the Marlette system.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis stated this is a proposed agreement with the State of Nevada
to continue the water supply service from the Marlette system. Past agreements have been for ten
years, this agreement will be perpetual, subject to certain termination provisions. Mr. Loomis
reviewed changes made to the agreement.

Mr. Loomis indicated the agreement has been reviewed by Mike Nevin, Public Works Director, who
feels this is a good agreement.

Vice-Chairman Gilman asked if there was any consideration given to re-visiting the pricing or cost of
a cap system that doesn’t allow open-ended adjustment. Mr. Loomis indicated this is not in the
present agreement. Currently the price is going to be 75 cents per 1,000 gallons, beginning July 1,
2015. This amounts to approximately $351 per year for the amount to be delivered. The State bought
all of the water-rights through the Franktown Decree.

Mike Nevin reviewed the Franktown Decree. All water above the Hobart Creek Dam is Marlette
System water. Below that point, it’s Franktown ranch water. The State realizes that this water is the
sole source for our area. After research, the connection has been determined to be in the middle of
the 395 freeway as opposed to the east side of the freeway. Mr. Nevin explained the system. Mr.
Nevin continued that this agreement addresses bond obligations previously issued by the State for
major improvements to the system.

Mr. Whitten said the increase is related to extensive work being done on the east-slope catchments
which has significantly increased the yield into the systems.

Vice Chair Gilman requested a continuance of this item to allow time to review the agreement.

Virginia Highlands Resident, Nicole Barde: What are the uses for the water in this agreement is it
limited to the County?

Mr. Whitten answered it is limited to what is defined in the Franktown Decree. Generally, this is
Virginia City, Gold Hill, and Silver City - this is Virginia City’s water source. The possibly of
conveying water to the Highlands has been explored, however that is outside the definitions of the
decree. You would have to go back to court to have this adjusted.

Ms. Barde: Is anything short of piping the water allowable?

Mr. Whitten said use of the water trucks is something that just happens, but the answer would be no.

Motion: Continue item 17 to the June 16, 2015 meeting, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair
Gilman, Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING




18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit 2015-009, by Sean Thomas Murray and
Ann Marie Aragon Murray. The applicants are requesting a SUP for a short-term vacation rental
(less than 30-day rental) for an existing single-family residence located at 275 East Union Street (R1
Single-Family Residential Zone) in Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 001-246-08).

No action, application withdrawn by the applicants.

County Manager Whitten said the applicants are a class-act. It is an incredible testimony to the
applicant’s record that they engaged and talked with neighbors regarding this request. Should the
applicants decide to take this in a different direction, Mr. Whitten will be their advocate. Every class
quality lodging facility in this area is needed.

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2015-014, by Loren Purcel. The applicant is
requesting a sign variance for The Red Dog Saloon located at 76 North C Street in Virginia City,
Storey County, Nevada (APN 001-084-09). The applicant requests a variance for the purpose of
changing the allowed width, length, and shape of a sign which will be attached to the porch of the
business and allowing a painted sign on the north side of the building.

Senior Planner Austin Osborne reviewed this item. Two variances are being requested by applicant
for new signs to be placed on the Red Dog Saloon building. A variance is required for a new sign on
the front of the building as the sign being requested does not meet the width and height
requirements. Applicants are requesting a similar sign on the north facing wall which also requires a
variance. Staff is recommending approval of this item while realizing there are some challenges with
the current zoning ordinance. However, it is believed that the signs will contribute to economic
development in creating an atmosphere for fun in Virginia City.

Mr. Osborne indicated that the Planning Commission requested this item be presented to the Historic
District. ~The Historic District has reviewed the application and provided a Certificate of
Authenticity, agreeing that the signs are appropriate for the District’s regulations. The County’s
Master Plan states if there is a mis-match between County ordinances and the Historic District, the
two entities get together to obtain a unified approach.

Mr. Osborne read the Findings:

6.1 The Findings listed in this subsection are the minimum to be cited in an approval or approval
with conditions. The following Findings are evident with regard to the requested Variance when the
recommended conditions in Section 7 are applied. At a minimum, an approval or conditional
approval must be based on the following Findings:

6.1.1. There are special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including the configuration
of the building and the location of the saloon and restaurant therein. Therefore, the strict application
of the zoning ordinance deprives the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the
vicinity or under identical zone classification.

6.1.2 That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial
property rights of the applicant (property owner).




6.1.3 That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in the
neighborhood of the subject property and will not materially be detrimental to the public welfare or
materially injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property.

6.1.4 The proposed Variance is in compliance with the purpose and intent of Federal, Nevada State,
and Storey County regulations including, but not limited to, SCC 17.84 Signs and Billboards, and
NRS 384 as determined by the Comstock Historical District Commission.

6.1.5 The proposed Variance is in compliance with and supports the goals, objectives and
recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the Planning Commission, the
findings under Section 6.1 of the Staff Report and other Findings deemed appropriate by the Board,
and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, I, Lance Gilman, hereby recommend approval
for Variance Number 2015-014 for the installation of a sign which will be attached to the porch of the
subject property and facing C Street and a painted sign on the side (north) of the subject property
located at 76 North C Street, Virginia City, Nevada (APN: Q01-084-09) Moved by: Vice Chair
Gilman, Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2015-012. By Jennifer Barnes. The applicant is
requesting a sign variance for the Mustang Ranch Steakhouse at 5 North C Street in Virginia City,
Storey County, Nevada (APN: 001-086-01). The applicant requests variances to the provisions of SCC
17.84 (ordinance regulating signs and billboards) for the following purposes: (1) to allow a sign to be
more than 15 inches in width (height) which will be attached above the porch facing C Street of the
subject property; (2) to allow a sign attached to the end of the porch facing Union Street (south) of the
subject property, and allow more than 15 inches in width (height) of that porch-end sign; and (3) to
allow a back-lighted “Open” sign to be installed inside of a window abutting Union Street but facing
C Street (west) of the subject property. Continue item until July 7, 2015, board meeting.

Austin Osborne advised that the Planning Commission will be hearing this item at a later date.

Motion: Continue item 17 to the July 7, 2015 meeting Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair
Gilman, Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve first reading of ordinance 15-264 an application
No. 2014-020 (Continued from 12/02/14) by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to amend the
text of Storey County Code Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) by adding Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial-
Commercial Zone. The intent of the proposed I-C Zone is to provide for certain mixed-use industrial
and commercial uses where found appropriate by the board with recommendation by the Planning
Commission. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and the draft zone text
may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org.
Continue item until August 4, 2015, board meeting.

22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Application No. 2014-021 (Continued from 12/02/14
meeting) by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC., and Storey County on behalf of The Nature
Conservancy, LLC and the Union Pacific Railroad Company to amend the Official Storey County

8




Zoning Map. The amendments will apply regulatory zones to approximately 600 acres of land
located in McCarran, Nevada (river District near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) which was in
July of 2014 transferred from Washoe County to Storey County by mean of boundary line
adjustment. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and maps may be
obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org. Continue
item until August 4, 2015, board meeting,

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
23. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
a. WORLD SOURCE INTEGRATION, INC - Contractor / 1201 North Raddant Rd ~ Batavia, IL

(equipment supply)

b. PEDRO & MARIA BECERRA TORRES - General / 26 E Prater ~ Sparks (handyman &
cleaning)

¢. GERHARDT & BERRY CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 2134 Kleppe Lane ~ Sparks
(engineering)

STEPHON’S MOBILE BISTRO - General / 1810 Andesite Avenue ~ Reno (food truck)

LEE JOSEPH, INC. - Contractor / 864 South Wells Avenue ~ Reno (pool repairs)

PWS SIERRA CATERING CO., LLC - General / 840 Washington Street ~ Reno (food truck)
CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 5290 Orcutt Rd ~ San Luis Obispo, CA (contractor)
NOTHING BUT SKULLS VIRGINIA CITY NV - General / 11 North C Street (Retail Sales)VC
IONIX, LLC - General / 3033 Waltham Way, Unit 5 (metal fabrication) location change TRI
RICH DOSS, INC. - General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation)

TRz e

Senior Planner Austin Osborne, on behalf of the Business License Division, recommends approval of
itemsa., b, c, e, f, g,and h, and to continue items d., i., and j.

Motion: Approveitemsa., b, c, e, f, g, andh. Acton: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,
Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

Motion: Continue items d.,i.,, andj. Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded
by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

24, PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

County Manager Pat Whitten said word has just come in that the Governor’s Tax Bill has cleared the
Senate and will now move to the Governor for approval.

25. ADJOURNMENT at 11:08AM

Respectfully submitted,

Vanessa Stephens Clel k-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: (0 min

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 06/05/15 $112,381.28,
$429,879.52 and $50,541.64. Accounts payable checks date 05/29/15 for $311,876.18,
$14,463.50 and $7,635.80.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted.
3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA __NA_ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_District Attorney

3. Reviewed by:
B Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

w( founty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action: :
[l Approved [
| Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[T | S

Agenda Item No. Fy .




TYNIJ
g

afed

ATANSVIHUL

AATTOELANOD
HINQISSIWNOD HIANQISSTWWOD NYWHIVHD
PBIBUQTES TWMMOD JO DpIBCH Ajunon Asiz0ig syn Ag paaoaddy
ZS5'6LB'62F i pasINgsTg
F9°L96 LT X010Npag ¢3 Jajsuell I9sn
05'260°L 127174 deg ITQ wo pasgx spad ssiorduy
09°505°9%2 t31sodag 308174 sodordum
2 eI0'1 EYoaUD ssfordug
SL'ZBT 0T tsyaay) aojonpag
19°8TT'€S 'S4IAd I0F I9ISURAL I9BN
Junowy aadea # peqa
/# duz
B L % § % £ 2 1 :sdnoas T10xAeg
ST/TE/S0 i93eq pua-potiad ST/50/90 :93eq Y28uD Teinbay adil Troades

az18Tboy NosyD
WALSAS TIOUAYd ALNAOD ATUOLS

T30

T¥30L
T¥I10L
T®301L
T=30L
Te3oL

1230

# aa
/ARaUD

PEIZEIST ST/£0/90 ‘tung
¥0T150da :3dsy



UTHNSVIUL

AATTOYLAWOD

YINOISSIWHOD TANOISS ITHHWOD

NMYIWEIYHD

8L TELTTIT

Q0

Junowy

ST/£0/90 i@3eg xosun

IYNIL 1399169 yosun
T abeq WALSAS TIOMAYA ALNNOD AITNOLS

PEISUCTERTUWOD JO PIROY AJUncs A21035 aUl Ag poaoxddy

1§YDIYD Jojonpag Te3cl

184143 1C3 J2FSURLL J9s Tel0L

xo30mpag

sakeg ¢ peg
/# dug

iaddl rroxdeg

LSILSHPT ST/E0/90
ZOTs0Hd

# qg
IR i)

tuny
i3dsyg




HIANSVIRL

FITICULIWOD

UENCISSIWNWNGCD

MHENCISS INHNOD NYHITIYHD

— 1

PEASUOTESTWNOD 10 preog Ajuno) Aexojs syl Aq panrczddy

TYNIg
Z

abea

r9 1¥5'0S SYDAYD I0ALNPRd TeIoL
on- P8ALAE JA0T IsFSURII IISN TEIOL
Juneouy saheg # pag # ag

ST/ED/90 :23»a X22yd

Ia351hay yosy)
WALSAS TTOUAYd XINOC) ATYOLS

/# Gug  /yosyn

acannp=a :adAl proxded

0€:Z0:ST ST/€0/90 ‘unyg
¥oTg0ua 3dey




T0°0% 8T0EL ST/6T/S a¥dI ¥OE WINQ TIID

2008 180€L  ST/62/S avd: 11
0T %9 OTOEL  ST/6Z/S T0000-L998302%2
£0° 08T 690¢L  ST/6T/S SaYEr d4/JETHD 9Z6VTISSVLE
T0°0% 630EL st/6g/s avdl D9 ZEOEISSHLE
8Z°9¥2 £00€4 ST/8E/S a¥d:i TOO60-TR0ESZZLL
20702 £00EL ST/6E/S Lvd
T0' 0% £00EL sT/62/s A¥dI TOQUC-TSDEDZZLL
T0° 0¥ BLOEL  ST/6ET/S IAIM EVH 660T9TSPLE ANI
JIHSYENLYVE 0DTTED £BEES
ET'6%6°2 5% 019 SEEEL  S1/8Z/5 150d-HOA
89'BEE'T sgeTL  §1/6Z/S 790 ¥ INN-Md
ONI 0D TIO AITIVA NOSYYD [4:F44]
SL°29 S.L°29 LLEEL  ST/6%/S YAMOW MT
SHNIONE TIVWS NOSWYD 18228
8T 8G€ B6' 8% §L6EL  ST/6Z/S HSYM ¥Y¥D-dOHS
65" %1 BLEEL ST/62/% LIASYD XY £0685Md
6% TT 9LETL SI/62/S ¥ALTIL HD0LS
8T1'6 8L6gL  $s1/62/S LY¥E BOID QOOH-€068SMd
68" %1 8L6EL  ST/6Z/S YILTIA-MO0LE
69° %1 8L6gL  ST/6Z/S LHASYD LSAYHXI-£0685Md
867021 gL6EL  SI/62/S LINTAIM "YLNCD YE-29¥B8TSUd
86°L9 8L6zL  $T/6Z/S LMOddNS IEIT-TT9TSHL
FE'SE 866TL  ST/62/§ SYALITII-ADOLS
5 SL¥Yd OLAY ALID TYLIAYD 08ZZB
057 9T€ 08°L0¢€ t€0EL  ST/6Z/S . ST0Z ‘0Z+-L AWW
0086 TE0EL  ST/62/S
SIMET LIODS ‘TIZv¥dng 6LTZ8
00" P8E 00788 PZOLL  ST/6E/S ¥Ivday 0Iavy
0021 PZOEL ST/68/S AIVEHY OIavy
00" %82 YZOLL S1/6%/5 dIVdEY OIAVH
SHSIYdHALING XydEd 8LZZH
00'08T 0008t 6Z0€L st/ee/s ST0Z ‘02-L AVH
HYYOHEId "yYIaN=d LLTZ8
L' 0Z ¥L0Z 600EL ST/6E/S 10000~EESPIBEE
' : IANAS FONZUIANODETHY LBLvY 9LZEZ8
06°LE 0S°LE LG0EL  §T/8E/S ) Sa¥dl ¥Od IENWIALNI
DTT II ALITIEOW LRIV TR 44:]
0Z'S¢€ 0z’ 5t EB6CL S1/62/% HOLIMS 4-¥IH AYE WS-2'LS
ONI ONLLO"EINISIO WISY YLTTR
00" 005°80T 00" DDS‘BOT SBOEL  ST/6ZT/S aNNAZ¥ F3d LIWNEZd
. dno¥d HOYORY €LEES
€6 655 £6'655 S30EL  ST/6E/S SLIM aI GIIHD
. ONT HWIL 27ddY ZLTES
T 99T DB'9E 9L6ZL  §1/6E8/% HO
&L08 SLETL ST/6E/S JOHS
69°'5% SLEEL  ST/6Z/S dOHS
2501 890€L  §T/6ZT/S . AYANOVT TL LIS
LL'g 890EL  ST/62/5S AMANOY'T 2L IS
¥8°ET B90EL ST/62/5 AUANOYT TL IS
DNI 00TV R A4:]
96" €ST 96" €8T §00EL  ST/6Z/S INZY TIIUVE % HLIYONOD
SINEY ¥VYIE TIV 0LZES
00'C¥S‘E 00 0%S'T 0TOEL  ST/6Z/S . Aoddng ATHINOW
00 000’e 0T0EL  §T/62/S SINIHIDNYHNT
L DNI SWHLSAS YIVd qIINTAQY 69ZE8
TYLOL LHNOWY HSNTHL qIvd # 0/4 NOILAIYDSEd IITOANT HOaNEA HAGHAN
ADHED ’ ADFHD
51/62/5 WILSIDEY ADEHD ST/LE/S0 @ @3eq uny

T abeg ALNOOD AZY¥OLS STE1gd ‘oN Ixoday




[4

6T°'¥0S’'S
$S°E6

€T E6T"L
£ES°TEE
SL'EZ
00- 5L

0S"ZT0'L

S8 PLT

69881

00°008°T

0S'SLY

00° 022
D0'000'S

0066

Ly 0TE

CETETT
05°0gL

TYLOL
AOFHD

sbeg

6T F0S ‘S
526

ET EBT'T
£5°T6€
SL'SE
00°5L

00°5586°T
00°08s°2
0§ LLY'Z

S5°6T
Q€' S5T

¥C'e
0g'LS
SE'L
31T
0€'8T
¥T°S¥

00°008'T

1 34
S6'6%
56°6V
S6°6%
0666
S6°'5¢2
96" 6%
06°66

00°0EZ
00°000'S

00" 96
Qo' ¢

LB'EY
L8 E¥
L8EV
LB EY
L8 Y
L3 E%
S¢°LY

CETETIZ
T0°0%

INOCHY

080¢4L
(A4} ¥ A
¥862ZL
(4114
T00€EL
000EL

88624
886ZL
BB6CL

1i868CL
186¢L

6LE6EL
GLEZL
6LETL
6LETL
6L6TL
6LETL

LTOEL

SZ0¢L
980€L
SCoEL
CBOEL
£86Z4L
9S0¢4
0LOEL
QLOEL

£E0EL
Lo0gL

ZEDEL
CEOEL

QT0EL
aTOCL
0T0tL
0T0EL
0TOEL
0T0EL
oBg6eL

Ev0EL
[AN A

#ENTEL

St/6eT/s
ST/6Z/S
ST/6E/%
s1/62/%
ST1/62/5
ST/62/S

S1/62/5
ST/62/5
ST/62/S

ST/6T/S
ST/62/5

§T/62/5
StT/8z/%
ST/62/5
StT/6E/S
st/6z/s
ST/62/5

ST/82/S

S1/62/%
S1/62/5
ST/62/%
ST/62/5
51/62/5
S1/6E/%
SI/6E/S
ST/62/S

ST/6E/S
ST/6E/S

s1/6z/s
ST/6E/S

S1/62/5
ST/62/%
ST/62/%
s1/62/%
s1/62/g
st/ee/s
S1/62/%

st/ez/s
ST/88/%

arva

s1/ez/s

SEHOIAYHES FAIIVDILSIANI
NOIWE LNIWESVIddY

DEY ¥ TEA-MT

HDOLS -SIWTID OTAT
SEIUELLYE O -dOHS
TIDNOVE HOd YOTYI-F¥815ad

OE00¥d WELYM DA LBE-Z60FY
J3LQUE WEMIAS DA 968-Z60FY
LO¥d TNIS H4VD 888-TE0TY

"YBLYW NOLLYOI¥NI-Y 40 €
a0l LSFE-DA

O/¥ AYTEE-£T1ZZ908
dOSNAS -8¥ZT8PAIR
d¥5 TI0-£0685Md

BILTII SYD-$50T2Hd

/¥ EYIEN-EIZZ908

W3Y NES-8%E8¥ATd

ATHYHA JHY HIOD

HETO0D ¥ELYM TIVL

FONYHD ¥RLTLS

HITO0D YALYM OS

INEY OW NV IONVHD YELT1Id
INIVW YHLWM ANIEd -HD
AV TYLNIE YFTO0D ALYM
SHIWM L IS

HILYM 2L IS

ST0Z ‘02-L AWN

0S5 IV %TYMEAIS

STET "0Z-L ANH

8T/% HONVHD ZIvVd
8T/5 HDNVHD HIWQ

. 81/5 HONVHD FIva
87/5 EONYHD IIL¥QG
8T/S TONWHD EIVa
81/S HONVHD IIVa
SQIE-ro¥d IYAS F4Y¥D
LNAWHSINYYS ‘gaivda
HOOH

NOILdINISIC HDIQANI

YILSIDEE MDITHD
AINDOD REEOLS

YADNITYD

Y oJavndd ONIgqavo
THINYT ‘INOVYD

PTT ADYANT SHIXTI

ONI SUSIYIEAING NOSNHYII
ANYAWOD TYNILSYI

ONI S5YID Javd

DNRIHIENIONG LISEM dudd

SILOAA0Yd NOILYVOINHI DNIME

ONI AT4dNS OLOV ILOITNE

ONI 0D SNIOTOH WINI NDF

WHI Y50 SHOIVA
¥ OIAWID0 ‘YiISEWD

ONI SYINNOD

OTT TIIW aI0D AO0LSHOD

(DA) EIDINOYHD NDOLSHOD

AEN 30 ZOIANAS NOILDETIOD

HOONIA

ST/LE/S0

0QEZe
66ZZ8
8628
LezTE
L A4
S6zTH

¥6Z28

£6EE8

[A3AA4

16228

062%8

68228
88EZL8

LBEZZE

A

s82Z8

pazis

EAWON
ADIHD

ajeg unyg

STETEd !'ON Ixodey




. D17 SLNIAE HNTE AIO0IT 6TEZY

00°000'T 00°000'T 0F0EL  ST/6Z/S
T SINEAT ENTE AINDIT 8TET8
oproLe op'oLe ZE6TL ST/62/% HOLVYALO TOCd JY¥ED ‘SUDIH
ONI HAESOL HET LIEZ8
00°Z¥%E 00 TRE BEQEL  ST/6Z/S ANYSUIVA/THEHM DLY0/SELYD
' HIWWYL ¥ A¥dUYT ‘9EL8d7 9TEER
§5L°20T TR ELOEL ST/62/S QTITHS ¥HTONITH
SNOS ¥ SII¥ND N 1 STEER
00°629 007129 9€0EL  ST/6T/S ST0Z '0Z-L XYW
00°8 9E0EL S1/62/S
[ ¥ NYILSIYHO ‘¥ATHOIINA TIEZ8
L0 89¢ L0 89¢ 9T0EL S1/6¢/s .
NOSNHOCM ¥ Qy¥Maz Zognp £1EZ8
ZELBL'E 65708 066EL  ST/62/§ FATYA ENVAE-SLWYOd ZEId
8BS E0E 0662L  ST/6Z/5 . HETCOD-EANTH - £59Z9Md
-00°'898 066ZL ST/6T/§ LIQIYS FHOD-FOLMA
665t 066EL §1/62/9 DNIY ONINOVE -MONWIL HYLvM
9T 08T ' ¥ 066zL  sT/62/S ' LCNI TINI-T0LMA
o1 480 ZTEZY
£6'0T6 9T 6E8 ZI0EL ST/62/S TYMANGY FUNSSYady
LLTTL GEDEL S1/62/5 NOSEI¥ SITOAT
DTT ANNOS TLI 1TE28
92 90% 9Z'905 ZLETL  ST/6Z/S ATOSNOD NIY QE¥HS 2/T
NI L1OW O4NI NIVINAOW NOXI 0TEEZS
05°Z0¢ 00 02T SE0EL  4T/62/S ST/T/L - &v/eT/s
0s'g8 090€EL ST/6E/S LANYILNI 2&4 I8
ONI gNVEaYodd 1OdS JLOH 60€T8
80°€L8 26 68T LB6EL  ST/6Z/S SMTUDIS-5HIVLE 1§ D
58°L8T LB6TL  ST/62/S SIT "OUIANT ¥ ENIVG -D5MT
§9°9¢¢2 L86EL  S$T/6T/S "IWH YOOI NIHILIN-JS5DA
96765 LB6TL  ST/6Z/S TOULNGD aIM-ISMT
¥6°QET LBBZL  ST/6E/S NZHZIIN 'SIHOIT LIXA-D5DA
9L" 68 LBEZL ST/68/S LHOIT LIXH-HOD
HDIAYES IITEYD I048Q HWOH 80€e8
00 v8 00" %8 TEOEL sT/6g/s STOZ ‘02-L AWK
OHDE (H¥M HIL¥NOJ DIYOLSIH LDEZB
BL'EEE’T [-3 AN 1-1 CEGEL st1/6e/5 8ZTOTTT~TTLTIZT WIIJd-9WI
62 FFCT 0EQEL  ST/62/S 8L-04L ME DWI-WIIZ
ONIOVWIONDINW LYASdq HOIH S0EZS
Z¥ €99 ZP €99 ZLOEL 5T/62/S SEITI4NS SWE
NIZHDS ZYUNEH S0EER
208122 Zo-81z'e 89662L  ST/6Z/S dWd WOHA  ONIEAL-INTI ¥MS
QLT INIVW TIOVA XTddNs aGH voEZS
00" SBT 00°59 I86CTL St/62/S EDIANES ATUILEAYAD -D5MT
00759 TLOEL ST/62/S TOULNGD 1S3d Tt LS
00°59 TLOEL sT/6¢/S TOULNOD ISHd TL IS
SE4 ¥ HLIWYEL MISVd LYgys tDETH
0S'ESY’T 057 L0 £TOEL s1/62/5 S¥H S'ET
00" 0ES ETOEL ST/62/S S¥H ¢°%T
00 gzz ET0EL ST/6E/S BYH 0'5
| WOL ' ZYIESNWID ZOEER
91" Z£E 9T ZEE Z¥OEL  §1/6Z/S LNAWHSINEVD ' SANOTTY.LLVE
D XONYN ‘NYYD 10€28
0T"TZE 96" T6Y 6662L  ST/62/S SIAQTO WEHIVIT
vi-8e 6662L  ST/6E/S FIAOTD WHHIVET
TYLOL LNNOWY #SNVHYL ALY # ofd NOILAI¥NSAEd FITOANI JOaNIA FIFWON
ADEHD ' : ADEHD
St/62/5 HELSIOEY OTHD ST/LE/S0 ¢ ®38d uny

£ 9beg ALNQOD KAEOIS STETEd :ON 3zodsy




¥

00°5¢9'9E

YZ'BET

00 21T

8Z2°989'¢

857 CTE
LA

00’00t
2% 9EL
&6 PS¢
jls R A)

00" vIT’T

9T TT10'S
v0'0LE

00'LTIE'E

957 LIT 'L

Borooo’oT
15°52

Lg 0BT

00 Z8B BT

86 182 '1
95 SBE QT
00°S8T°T

AYLOL
AJEHD

afeg

00°5£9'vE

00" 0zE
¥Z 61T

00" 2L
00’ 0%

LB EBE T
IF 183

85'2T¢
PTTT

007 00¢€
9% 9ZL
66 ¥5E
00 0z9

Q0 FTE"T
007 00K
9E°TI0°%
v0'oLE
00°'50T
SL'a95¢E
ST PL0'T
00°28L
08766%°9
00°0ST
aL L3y
00°000°0T
15752
89°'LLY
£Z° 29
LOT¥

00 voL'E
00 8LT 92

861521
95 SRE'CT
00°58T°¢€

LNOOWY

6LOEL

SLOEL
SLOEL

gvoeL
gvoEL

966¢TL
S66EL

TL6TL
LEOEL
STOEL
g00€L
SL&TL
TBREL

PO0EL
POOEL

€662L
SvotL
PS0EL
re62L
¥s50el
PSO0EL
SE66EL
S66TL
SBETL
L¥0EL
TE6TL
610t
EB0EL
EBOEL

Le6eL
LG&TL

£20€L
SPOEL
T#OEL

HENTUL

ST/62/S

ST/6ET/S
ST/68/%

§1/62/5
S1/62/5

§1/6T/%
ST/6T/S

SI/6E/S
S1/62/s
ST/62/5
ST/62/9
S1/68/5
$1/62/9

§1/62/5
S1/62/5

§1/62/5
ST/62/%
ST/62/S
SI/6E/S
ST/62/9
S1/62/%
ST/62/8
5t/62/s
ST/6T/S
ST/62/5
st/6e/%
ST/6E/S
st/ee/s
s1/6e/s

S1/62/S
§t1/6T/9

ST/62/%

S1/62/S

§1/62/8
TIVA

# 0/a

LHBITI DHIULS STOZ
SEITIINE SWA
SEITAINS SWA

ST0T 'DE-L AVH

SHOOUE ~HEJHANS
WOOHE - YHdTIMS

H2TJ40 MHITD
S¥HQTOd FII4
JTS¥0004DFTHASYD
HOVERLNO TYNIZ DEAD

WANIAYD AIVDITEW HOUWH

LINEId dIMM
0€/9-T/L LIWMSd DYXdES HD

ESYHOUNG WALYM TI¥AY
INZWHSINUYD ‘NIVE0D
YAQTYIS 'IVINIG SIVANI
TYINEG TLYWNI aNI-STEE0Y
ENIEH0d ’TYINIA FLWHNI
(QETUS: TYINEG EIVHNI
$39Il -¥davoT ap
SHYIL-NONUL WHIVM
SHEYIL-£0685Md

. ONIINES SANNOYSEIVA
© ' SSENYVH-£1ZZ90S

SEITddNs

BOIAYES ¥X € WIJHEAEEL
IHOUW S3E¥NTIOS-S3¥ TIW 5

SYYNTUYH Dd AINIYH
NOISSINWOD X¥J ¥ALSXO
YIANIVLIY FHOO

NOILAIIOSEd FOIOANIT

ST1/628/9 HALSIDAY MDTHD

ELNOOD RIYOLS

I 0D HONVNIS TYNOISSEIOHEd

AALINCID I

ONI TOULNOD OISAHd

a OTESNY ' INIYIEd

SHTYE LNAWIINDT SHIMO

277 ‘LOdEA VIVA BELISJHEO
ONX L0dEQ EOIZA0

NINTIM ON¥ LAON

JASY ALNAC) TVENY YOYAEN
HEINID TYNCIDEY TVINY AEN

TISNNOD FATLVISIDAT AN

H10¥d LNIWNOYIANT AIQ AHN
FANNOED ¥ HAATY NIWAV AIN

SYOLOVA SSHANISNG TYNOILYN

OTT TYINId 58W

OLNHEWYIOYS 30 HUIJ NYOHOW
HILNOH MEHLIVW "T8C0H

00 ¥OLOW "HOH TIVHOIW

NI SNHOILOTOS FDIJI0 QYLIAW

NOTLYHOUIOD VHOTHW
ONI SIIHOIVYOHYT YW

DT SILNEAE 3NTE aINdIT

YOawaA

ST/L2/S0

Tveezs

0vETS

6EEER

BEECE

LETES
2Lceg
SEETY
pEEZS
TEETB
ZEEEZR

TEEze

oEgeEes
GZETE

8ZEge

LTEZE

ggezs
SZETB

vzezs

[ X444 ]

ZZETE
TZECe
ozeee
JHEWNN

ptelchte]
a3wd uny

STETEd ‘oM 3zodey




5

00'L9F

05°49s

£€70¢€
00" 2¢
0s'¢%

58°268°1

L5°820'ST

LOTEPE'9

ST 6ET

08'L96°7T

00°00€E’'€

65°9LS'E
9% Z6¥

TYLOL
ADIHO

abeg

00" Eve
00°'sZZ

00'08%
054
oo-og

£E€7 0L
00" z¢
05" E5

05 S9€°T
ST TLS
-00°FFV

L5'820'5¢

28709
PE 960’9
16" %8

¥9°¥%c
858"
96° %
65"
€L L
€L L
669
¥Z'8
4/
80" 9
&T°T
L0y
2v°8
1g’

Lo sg
[A-REAN
09
€9'¢
6C°F
g0
6%'0ST
2670971
TETEPT
€0'ETZ

00°008°T
00°00§'T

64'9L5'E
9% 26T

INDOWY

090€L
9LOEL

IS0EL
1508
TS0gL

LEDEL
9Z0EL
eF0EL

TooEL
Z00¢€L
Z00EL

880¢€L

PLEZL
VLETL
vLeCL

vLQEL
PTIOLL
PTOEL
PT0€L
¥10EL
PIOEL
¥TI0EL
PIOEL
YIQEL
PLOEL
PIOEL
PTIOEL
FIOEL
PTOEL
FI0EL
FPI0EL
TTI0EL
PTO0EL
TI0EL
FIOEL

890¢€L
S90€L
SS90€4L
850¢EL

€LETL
ELEEL

¥LOCL

rvotLl

#SNVIL

s1/6z/s
STI/6Z/S

st/6z/s
ST/62/5
ST/62/9

ST/62/5
S1/62/%
s1/62/5

sT/62/S
S1/6E/9
51/62/9

ST/6E/S

ST/6Z/S
ST/6Z/S
ST/62/S

ST/62/S
ST/62/S
S1/82/S
s1/62/5
ST/68/%
ST/68/S
S1/6C/S
ST/62/%
§1/62/8
ST/62/%
S1/62/5
ST/62/%
ST/62/S
S1/62/§
S1/62/5
ST/62/S
ST/62/%
S1/62/5
ST/6E/S
ST/62/5

SI/6E/S
SI/6E/S
S1/62/9
S1/6E/S

st/ez/s
sv/ec/s

st/e2/s
ST/62/S

TLYa

rodd OIdYd ETIE0M
OIOVY JTEHINYH

STI0Z ‘0Z-L AWW

NOHd SNOILVDILSHANI
SAEYD SN TEAVHNYA
ST0Z ‘02-L4 AWW

UOTHD ¥
EIYoIg 9'MOTD T
GNAJTY LISQ4Ed ZT

STO0E SHI¥AS SHOINYES

dor Z960-L¥8
SNOLLVOINNHHOD ~ZTHo~EsT
QLA 00SL-L98

DDA

ONINNYIA

LI

{DA) H¥ra
YINOISSIHWOD

¥aq

HOLYdSIA TYHINED
HOSSESSY

LNANEOTHATG RLINQKWWCD
(DA) EWIL

- QOOMADOT /g Id
NIWTY/JITTORLIANCD
JATEIHS

4ar

JATEITHS

SYMOM DITEnd

(DA) dA¥Id

YTAROIRY

bty

INEWdQTHANG ALINGWWOD

T0-5L9EN> WEHLLOTd SIH
LATELS O WHOD-YFIJOD
TO-SL9THNO HELLOTL SID
gdIdOD LI-L998L¥85LL LODY

STOZ AWW WYHDHOHd
STOT XV¥W

SEYIL BE Qvnds
LNTWHSINGYD ‘TIEHDILINW

NOILETHUDSHI HOIOANI

ST/6Z/S WILSIDAY NDEHD

ALHOGCD ANUOLS

OTT A1ddNS gL

ONI SNOIIWOINNWWOD ANNAS
SESTYAYHING AVId NS

d7 WOYLDEdS LNIYdS

¥HI 217 SETHLSNUNI ADITS

VHd TYNOILYN HLWLE WIATIS

ANYAWOD TYOIWEHD WIHIIS

OTT TIYHMOH INY NYWIHHS

ONI SIEDIAYES TYEQIS JdS

4T NI SEOIAYES TYHOTD DS

(¥d) ONI 0D NYDUOW AWY

ONI SHIDIALWYLS dvd

00 YIEINY I HAIL TIHDENG

HOANEA

ST/LE/S0 ¢

YSEZE

ESET8

ZGEUB

3124

osgee

6VEES

B¥eLs

LY¥EEZS

$vezTa

SpETe

vyees

Evees

[4 4243

HAFWAN
ADFHD

29ed unyg

STETHd (oN 3jzodey




9

BT 9LBITE
€8°2I1'1T
00° 09
T0'6%
£6°096'T

00'808'Y

009LT'T

I AR Y42
00°'sse‘e
80°9¢L°¢

86°LSY

S2720%

0008
81'ST

TYIOL
JADEED

@beg

TYLOL §ADIHD
S8 EIT'T
0005
T0'6¥
EE 096’1

00°999'¢
00°E2%T

00’8
0D %E0'T
00 %8
gz ' 1ew
co'gsez e
80'92L'¢E

867 LYT
00'oTZ

00" %€
S€° 89

00706
BT'ST

LNOOWY

SQ0EL
TE0EL
0T0EL
LOQEL

0LBZL
oLegL

¢50¢Ed
ZS0EL
250€eL
FE0EL
£90¢tL
650€L

XA T A
LLOEL

TT0LL
TI0EL

0ZogL
BEZOEL

HENWHL

S1/62/%
ST/62/5
st/ez/s
ST/68/S

St/§E/S
5T/62/5

ST1/62/%
S1/6e/S
S1/62/%
51/6T/S
ST/6E/S
51/62/9

sT/62/%
g1/6z/s

St/6g/5
ST/6E/S

ST/62/8
ST/62/%

ALY

# o/d

INIYW C¥ HD

qIv BmmH& HITYEH TYLNEN
AAEL C00d VAVAEN §T-L-9
STOEZ TI¥dY SIVHAW JTOOMIDOT

SEDIAY¥AS LSIAFEOT
SHHONNT

ST0T Q-4 AWM
LNEWAYAUIAO S0 aANNIRH
STHT '9 AWM-EEZ TINdY
mmvw¢m-BUUﬂ HEYIT YFIA0D

SEOAVY
KEHON ATAUVH

HOIARAS LETIIQL "IvD
SNDIS LIXH ¥0od SLIVE TIVL

NOILIIHDSIE TOIQANT

ST/6%/5 WHLSIDIY NDEHD

AINNOD XHYOLS

DNI EIS¥ONOD af
§9ITHCD ‘aooM
I¥d ‘NILLIHM

AYEE HOINHS ALNNOD ECHSWYM
SELYIDOSEY ¥ HIAATYM

SHI SUN0L ALID YINIDHIA

¥ AYIMIUE ALID VINIDYIA

0D H¥ FEIDNYL ¥ VINIDAIA

¥NIJ LNIRGINDE JWOONYE S0
OTT YaO9AdIN 40 ALIWHOEINA

ONI 'SXENINOC NOWWOONG

EHELVHYEHL

YOINFA

ST/LT/S0 ¢

93gTe
59€T8
rogLg

£9¢£28

TOEER

T9EEE

ogcee

69ETR

BSETE

LStz

95€Z8

SSEZ8

HIEWN
ADEHD

ageq uny

STETEd 'ON 33043y




YIANOISSTHWOD -

Stz g W

S1/62/9

ALYA AITHD 9L T1E TYLOL SAOEHD

NOILVZIYCOHLOY ANV MITIAFRY J0 LNENTDTITHONADY




YHANOTISSTHHOD

ALY¥a NOLIVZIYOHLOY ANV MAIATY 4O LNAWADIATMONADY

05 €9%'¥T TYIOL S®OEHD JHdAL
ST/62/S 05'€9%'%L ONI SHENNOD BSECS
0d008d LNAWIAOYANI t44 2 0S°€9%'%T G086 ST0Z
NOILJIIHISAQ #EOTCANT  EIVA  IYIOL LNDOWY AWYN JOANEA #IHOOEY BYEA UIEWON
MOHEHD  ADEHD TYOSId ¥OEHD
HELSIDEY SHOEHD UHIAL ST/62/50 ¢ 23w uny

abeq ALNNOD AH¥OLS 06ETHd :ON 3Jroday




1

08°5E9 "L

08°SE€9 'L

TYLOL
ayuyd

abegq

66'95¢
66" %1
86°61
ZE 10T
00901
9L TIST
8§ €8T
00°SL
00’09
00 SLE
0" SL
6095
86 €1
66'679
0070801
008
ET'LT
£8°89¢8
9191
8T EET
SL'OT
06" 8LT
00° 08T
T¥' 692
L6 €L
896
00°097
00°§TT
SE° 822
00°SZT
TT #8T'T
¥0°'09
8% T4
ag' 11
09'06T
00" 94T
$6°98
00" %9
ZLOPTT
00°6L
9125
00° 0L
5009
TZ°ST

LNNOWY

aiva

9%%T
2% %t
9veT
SPPT
SPPT
9%¥T
OLY
0Ly
OL¥
SYPL
CLY
697
0Ly
oLy
59%
S9%
oLy
89v%
S9%
S9%
5%
LI%
9IFHL
€LY
TLY
£LF
£Ly
£ELY
gLy
L%
LO9%
599
9%
TL¥
1Lw
vLv
LY
LY
oLy
L9%
99%
29%
Sy
$9%

A TTOILANOD

G Yy ¢

NOILVZI¥CHINY NV MITATZY J0 LNIWIDATTMONIOIY

SI/6E/S
ST/62/S
ST/62/S
ST/62/S
ST/6E/S
ST/82/%
ST/62/%
s1/62/%
S1/62/5
S1/62/%
§1/62/9
ST/6T/S
51/62/S
ST/62/S
ST1/62/%
ST/62/%
ST/8Z/S
ST/62/5
S1/62/5
ST/62/%
§1/62/5
ST/62/S
ST/6E/S
SI/6E/G
ST/62/5
st/ee/s
ST/62/5
ST/62/S
ST/62/%
S1/62/%
ST/6E/S
S1/62/5
s1/62/5
st/eT/s
ST/6E/S
ST/6E/G
S1/6e/s
ST/6Z/S
ST/62/5
ST/62/%
st/ez/s
§1/62/S
ST/62/%
ST/62/%

#SNTIL dLva

SQ¥YNS EATT SWECAINA
TEAYHNYA NOSYD

NOS¥D

HOEAIW/YLLEUNS

NOSYL

NOSYL

18a ARAHCD

dITIAEHS 18d

1S4 HSIWWOD

ONINIVIL QUWADIATT

180 LI

qood TIYD

SYILAYAY CIANY
HOLOELONS

FY EATLEEOW ANY MILLIHM
g2 ATNL ODYN SNI TIAVEL
ON HEAI¥/HAAY-Td GMOOT
QISUNEWIAY / DNIDACT
LATW ANISNODENS NOSYYD
6Z/8TEANNL TEIOH WHANOD
VHD HDIJ40 HO4 NOIHSOD
SHL74dNS HDIAIO

TIIH ANSIINA ONINITHL
ASNHAXE MCHS EQvdl
SMEIAMEINI €00 DA

WY¥d LODN

HALYM dOHS IAID DA

Wdd LODN

ONILNI¥d X100 30 HLP
dNOD AZd NODE ISOH dNn
SEIT4d0S ALEAYS
ST0Z/ET/S0

ST0Z/6T/S SYD

ASNIEXE DNILIFW
+LHOANCD WITEQ

JAVHEYd AYd TYIHOWEW
SEITJ4NS EIILA0

WOD " DANTILIFN

S8HIOV ALOWEM wqg
STYINALYW ONINIVIL
ANOHd HIITTALYS

WHWOD QOOMADOT~LENMALNT
HYL§ D S TLE - LANYHINT
dMIDYH FOJ auo) dAMOd

NHOILdI¥OS5RA

VELSIDIE O¥YD HSTHIHENd
ALNOQD RIVOLS

6BZTESEE

SELTEDESY

ST/TEZ/S

FFPELICT

ZSLLST

EFPLLST

TPLLESERT

ETE¥IBSET

ST6ETOTET

200 ¥0008ET
LEEOLLSLT

§69960

0TERLO

£60L00

STXATOL ODYN NELLIHM
ZNYITIV NELLIHM
A¥mMans

LElBegLY SHH

0T ANY ST HANYOES0
TENNNY WAHS INIOES0
NOLONITING INJIOHSO
YIHDON® EOJHA H2ILJ0
STO0Z'TZ AWK

S10WOUd IV ¥
H ONILSYOd FHL 0%
H DNILSY0d ZHL OS
NI¥NdS MOO¥ aF¥ NI
NOOTYS ASNOHAVII
AMES DNILNINA I¥d

ax
ax
ax
axi
ax
ax

ANOD 135 HHOWAVH
LOdEd HWOE HYOWAVH
S¥O MIVEAYH NYWIID
HIVD NEQTOD NYWTID

dSN0H DNILSYOH
9IY ¥iTaa

IAYES ELIS AELINQ
LOdEA HEOILLQ
DIA¥ES QES NIVHOQ

aa
ates
Mo
M
MD

XIELID

D¥I DOI ¥ATANYHD
LS0daYod -NIASN'D
IIY ~NIAFN'D

LIW -NIABN'D
NOZYWY ~NIAIN'D
INERAYE  qUYD IVIDWIWWOD INO STI1EMm

ff EDILOANMI

*TRIOL PIRD

LAHT-INOA

TOANTA

St/LE/50
IS0875H

£95

HIFWON
od

aned umy

oN 3xoday




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Treasurer Report for May 2015

2. Recommended motion: Approval of report as submitted

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Report is attached.
5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

VS Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
M Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e e

Agenda Item No. {O




00" o0g° 00- 00" oo” 00"

oo" oo” 00" oe" 00" 00"

00" oo- 00" [ oo 00"
-19°90T '92T 00" [N 06" 5o 89 EBL'T
-£8°0%T'L02 00” 1N 00" 00" [N
-007895EET T 00" [\ 90" (148 2301 1.1 (6 ZET 96
-56°0¥L’8TS o0° 60" SL°BY 99°055°52 60°£TT’¥9
-TE E69 BFT'T 00" 00" oo” 00" 00"
-£0°B1E 00" 0o- 0o° Lo 00T ©o00”
-25°L90'9ET 60" 00" - oa” 0o . §9°ZS¥ 'S5
-8B LOL'¥BI'Y 00" an” 00" 00" 00"
-95°65L ¥LT oo" Bl -8b° 9T op” [N

00" 00" 00" 0o° 00" 00"

-65" 897 0% oo- oo” 00" 00" (LN

¥8°Z06°0T 00" 00" 0o0° oo 00"

-9T LED'BE 00" 00" oo- oo" 00" BET
-92° 5457915 o0- 00" 00 oo 05°2TS €
~£9°'999 LB 00" 00" -L5°0T 1Y LA 18°€ZZ ‘ST
~FT ELE L LN 00" 00" oo : vaZTLL'LZ
-5p BEE'TH LN oo- oo” oo" - ETIT98E BB
-00°09 oo0- oo- [t 00" 00 0E
-ELTL66'BIL T 00" 00" B 008'T 00" 0T 0LZ 'LL
-F5° B8 ISE 00° oo* -§9°516°1 z9 0LT R LV TER LT

00" 00" oe" 00" an- [
-00°099 00" (18 oo° 00 - S0t
-00°000'000°T 00" ©o” 00" L1 A ae”

-0T FE6ESE’T 00" 60" ~5Z°9ZT . BOrEOLURT BT TRS'CT
-9 PIERIL’T op* oo” 00" ao0” oo”
~BLTE9E85D"E oo0* oo’ 00" ao” © £9°056°LS
-L1°$00'6L2 0" [ -v0° 9z 00" 06"
-007 000 00T oo* 00" on” 00" 00"
~LE'9LB PR 00" oo- oo” 00" 00"

00" [ 0o" oo” 00" 00"

oo’ [ 00" 00" 00" 00"

¥S 6¥9'66 [ 00" 00" 00" 00"

oe" 06" 00" 00" oo" 00"
-B0°TFE'€ZS'T oe" 00’ -L67 BB LY 188 9T 6E79%8°TC

co” co" 00" 00" 00" 00"
-6Z°5B%'LED 60" 00" 00* oo 6 OSE T
-9 BOGTLE’Y oo” o0’ ~TLT9LS L3 GTL'RES 9L T8Y"E6L

co ooz oo- 00" 00" [ [N

c0°000°E 00" 00° [ oo" ca-

60 00T"T 00" 1 00" co” (LN

0f 6EY 00" 00" oo” 00" 0o-

04 ¥587BLI'E 00" 00" 00" [N 0o0”

DS Z0Z*6ST L 00" oo° 0o- co" 00"

05 9ZZEEE'T 00" 00* LS°L96 -£L°LE9°E98 -E0° BB 'BOR'T

00" 0o’ 00" op* oot . - oo

00" 00" 00° oo” 00" . - oo"

6 9LB EPL 00" 00" 00" oo oo

LB TEE'9 00" 00" 00" oo" : oo

00°00Z°066'T 00° 00" : 00° co* 00"
HONUTYH ONIANE IN0 SHAdSNYAL NI SHA4ASNYAl  GUEBONOA NEAOL STIOSAYA FiNANEsanasra

T

ST0Z/S0 ¥od
LEFHS DNIDNYIVE ATHLNOW
ONILNAODOY §u¥FENSYIEL
obeg VIUOSYEAL ALNNOD ATHOLS

[H+hy

00’

00"

00"

00"
-£8°889 25T
-YE°EE0 66
-pP E9ZTIT

00"

-0 64T R
00°
-00° 052

00"
-05°TI%9
~TL €96
-057 0TS
~96 '68E£°ZS
-ELTLFE’T
-69°ZCE'6
~01 GZL'BY
-00°0¢€
-£9°1%2 25
-50°Z98 LT
00"

00"

00"
~YE 605 EF
-p0-Z5% 8T
00"
~Z6 ETIT'E

00-

00"

00"

00"

00"

-00° 052
-ZETZVY'RE

00"

-Z8 0%9
-€B°EZLE'0SH

e

oo"

[N

oo’

[N

oc*

FLOTISLIT T

oc”

cc”

60"

oe”

oe’

BIATIDTE

00°

04"
0g”

-QE" 005 422
-€8°0FT'L0Z
-6Z° 960 L0 T
~19°DED60S
-L8T6ZE'9E0°T
-0 ete
~0B0%0°LLT
-8B LGL FES T
-g0°E6Y LT
eo”
-60°Z¥0 0¥
557958 1T
-99 99 'LE
-08"LTL L9y
-ST 2SS TIT
-60°"8%E ‘92
-LY% 665 LET
-00° 05
~L8"9TE'SPL T
-0E"PLI'LSZ
00°

-00°099
~00°000°000 'Y
~TE"T8G ‘LEE'T
~ZT E9F'969°T
-1 %16 '9TT 2
~TZ S9L'SLT
-00°000° 00T
R XA TN 1]
oG

co*

¥S EP9 66
eC"0EZ
-56° T80 PES T
ee*

-IP Z0S'T0§
-GL 659764875
0e’ 00z
[T T

00° 00T T
0E"6EY

DL ¥ER'BLTB
05" E0E'6ST L
S6'8¥%0 ‘EBY’S
00"

00"

w6 9LB 'E¥L
L8 TEE 9
00°00Z°066°2

TUY¥Md0d " Tvd

SANNA TTY TYLOL

L BNTOYCH SEXYL JINDES
ONIQTOH SEXWL dZINIESNA
ary TNLOW

AONZOWEWE FuId
IDTYLSIC BHYA
NOTISSINAOD WSIMOOL DA
IDECO¥d IIVE DA

QNnE SAIE TIVL §.AJLUIRS
SINVHD TYYIazd

MOVEAYd THL

aNd Y

LAN THIL

aNOd IHN0D ADILSAD
INIAIDOY INISIANT
INNCD IDIEISIA

ALYLS

aHNA XSOTONEDEL

185 T00HDS

TOOHIS

LHN0D HEa

0DUVA STTEM GNOE Yasn
MEMEE EAIATE YINIDUIA
ALID VINIDEIA AQ NMOL
TIIH GI0D 40 NMOL
ROILIVZITIEYLS

WALEAS ¥IIWM

GHNA AEALONELSVINT
SIDULQEY TULIIYD
ROTLISINOONY LNAWAINOZ
EOTAYTS

ary THOIOW

IDTHISIA EYId
ADNIDWIWE THTA

FAT

NOIINLIISES

Sa¥od

XYIL- SONYLSISSY INFDIANT
TYSIQAW INEDTANT
YFENED

AOSSIASSY  HSYD ALLIAA
JATHIHE HSVD ALLEd
HEYD ALIHA

SNICD A0

INMCODY EI8T AIVIS
LAY AENOW OD¥YE S773aM
INNCHDY DD COUYA STIEM
SHTYS ALYELC¥d ¥ 40 &
SANYDD MNYE SSANESNG
MNYH NI HSWD

BNIOTOH L¥N0D LDIAISIA
H5YD wasn cowva STram

NOILZIHIEEE

BT E€TITIT ST/80/50 *

0TZ
S0
ooz
08T
66T
LBT
S8T

090
050
5%0
(s34
5e0

v06
€06
T06
961
16T
661
a6t
[A2A

¥6T
E6T

LOW

uny

QOTZYL oN Jxodey



9T'8ZE'DZT 5 TL'GEW 5 - $ OTBTET § £L585b'F 5 - S SLTZOSE § Or'9%T $ TLE96 $ TR0V § SE'GEP'T S TEETZE S G9ZOE'S § OLDECBY $ T SVO'ET $ DO'BOS00T $  1VIOLANVUD
- g - $ - $ - s - § - § 151034
N $ 15K Xd
8r'80Z'EIT & - $ - H - S - S LpaT0eT  § BTELZ § SEEVL S 16'66F & - S PEeLY'T § LTUTL  § [9U6TYE § L0888 § 1S1a XW
- 3 - s - 5 - s - $ 151a 2d'Xd
514
€6'92Y2Z  § TLBED  § - S OT'GIET 5§ E£61v1  § - S [878TE & SE'9T $ 758 S LTBS § E£5EG $ GIZEE § 99'5%8 S ECESE'Y § VETIFE & ZeSsv $  DISNNIViOL
uswiediaag
E6'TPOTT  § 2T'8Er ¢ TIYIET § TETIEL $ BTZLT'E  § pToT $ TTLm $ 90'8S  § 0Z'068 $ 07762 $ I8Ipe § ES89ET  § PETLEE  § GYEbY $  STOT/YIOT
00's8 $ 05T $ 6y S TI0T ] - 5 6901 5 TI'0 $ 0£90 $ 10 $ EEE $ 660 s v8'Z 5 0LYT 3 - $ ELSE $  HOIWd TV1OL
z6'5t $ S80 $ 952 S LTv § Z6's $ 900 $ Lo $ ETo S 5§87 5 gg'0 $ £5T $ vr8 3 (2474 §  proZETOT
80'8E $ S90 $ £6'T § vR'S H - S iy § S0 $ €10 $ 800 3 81 $ Ev0 s LT § 959 [ 68'pT 5 LI
30'8BE 5 &9 13 £6'T $ pes S LEy $ 500 § ETO 5 800 S EPT S EYO S £TT 5 959 % R4 s ET0Z/ZTOT
- $ Z10Z/110Z
- $ Troz/010Z
- g 010Z/5007
- § 6007/8007
- $ 800Z/£007
YOSSISSY
SL'Z56'PE [ - 4 - S PO9TE'Y % - 5 r'6Z8'y 5 98'8E $ PTIEL $ 8598 5 IYSOST 3 egIvY S5 9£°08¢'T % 0T6P99 9 EBELTE 5 90'BESTT S SIVLOL 14Od24
- $ P35 pungey
SLZEEPE & - H - 5 F99TE'y $ - § Zveew'y § SB8E $ vTTEL  § BS'9E 5 ZUSOST  § 6Ly § 9E0BTT  § O0TEPI9 § SRELTE  § 90'BESET § Q3I¥NI3S TVLIOL
8785’67 & - $ - $ G6'ESE'E % ar'ssI'y § Z9EE 5 SYETT % 9E'RL 5 PESEZT  § SOOSE 5 EETOTT $ 9STLLS 5 CULTE  $ O06'6PECT §  SI/PT VIO
LE'96T s 0608 s 9zo 3 sg0 S £50 % 596 S w8z $ 18 5 95Ty 3 £5°00T s 55355y |e12adg
TE'SBERT § 66'E8T'E & 9S'vET'Y  § O9E'EE $ 08211 $ BLEL  $ BSSBTT % TTLLE $ EUEBD'T 5 00GRIS  § TUTLIE  § LEsvEOT $ ST0z/rioE
LEOTH'S 5 - s - $ - $ SOTEL'T § 96'ELY S we'S $ BSEI $ TLT 5 BEOLZ S PEIS $ E0'6LE 5 ©9°926 - Tie d $ 9T'88T? §  HOIYd WiOL
58'G67°p s - s - s - $ Lrses 5 - § 8Es5Es s ITp S BLYT s €96 $ 8791 $ oT'sb $ SEIpT 5 8b9EL [ -TA § 68'8EL'T $  YIDZ/ET0Z TVLOL
55355y [eIrads
[4751: S 88°SES s ITb S 6LYT $ B96 S 8TL9T $ ST6p $ SEIPT s Bp9EL $ 9T 5 G4'SEL'T S PI0Z-€10T
Z9PTIT'T s [:1 44 ] 80°881 5§ ETT $ 08 s ST S OI'Sp $ 892l $ 89'9% $ ST061 3 - $ ITBYY H e101gng
TYPTIL g BULET $ 0'8ET § et % 08F 5 v5T $ OTEv S B9TT 4 §g9'gg S 9T'06T 4 - § LT6bY 4§ ET0TTTOZ (eIl
ssassy [e1padg
BT LET H 80°8ET 5 ETT 5 08% $ el $ OT'Ev $ 8971 $ §9°9E § 9T'06T H [Zary $ £10E-7107
- S ZTOZT/TT0Z
- $ Ttoz/otaz
Wi01 %e uie BAdYAC %9 4/ SALIWNAd  dreghed rdl YINA/IuNS HENOA J0% ONI a3aw ani 3UV1S nov 4vd 40 HOS 40 HIS aro 15NgN| TWYINID VIUNSYIRL
591 9059E-T00  POTYE-T00 T00 002 0sz 100 S81 010 (1733 090 991 0sT 005-T00 00

STOZT AVW 30 HANOIA 3HL 8904 TvA av




T

abeg

ET E€6T'T ST/6E/S
€5 T6€ S51/62/5
SL GZ ST/6E/S
Q0" SL ST/6E/S
0S°"2I0'L ST/62/S
S8 PLT ST/62/S
69°8ST S51/62/S
00°008'T S1/62/4
0S5 SL% St/62/4
00022 ST/6T/S
00766 GT/62/6
TETETE ST/62/5
05 0EL ST/6E/S
ET'6F6°C S1/62/5
SL'Z9 ST/62/¢
8T 8SE ST/5E/%
051 9TE ST/6E/S
00 ¥3¢ ST/62/5
007081 ST/6E2/%
¥L 0T ST/62/S
A S1/68/5
0g'SE | ST/6Z/8
007005 °80T ST/62/%
£6°659 sT/62/5
I%#°991 S1/62/%
96" £S1 ST/62/%
00 0FS '€ ST/62/5G
00 8ET, ST/ST/S
00" 0IP ‘T S1/61/5
8Z"GL0°T s1/s1/9
00 ZET ST/ST/S
£0°S%0'0T ST/ST/S
¥5 22T ST/S1/S
00°59Z ST/ST/S
00" 09 ST/S1/9
08°LST s1/8T1/S
00"€89°¢ ST/10/%9
00°00G‘¢t ST/T0/9
00° %21 ST/T0/S
00°59 ST/TO/S
SL°6E ST/LT/%
16°9T ST/LL/®
60° 09 ST/LT/%
c0°52 ST/50/¢€
00°0SZ sT/0e/e
¢0-§2 sT/oe/z
007 6%T ST/60/T
00°66 ¥IL/21/21T
€T GEL ¥L/92/11
0 0S0°'T ¥I/PT/1T
0S5 594 PTI/TE/0T
05°28 YI/TE/0T
£L7EES ¥T/LT/0T
98 TTE FI/€0/0T
Juncuyy Clkzlq) HaalUp
ST/TE/S - 00/00/0

666666 UbnoIyrl T
DNILNAODIY S HFINSYITAL

SyoayD HBurpueisino

DT ADYHANH SHHATS

QNI SHSIMNdYIINT NOSNDHHS
ANVIWOD TYNHISYA

ONIL SS5YID LSYdA
ONIdHINIONH LSHM ¥MITd
SIDNCG0Ud NOLLVDINAEI DHNIME
ONI A1adng oLOY LLOTITH
ONT OD DNIOTOH WINI NOE
ONI ¥SN BHOIY(J

¥ OIAVIDO ‘VISHAD

DTT TIIW dI09 ADOLSHOD

TAEN F0 HOIAYES NOIEDETIOND

AIESYINLIVd ODTT1HD

DNI O TIO AFETIVA NOSHYD
SEANIONE TIYNS NOSIVD
BIYYd OLOY ALID IYLIAYD
SIMET LLODOS ’'TIENdNg
SHSTAIIAILNT Ad¥HI
HYH0gHEd ' YIaNdgg

JTAYAS EDNHIHINODHTHL LRIV
011 IT ALITIHOW L3IV

ONI ONILASIHALSIO WHSY
dNQED HOVJIV

ONI d3WIL #1ddv

ONT QDSTY

BINEY dYLS TIV

ONT SWALSAS VIWa QEONVAQY

- Y¥OVAEN ‘AINNDOD FOHSYM

00 ¥Y HIMADNWUL ® YINIDUIA

{JA}YHEINTD YOINMS €O IS
{ OTEONY ‘INIMLEA
ZLTENDAS LNIWEOTIWH ATN

JIH SNOTIWDINAWWOD dHLAYHD

SIMEYT LIODS ‘TIIddndg

a TIEgSNY ‘ NOANVId

ONI SWHISAS WiIvd UEINVAQY
© . SNI INEWISILEA YAOQA
Od AW ¥SSITHM ‘MDISVIA

g OTADNY ‘INIdLdd4

HIAYAH 40 AIQ AIN

NHOL ‘AYIS

avHD ‘SNYAH

HYJOHId  * 9IaNId

TAVHOIW AH¥OD ‘YIYTIVA
QELIWIT 40 SHESANL YAYAIN
AOATIL ‘ROVATHAAY

DNI DIDOTIH0D

(ONTA) ST SETUALIVE

DNI 0D ATddNg DJTg dapddd

: Q MNYEd ‘' NOIXVH

I 00 HONUNIA TYNOISTSHAQUL
ONI dNvaawodd 10dgs LOH

- - QdOA

I 00 HONYNI4& TYNOISSHAOHd

sueN soioTdwH/I0PUIA
woxg

#Ho9UD woxd

559168160

ALNDOD AHICOLS

ZEGEOT GO
S8%T0T G0
60S57%0¥ 00
CTTLEQY 00
2Tce0d Q0
GEBEOY 00
L¥SP0¥ Q0
LOVEF0OD 00
S9v¥0¥ 00
8C6E0¥ o0
LB8BEOY 00
ZC8e0¥ 0o
89ZE0¥ 00
9TZ¥0T 0%
S8500¢T 00
SL%001 00
TL9E0¥ 0o
S09T0T 00
656 E0Y Q0
619¢0% 0o
£9966 a0
T9Z2E£0% 00
LPoY OV 0o
69CF0F 00
SETO0T 0¢
59966 0C
9S00T oC
OSTE0¥ 0G
¥68E0¥ 00
9ZLTOT 00
S568¢0¥% 0C
S9ZTOT 00
£EIV0Y 00
TLIEOT 00
PE9FOF 00
050071 00
GEIVOV 00
6Z9% 0% 00
S68E0F 00
SOEEDT 00
6T9%0% Q0
TZ3¥0% 00
6S6E0F 00
065%0% 00
TS5%c0T 00
LBS¥OF 00
LL9EO® 00
LEBGG 00
SBEZEO0¥ 00
SPSTOP 00
¥90v0% 00
£SLE0F 00
£86E0Y 090
Yo0¥0¥ 00

# uosasg beg

SuTL uny ST/80/90

661
66T
661
66T
661
66T
66T
6T
66T
661
661
661
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
661
661
661
6671
661
661
661
661
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
66T
661
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
661

Juey

L6TZ8  AD
96CEZ8 MO
S6CZ28 A0
vecés AD
£6ZE8 Mo
T6EZE8 D
T6CZ8 Ao
¢6ge8 Ao
68ZZ8 D
88228 Mo
g8¢¢€8 MO
v8ces D
£8cce  Ho
£82¢8 MO
I8g€8 M0
0828 MO
6LZT8B D
8LTTE MO
LLEZEZg M2
9LZE8 AD
Q4228 MO
PLZE8 2D
ELELZ8 MO
[ARAA T
TLZZ8 MO
0LEZZE 2O
692¢8 MO
59¢<8 M¥D
ogee A0
TSCZ8 D
PN AR S
SETI8 MO
SL1Z8 D
£9TC8 ¥D
19IC8 MO
Z51¢8 MO
L¥TZ8 D
SITZE Ao
¥I1L8 ¥D
LoTZg MO
EL6THE D
LEGTE MDD
ZE6TE D
Y1918 D
81918 2D
6S¥%18 MO
¥PITIE MO
81608 A0
0E808 D
9ZL08 MO
L¥908 D
21208 MO
9508 MO
Z0%¥08 MDD
# sooup di

23eJ uny

Z9LTxd :oN jxodey



05°'L9S c1/62/G
£€°0¢ <Tt/62/S
0§25 | s1/6e/S
$8°26S5°'T 51/62/5
LS 8Z0'SE ST/62/S
LO Z¥Z’9 ST/6E/S
SL 6ET, ST/6E/S
08 L96°T s1/62/8
00°00E‘€E ST/6€/S
65°9L5’E ST/62/S
9% Z6T sT/6¢/s
00°G€9 %2 sT/62/9
vZ 6L ST/62/9
00°ZTT, S1/62/S
82'699°¢ ST/62/S
85°ZIE S1/62/%G
PT 11 SstT/6g/S
00°00€ ST/62/5
9% 92L st/é6e/s
66 ¥SE st/6€/s
00029, ST1/6E/G
00°%TZ‘Z S1/62/%
9€ " TT0'S s1/62/%
vo- oLz, S1/62/6G
00 LTIE'E S1/62/G
96 LIT L ST/62/6
Q000001 S1/62/S
TS 52 ST/62/S
LE 0BT SL/6T/G
00288 °82 S1/62/5
86 162'T ST/62/5
95 S8E 0T St/62/S
00°S8T'Z SI/62/S
00°000°T ST/62/6G
00 0Le S1/62/%S
00 EVE ST/62/S
G947 20T st/6e/s
00628 SI/6E/G
L0°'89€ SL/62/S
ZE"ZBL'E S1/62/G
£6°016 S1/62/6
97 909 ST/6Z/S
0S8°Z0¢T ST/62/G
80 E£L8 S1/62/5
00" %8 | s1/6T/G
8L°66E'L S1/62/G
Ty €99, SI/6Z/S
2o0-'8IZ'e S1/62/§
00°G6T S1/62/G
06°29% 1 ST/62/S
9T ZEE §1/62/%
0T TZT, ST/6Z/S
61 %05'S S1/62/5G
¥5°26 st/ee/s
JUTLOUT 98 YoIUD
ST/1e/Ss - 00/00/0

666666 UBNOIUL T

s3oaup burpueisano

ONILNNODOVY SuddANSYHEL
ALNNCDO AHAOLS

z 26edg

SHSTYEALNG ¥Vad NOS

dl WNHIDAAS INIHdS

YHd TYNOILUN HIVIS dEATIS
ANVYAWOD TTYOTHIAHD YUdHIs
DT QIYMOH ONY NYWIHHS
DONI SEDIAMES TYE0TS DS
aT NI SEIIA¥HES IYEQTH 2€S
{¥D) ONI 0D KNVOIOW AVA
DNI SHIDIAIVALS UvA

CO ¥audnyd ¥ HAIL TTIDUAG
I QD HONYNIA IYNOISSEAQAJ
AYLANOLDIE

ONI TOUINOD OISAHA

d OTHONY 'INTYLHEG

SHATYS ILNAWIINDAE SNAMO

D11 'AOdEd YIVd ALISIA0
ONI LO4Ed HOTAAQ

NIMIIM ONY IAON

dASE ALNNOD TVENd VAYAIN
YAINAD 'TYNOIDHY IvdNd AHN
TASNAOD HATIIVISIDET AHN
HLO¥d INANNCIIANT AId AHN
SANNOYD ¥ HATI NIWAY AIN
SEOLOVA SSHNISNY TYNOIIVN
OTT IVLNIA SdW

OLNAWYYOVYS 40 HAIIL NYDHOW
© AHINANH MEHLIVW Sd00KW
O HOLOW THOH TAVHDIR

NI SNOILNIOS HDIAAO OJILHW
NOILILVIORd0D YAOGER

ONI SHI¥OLYIEQLIYT W

OTI SINAAR ANTd UInfiT
OTT SINHAR A0S AIN0IT
DTT SINAAH "I dIN0IT
ONI HAMSOL HBT

EIWWYL ® AUSVT “YHLSHT
SNOS ® SIIdEND N 1T

¥ NYILSI¥HD ‘SdTHOAEIX
NOSNHOD ¥ g¥¥Madd HOALLD
o1 ggoe

DTT HDWNOS TLII

NI 19W O8NI NIVINNOW NOWI
ONI ONVHOYOREd 1L0dS 1IOH
HOTANES LIAEED I1O4d3G HWOH
OHDE dU¥M HIMN0JA DIJQLSIH
ONIDYWIQUDIW LYASHE HOIH
NIHHDE A¥NHH

QLT ILNIVW TIDOVA X1ddnsS dH
SAd ¥ ELIWIAL NISYH LYddD
WOL ‘A¥AISNYED

0 RDONYN *NVHD

ADNTYHD

‘¥ QUYMOd ' ONIQAVID
THINYT ’INOVD

suweN saio1dwm/Iopusp
woxg

#Y09UD woxd

§6:6E°60

Z68E0¥
L¥¥EO0T
[ XA TR
SESTIOT
TOLIDT
0TZ1I0T
T#ZE0T
LEGTOT
B6EROT
8%€00T
POO0V0T
T6LEOT
6€920T
S68E0¥
86€EQT
926T0¥
Z8LCTO0T
1I86%0%
0¥STOT
8CO0¥0¥
9Z0T101
LLEEOT
BZETOT
991%0¥
S9STOF
Z6EPOV
TSS%0¥
LS8ZOT
g80%0%
T#¥S¥F0¥
£9EV0¥
ZOT%0¥
ZO0T%0V
Z0T%0¥
SLLTOT
SZ9%0%
O%0TOT
868E0Y
LS0E0T
LTLE0T
Fe8e0d
£8800T
ESLEOY
68800T
9¢800T
860601
OP0E0®
£8620T
OLPLOT
80ST0OY
855¥%0¥
668T0T
0¥9%0¥
IBETOF

# uosasg

SWIIL unyg

00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
o0 661
00 661
00 6671
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
Q0 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 46T
00 661
00 66T
00 6671
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 651
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
Q0 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
bag ueg
ST/80/90

Z5ET8 MO
Ts€e8 D
e¥ce8 MO
s8¥eLeg  AD
LYEES D
9%tZ8 Mo
SkEZ8 N0
¥¥EC8 MO
EVEZE D
ZPEZS 3D
TFEZ8 HD
o¥EZ8 MO
6E€£Z8 D
BEEEZE AL
LEEZ8 AD
9gETe  AD
SEE€Z8  AD
PEELE  AD
EEEZE AD
ZEET8  AD
TELZ8 AD
0€EZ8 o
6Z2EZ8  AD
8ZE€Z8 O
LZEZT8 D
9gzECcs MAD
SZELZ8 D
YZEE8 D
€CETE A
TTET8 2O
Teeeg D
QZEZ8 A
6TEZ] D
8T£TC8 Mo
LIEZ8 D
9TEE8 AD
STEZ8 M2
PI£E8 MO
€TEC8 MDD
ZI€Z8 M0
TTEC8 Ao
0TEZE D
60EE8 2D
goeze Ao
LOEZ8 AD
S0EZ8 A0
S0€C8  MD
y0ECB MO
£0€Z8 M0
ZOEZ8 ¥D
TO0EZCE8 MAD
g0ET8 D
66ZC8 AD
86228 MO

# yosyd dr

23BJ uny

zoLiadg :oN 3xodsy



6% 8Z%‘8¢EE STBRICL

6% 8% ‘8EC Te3ol, yuwvg
A R A s1/ge/s L pE¥D S5HH ZTT 00 66T 68SbL ¥4
05 €6¥ st/ze/s £ON SUHENIONZ HNILYIIdO 005006 00 66T LB8S¥E A4
Y CI0’T §T/80/% D DE¥H ‘S5HH ZTT 00 66T 69G%E  Hd
0G " TLE'E s1/80/% dWOD QIYIHIHT 0GE006 00 66T ZSG¥E  Ag
05 1I6L°T ST/0T/% dWOD GHYEELHT 00E006 00 66T SIS¥E ud
TL 0T PT/ST/8 ¥O/NOILOATTIOD HHA AATAHHS ST9006 00 66T TEZHE Ud
S8°ZIT'T s1/62/4 ONI ALIATONCD GE 9ZT#0¥ 00 66T 99¢E€8 D
00°09 ST/62/S SSITICD 'dooM LEGEDT 00 66T S9€€8  AD
T10°6% S1/62/S I¥d ‘NALLIHM 9%67T0T 00 66T ¥9¢Z8 AD
€6 0F6°T S1/62/5 A¥HES ¥OINHS ALNQOD HOHSYM 600€0T 00 66T £9€Z8 D
00°808°T ST/62/G SHIYIDOSSY ¥ dMMTYM 0Z8Z0% 00 66T £9¢€e8  AD
00°9LT'T S1/62/S DNI S¥N0L ALID VINIDMIA £68€0F 00 66T T9cT8 D
sz 1eh S1/62/4 % ANAMIYE ALID YINIOWUIA £99%0% 00 66T £9¢Z8 MY
00-9sZ’'e ST1/62/% 0D ¥¥ HEMONAL ¥ VINIDWIA P68E0F 00 66T 65¢€8 D
80 9ZL'E s1/62/S YNId INHWIINOT JUIO0INVE Sn Be6C0¥ 00 66T 85cg8 WD
86" LST sT/62/% D71 YAYASN A0 ALIWICAINA Z96T0T 00 661 LSE€E8  ¥D
S2°Z0T ST/62/9 ONI ‘SAENENOL NOWWOONO 8%9%0¥ 00 66T 99€g8 D
00" 06 ST/62/S dWNRLVWIAHL 98LTOT 00 661 SGEZ8  AD
8T°ST ST/62/S 2711 A1d4d0S 9L 679%0F 00 661 PSEZE A0
00" L9% ST/62/S DNI SNOILY¥DJINQWWOD ANNNS S6SE0¥ 00 66T £9ETE  AD
JUNCUY a3ed Hoayud sweN 29AoTdug/xcpusa  # uosasg beg jueg # ooy di
ST/IE/S - 06/00/0 woxyg
666666 UBTWOIUL T #}o°UD woxd
gyosy) burpuelsIng
DONILNNODOY S.¥FINSYIIL G576E°60 * BWTL UMY ST/80/50 : 231eQ uny

€ abedq ALNNGD AHIOLS ZoLTId :oN 3xodsy




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: (g [(, —|5 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1, Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

. Legal review req

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: -
x__ Depa

[

Department Name: Community Development

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued .

Agenda Item No. 7




Storey County Community Debelopment
Buginess

P C Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 + (775) 847-0066 « Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office June 8, 2015
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the June 16, 2015, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

A. HARDSCAPES, INC. — Contractor / 950 Dartmouth Drive ~ Reno (paver installation)

B. ACE GRADING & PAVING -- Contfractor/ 6015 S. Virginia St., ~ Reno (asphalt paving)

C. AJELECTRIC, LLC - Contractor / 3659 Crestridge Way ~ Reno (electrical contractor)

D. ARROW SIGN COMPANY - Contractor / 1051 46™ Avenue ~ Oakland, CA (sign contractor)

Inspection Required
ec: Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office

Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept. Commissioners’ Office




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: 30 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve the Governmental Services Agreement for Storey
County Economic Diversification District No. 1 between Storey County, Storey County Fire
Protection District and Tesla.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the Governmental Services Agreement for Storey
County Economic Diversification District No. 1 between Storey County, Storey County Fire
Protection District and Tesla.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel ~ Pat Whitten, County Manager
Department: District Attorney’s & Commissioner’s Office Tel: 847-0964/847-0968

4., Staff summary:

The Economic Diversification Act, S.B. 1, 28™ Special Sess. {Nev. 2014} allows Storey
County to create an economic diversification district to provide economic development incentives
and pledge an amount equal to the proceeds of all the sales and use taxes as reimbursement
payments for the costs incurred by the lead participant. The Board has passed Ordinance 14-260
(Continued on next page.)

5. Supporting materials: Governmental Services Agreement

6. Fiscal impact: The agreement will provide additional revenue for governmental services.

7. Legal review required: Yes A]H l - District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
: County Manager Other agency review:

0. Board action:
[] Approved
(] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

et

Agenda Item No. 8




4. Staff summary continued:

creating the Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1. Ordinance 14-260 is not
effective until Storey County enters an agreement with one or more owners of property in the
district to defray in whole or in part the cost of local government services. This is the
Governmental Services agreement.

The Economic Diversification Act permits the abatement of real and personal property
taxes for 10 years and the abatement of a portion of the sales and use tax and reimbursement of
non-abated sales and use tax for 20 years. As a result of the abatement and reimbursement of taxes
that the County would normally receive to pay for governmental services within the District, both
the County and the Fire District face budget shortfalls in providing governmental services in the
District.

Since the announcement last fall that Tesla had chosen Storey County as the site for their
new “Gigafactory”, County staff and Tesla have negotiated hundreds of points of interest for both
parties on the four Tesla related documents presented at previous Commission meetings as well as
today. These negotiations have consistently been conducted in a business-friendly atmosphere that
has been focused on finding solutions that are fair both to Storey County and to Tesla. Staffis
pleased to advise you that we have mutually reached conceptual agreement on all points.

This agreement with Tesla embodies their desire to assist the County by making payments
to the County intended to defray the cost of governmental services in the District. The agreement
includes section 5 that requires Tesla to make annual payments for 9 years with the agreement
ending on the same day as the last day of the property tax abatement. The negotiations on the
costs currently have Tesla paying for 100% of the staffing costs that the County and Fire District
anticipate for the first three years. The years 4 through 9 have a formula derived amount that the
county will receive based on a method to determine Tesla’s annual fee using assessed value and
number of employees. Tesla has also agreed to reimburse the County for costs incurred to acquire
and equip a used fire apparatus that is somewhat unique to buildings of their design.

In closing, Storey County staff, including counsel, wishes to extend our deepest gratitude
and appreciation to Tesla and their partners for selecting Storey County and negotiating in a spirit
of true faimess and partnership. They have willingly agreed to fully fund minimum staff levels at
Fire Station 75 for the first 3 years, while knowing that our staff will serve not only the Tesla
project, but throughout TRI Center and the Fire District. They have also been amenable to
countless other suggested provisions and again, have consistently performed as great partner in our
business community. We are most fortunate to be affiliated with them.




EXECUTION VERSION

GOVERNMENTAIL SERVICES AGREEMENT
for Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1 (Tesla)
between Storey County, Storey County Fire Protection District, and Tesla

This Governmental Services Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of
this ___ day of June, 2015, to be retroactive to Qctober 17, 2014 (the “Effective Date”) by and
among TESLA MOTORS, INC., a Delaware corporation, having offices at Electric Avenue,
Sparks, Nevada 89434 (“Tesla” or “Lead Participant”), STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA a
political subdivision of the State of Nevada (the “County”) and the STOREY COUNTY FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (the “Fire District”),
Tesla and the County and the Fire District are referred to as the “Parties.”

RECITALS

Whereas, pursuant to S.B. 1, 28th (2014) Special Session of the Nevada
Legislature, (the “Economic Diversification Act”), the County has the power to create an
cconomic diversification district for the development of property within the jurisdiction of the
County for the purpose of acquiring, improving, equipping, and developing a qualified project;
and

Whereas, pursuant to the Economic Diversification Act, section 35, the County
may enter into an agreement with an owner of any interest in property located within an
economic diversification district, pursuant to which that owner would agree to make payments to
the County or other local government that provides services within the economic diversification
district, to defray in whole or in part the cost of providing governmental services within the
district; and

Whereas, pursuant to the Economic Diversification Act, section 31, the Board of
County Commissioners of Storey County, Nevada (the “Board”) has adopted Ordinance No. 14-
260, the Economic Diversification District Creation Ordinance (the “Ordinance”) creating Storey
County Economic Diversification District No. 1 (Tesla) in Storey County, Nevada (the
“District”) which becomes effective on approval and execution of this Agreement; and

Whereas the County and the Fire District will provide governmental services
within the District including, but not limited to, fire protection, sheriff, assessor and emergency
medical; and :

Whereas, the Parties all acknowledge that, as a result of the abatement of sales and
usc tax and property tax that the County would normally receive to pay for governmental
services within the district, there is a resulting budgetary difficulty facing the County and the
Fire District in providing governmental services within the District; and

Whereas, Tesla, as the Lead Participant in the District, desires to assist the County
by making payments to the County intended to enable the County and the Fire District to provide
governmental services in the District during this period of budgetary difficulty; and

Whereas, in an effort to address the sityation just described and to fulfill the
Economic Diversification Act, Section 35, Tesla, together with the County and the Fire District,




all desire to set forth the terms pursyant which Tesla will make payments to the County to defray
in whole or in part the cost of providing the governmental services within the District during the
term of this Agreement.

Now, therefore, in consideration of the premises set forth above and the mutual
covenants set forth in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt
and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Term. This Agreement will remain in effect (the “Term™) from the Effective Date until
June 30, 2024, unless sooner terminated under the provisions of this Agreement.

2, Governmental services to be provided. The County and Fire District, including, as
applicable, such divisions of the County as the sheriff's office, the assessor’s office, emergency
management and fire protection and emergency medical services units, shall provide the
following “Governmental Services” to the standard and in the quantities described in this
Agreement, and in any event, at a service level not less than provided by the County to other
commercial enterprises located within the County (the “Base Level of Services”).

Governmental Services means the following services, as more particularly described on
Exhibit A to this Agreement, which will be provided by the County and Fire District, as
applicable, within and throughout the District for the benefit of all Participants in the District:

- Sheriff services,
- Fire protection and emergency medical services,
- Assessor and tax appraisal services,

- Road maintenance and clearing services on County-owned roads with public
access, and

- Administrative assistance within the recording office, community
development office, Sheriff’s office, District Attomey’s office, and
emergency management office,

3. Compliance with Base Levels of Services.

(a)  In the absence of extenuating circumstances and subject to the factors described
elsewhere in this Section 3, the County and Fire District agree to provide the Base Level of
Services for each of the Governmental Services throughout the Term of this Agreement.

(b}  The Base Level of Services assumes an average level of demand and activity, and
the Parties recognize that Governmental Services provided on any particular day or period may
vary based upon special circumstances. However, the expectation is that the County and Fire
District will perform each of the Governmental Services at no less than the Base Level of
Service, except as otherwise provided herein.

(c) The Base Level of Services may be adjusted to reflect new methodologies and
policies, provided that the basic intent of this Agreement is maintained in any adjustment.

Execution Version 2




(d)  In the event of extreme emergency, as declared by the Chairman of Board of
County Commissioners or the Governor of the State of Nevada, Governmental Services may be
temporarily suspended in all or part of the District, to the extent required by such emergency.
The Parties acknowledge that such circumstances are likely to be highty unusual and temporary
in nature.

4. Computation of Govermmental Services Amount. Each year during the term of this
Agreement, Tesla, as an owner of a property interest within the District, agrees to pay the
amount determined pursuant to Section 5 below to defray, in whole or in part, the costs of the
Governmental Services provided by the County and Fire District in the District. The Parties
agree the amounts to be paid by Tesla will be used primarily by the County and Fire District to
provide Governmental Services in the District.

5. Payment for Governmental Services.

(a)  Tesla agrees to pay the following annual amounts, based upon a June 30" fiscal
year, to the County to defray, in whole or in part, the cost of the Governmental Services provided
in the District by the County and Fire District during the term of this Agreement:

Annual Fee . Proi_tﬁe_cl_’l‘ruc}_{__l_’_&_l
2016 $ 785,037 $ 96,166
2017 $ 851,224 $ 96,166
2018 $867,838 $ 96,166
Proie'cted Annual Fee Projected Trucl_c_l? & I
2019 $ 348,856 $ 96,166
2020 | $381,454 $ 96,166
2021 $ 388,166 $ 96,166
2022 $ 471,617 $ 96,166
2023 $ 479,954 $ 96,166
2024 | s4s84s8 $ 96,166

() On or about April 1, 2018 and again on or about April 1, 2021, the Parties agree
to meet to re-determine Tesla’s annual fee payments to the County to defray, in whole or in part,
the cost of the Governmental Services provided in the District by the County and the Fire District
during the next succeeding three years of the term of this Agreement (County Fiscal Years
ending in 2019-2021 and 2022-2024).

The amount of Tesla payments under this Section 5 shall be initially re-determined using
the average of two equally weighted factors measured as of February 28, 2018 and again as of
February 28, 2021.

(1) The District’s proportionate share of the total occupancy, measured through full-time
equivalent (“FTE”} headcount, of the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center.

Execution Version 3




(2) The District’s proportionate share of the total assessed value of all real and personal
property located in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center.

Factor (1) above shall be determined using FTE employment data obtained by the County
from County business license filings.

Factor (2) above shall be determined using the assessed value found on the County
property tax rolls.

The Parties will then adjust the amount of the payments determined using the preceding
calculation by taking into account such other factors as they consider relevant in determining the
Participant’s fair share of the costs of providing Governmental Services in the District.

Other factors which the Parties must consider in this re-determination include, without
limitation: (i) the Fire District and the County’s current budgetary condition and their resulting
ability to provide Governmental Services in the District without financial assistance from Tesla;
(ii) the incremental development that has occurred in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center since the
Effective Date of this Agreement; (iif) the resulting impact this incremental development has had
on County and Fire District revenues; (iv) any increase in the level of Governmental Services
provided in the District that is agreed upon by the Parties; (v) Tesla’s historical usage of
Governmental Services in the District; (vi) Tesla’s proportionate share of the total square footage
under roof in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center; and (vii) an assessment of the financial impact of
the District on the provision of local governmental services, including, without limitation,
services for police protection and fire protection in the County. Tesla understands that if
budgetary conditions within the District continue in years beyond 2018, Tesla will be asked to
continue making payments at levels above the actual factored amount. The County understands
that Tesla is under no obligation to make payments above the factored amount.

Exhibit B to this agreement contains the methodology and calculations for the projected
annual fees in this Section 5 and an example illustrating the application of the methodology.

(c) In addition to the annual fees set forth in the chart on the preceding page, Tesla is
responsible for reimbursing the County for the principal and interest costs the Fire District incurs
by purchasing and equipping a quinfuple combination pumper fire service apparatus valued at
approximately $750,000 upon acquisition; provided, however, that the County must receive
advance concurrence from Tesla with the financial terms of the truck purchase and that such
concurrence may not be unreasonably withheld by Tesla. Anticipated terms of the truck
purchase which are presumptively acceptable to Tesla are annual payments in the amount of
$96,166 based on an annual percentage rate of 2.99% amortized over a 9-year term. Actual
payments will be determined based on the final acquisition price and loan terms concurred with
by Tesla (which concurrence cannot be unreasonably withheld); provided, however, that in no
event shall such annual payments be in excess of $100,000 over a 9-year term.

Int the event that, at any time during the term of this Agreement, one or more additional
facilities are constructed in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center with building heights exceeding
55, the County hereby agrees to proportionately reduce, on a prospective basis, Tesla’s
obligation to reimburse the County for the principal and interest costs of the truck purchase.
Such reduction shall begin with the first month after the end of the quarter in which a certificate
of occupancy is issued by the County for the new facility and continue for the remaining term of
this Agreement.

For example, suppose a new building exceeding 55° in height is issued a certificate of

Execution Version 4




occupancy by the County on May 1, 2018. Tesla’s obligation to reimburse the County for the
remaining principal and interest costs on the truck purchase as of the beginning of the following
quarter (in this example, the quarter beginning July 1, 2018) shall be reduced by 50%. Suppose
further that on February 1, 2022, another new building exceeding 55° in height is issued a
certificate of occupancy by the County. Tesla’s obligation to reimburse the County for the
remaining principal and interest costs of the truck purchase as of the beginning of the following
quarter (in this example, the quarter beginning April 1, 2022) shall be reduced by 66 2/3%.

(d)  Tesla shall pay in advance each annual amount provided for in this Section 5.
Such payments shall be made to the County on behalf of the Fire District and the County is
responsible for the disbursement of funds to the Fire District as appropriate. Such payments
shall be made in four equal installments on a quarterly basis (July 1, October 1, January 1, and
April 1),

6. Cooperation, non-exclusivity, conflict.

(2) The County and Fire District agree to cooperate and work together to provide Tesla
with the Governmental Services in the District. The Governmental Services provided by the
County and Fire District are for health, safety and welfare of the residents and businesses of the
County and payments under this agreement do not give Tesla any exclusive rights to the
Governmental Services provided.

(b} Conflict. Any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and any present or
future lawful exercise of the County’s police powers shall be resolved in favor of the latter,

7. Public Records Law. Tesla acknowledges and agrees that, subject to the limitations
and protections of the Economic Diversification Act, all records, documents, drawings, plans,
specifications and other materials in the County’s possession, including materials submitted by
Tesla, are subject to the provisions of the Nevada Public Records Law (NRS 239.005 ef seq.).
Tesla shall be solely responsible for all determinations made by it under such law, and for clearly
and prominently marking each and every page or sheet of materials with “Trade Secret”,
“Proprietary” or “Confidential” as it determines to be appropriate.

Execution Version 5




8. Defaults and remedies.
The following shall constitute an Event of Default by Tesla under this Agreement:

(a) Any representation, covenant or warranty contained in this Agreement which proves
to have been incorrect in any material and adverse respect when made and continues to be
materially adverse to the County after expiration of the cure period set forth below; or

(b) A court having jurisdiction has made or entered any decree or order (1) adjudging
Tesla to be bankrupt or insolvent, (2) approving as properly filed a petition seeking
reorganization of Tesla or seeking any arrangement for Tesla under the bankruptcy law or any
other applicable debtor's relief law or statute of the United States or any state or other
jurisdiction, (3) appointing a receiver, trustee, liquidator, or assignee of the Tesla in bankruptcy
or insolvency or for any of its properties, or (4) directing the winding up or liquidation of Tesla;
or

(c) Tesla shall have assigned its assets for the benefit of its creditors (other than pursuant
to a security instrument) or suffered a sequestration or attachment of or execution on any
substantial part of its property, unless the property so assigned, sequestered, attached or executed
upon shall have been returned or released within sixty (60) days after such event; or

(d) Any violation of a material provision of this Agreement, which remains uncured
within the time set forth below.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder, the County shall first notify Tesla
in writing of its purported breach or failure, giving Tesla sixty (60) days from receipt of such
notice to cure or, if cure cannot be accomplished within sixty (60) days, to commence to cure
such breach, failure or act. In the event Tesla does not then so cure, or commence to cure, within
sixty (60) days, the County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and pursue all rights
and remedies available in law and in equity.

9. Remedies Cumulative. The rights and remedies of the Parties under this Agreement
are cumulative, and the exercise or failure to exercise one or more of these rights or remedies by
either Party will not preclude the exercise by it, at the same time or different times, of any right
or remedy for the same default or any other default,

10. No Waiver., No failure or delay by either Party in asserting any of its rights or
remedies hereunder shall operate as a waiver of any default or of any such right or remedy, nor
deprive such Party of its right to institute and maintain any action or proceeding which it may
deem necessary to protect, assert or enforce any such rights or remedies. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, the failure or delay by either Party in providing a notice of default
shall not constitute a waiver of any default.

11. Prohibition on Assignment or Transfer. Except as provided below, Tesla shall not
directly or indirectly, voluntarily, inveluntarily or by operation of law make or attempt any total
or partial sale, transfer, conveyance, assignment or hypothecation (collectively “Transfer”) of the
whole or any part of this Agreement without the prior written approval of the County, which will
not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Any such attempt to Transfer this Agreement without
the County’s consent will be null and void and will confer no rights or privileges upon the
purported assignee and will constitute an Event of Default. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Tesla’s rights hereunder with respect to the Governmental Services may be transferred to (i) any
affiliate of Tesla; or (ii) any person or entity to whom the Tesla’s rights with respect to the

Execution Version 6




Gigafactory Project are transferred in complience with the transfer/assignment provisions of any
applicable agreement between Tesla and the County.

12. No Third-party Rights. The Parties expressly disclaim the creation of any right in
any third party whatsoever under this Agreement, except those third parties that are also
Participants in the District. There are no third-party beneficiaries other than the Participants in
the District. Each participant in the District is deemed to be a third party beneficiary of this
Agreement.

13. Notices. All notices and other communications to be given by either Party may be
given in writing, depositing the same in the United States mail, postage prepaid and addressed to
the appropriate Party as follows:

To Tesla: Tesla Motors, Inc.
3500 Deer Creek Road
Palo Alto, Califomia 94304
Attn; Deepak Ahuja
Phone: (650) 681-5100

With Copy to: Alex B. Leath
Bradley Arant Boult Cummings LLP
1819 Fifth Avenue North
Birmingham, Alabama 35203
Phone: (205) 521-8899

To the County: Attn: County Manager, Storey County
P.0.Box 176
Virginia City, Nevada 89440
Phone: (775) 847-0968

Any Party may change its address for notice by written notice to the other Party at any
time.

14. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed on one or more counterparts, each
of which shall be regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute the same Agreement.

15. Severability. If any section, subsection, clause, phrase, or word of this Agreement is
for any reason held invalid, unenforceable or unconstitutional by any court of competent
jurisdiction, such sectiorn, subsection, clause, phrase, or word shall be deemed a separate, distinct
and independent provision and such holding shall not negatively affect the validity of the
remaining portions of this Agreement.

16. Applicable law, This Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced under the laws of
the State of Nevada. Jurisdiction for all matters triable before a state court shall be in the First
Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada.

17. Amendment. Tesla, the County and the Fire District agree to mutually consider
reasonable requests for amendments to this Agreement (including any of the Exhibits hereto) that
may be made by any of the Parties hereto, provided the requests are consistent with this
Agreement and would not substantially alter the basic business terms included herein, Only the
Board is authorized to execute any amendments to this Agreement on behalf of the County. Any

Execution Version 7




alteration, change or modification of or to this Agreement, in order to become effective, will be
made in writing and in each instance signed on behalf of cach Party. No purported oral
amendment to this Agreement shall be valid.

18. Miscellaneous. Paragraph headings are for convenience only and do not effect, limit
or modify the content of the provisions of this Agreement, Use of the masculine, feminine, or
neuter shall not limit the application of anty provision of this Agreement, but each such gender is
deemed to include all other gender cases, just as the singular includes the plural, and the plural
the singular.

19. Challenge to District. The County and Fire District hereby covenant not to provide
any challenge to the existence, organization or validity of the District, and further agree not to
amend the Ordinance without the prior written consent of Tesla, and hereby agree to provide
reasonable assistance to Tesla in defense of any such challenge by a third party.

20, Dispute Resolution. In the event that any dispute arises between the Parties for any
reason under or arising out of this Agreement, the Parties shall promptly meet to discuss the
dispute and work in good faith through fair dealing to seek a resolution. In the event that the
dispute is not resolved within the earlier of (i) thirty days from the date of such meeting or (ii)
sixty (60) days from the date of a Party’s request for such meeting to discuss the dispute, the
Parties will attempt to mediate the dispute using a professional mediator agreeable to both Parties
with business representatives present for at least one session. In the event the dispute is not
resolved through mediation, cither Party may request fo have the matter submiited to arbitration
by giving written notice to the other Party to such effect. Immediately upon the giving of such
notice, the Parties will attempt to select an arbitrator agreeable to both Parties. If the Parties
agree upon an arbitrator, the dispute shall be arbitrated and the proceedings shall be governed by
the rules and regulations established by the arbitrator. The location of the arbitration shall be in
the County unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, and shall be governed by the laws of the State
of Nevada. All decisions by the arbitrator(s) so chosen shall be final and binding upon both
Parties and may be enforced by either Party in a court of competent jurisdiction. To the extent
possible, the Party found to be at fault shall pay the cost of any such mediation or arbitration. If
the Parties cannot agree upon an arbitrator, the dispute shall be submitted to the First District
Court of the State of Nevada. The procedures specified herein shall be the sole and exclusive
procedures for the resolution of disputes between the Parties arising out of or relating to this
Agreement; however, either Party may at any time seek a preliminary injunction or other
preliminary judicial relief from the appropriate court or other jurisdictions as the circumstances
require to prevent irreparable or immediate damage. Nothing contained herein, shall restrict
either Party’s right to seek monetary damages in addition to or independent of injunctive relief.
Despite such action, the Parties will continue to participate in good faith in the procedures
specified herein, which shall survive any termination of this Agreement.

21, Entire agreement. This Agreement is the entire Agreement of the Parties and
supersedes all prior negotiations whether written or oral.

JTHE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

Executicn Version 8




In witness whereof, the Parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first above
written.

TESLA: THE COUNTY AND FIRE DISTRICT

TESLA MOTORS, INC. STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
By: By:
Name: Marshall McBride, Chair

Board of County Comumissioners
Board of Fire Commissioners

ATTEST:

By:

County Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM

By:

District Attorney’s Office

Execution Version g




EXHIBIT A

Governmental Services

In consideration of the annual payment by Tesla for governmental services set out in this
Agreement the County and the Fire District will provide the following services:

1. The Fire District will staff and operate a fire department at Storey County Fire Station
No. 75 during the term of this Agreement to the following minimum standards:

a.

Provide ¢ full-time firefighter/paramedic (minimum) staffing level, with 2
personnel working 48 hours on duty followed by 96 hours off duty;

Maintain a minimmmm of 3 of the 6 personnel at a paramedic level certification,
which equates to at least 1 paramedic working for 48 hours on duty followed by
96 hours off duty;

Fire District will maintain this level of staffing unless an emergency exists as
declared by the Board of Fire Commissioners;

Fire District is responsible for providing adequate and appropriate training for all
fire fighter, EMS and paramedic personnel at their own expense;

e. Fire District will maintain one ALS equipped ambulance;

Fire District will maintain a Type I and/or Type 11 engine at this fire station;

Fire District will be responsible to purchase and maintain all customary and usual
EMS gear as is provided in comparable fire departments/districts; and,

Fire District will strive to maintain at all times an ISQ Pyblic Protection
Classification Rating of 3 or less for fire suppression services.

2. Storey County will provide sheriff services for the District.

3. Storey County will provide emergency management services on an as-needed basis for
the District.

4. Storey County will provide the following administrative functions for the District:

a.

Execution Version

Recording, assessor and appraiser services for real and personal property.

10




EXHIBIT B
Re-determination of Annual Fee Payments

The Projected Annual Payments in Section 5 were determined utilizing the following
assumptions and methodologies. Assume the following facts all as of February 28, 2018: The
total occupancy in the District is 1,500 people, The total occupancy in the Tahoe Reno Industrial
Center is 7,000 people. The total assessed value of all real and personal property located in the
District is $350 Million. The total assessed value of all real and personal property located in the
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center is $639.8 Million. Assume the following facts all as of February
28, 2021: The total occupancy in the District is 2,500 people. The total occupancy in the Tahoe
Reno Industrial Center is 10,000 people. The total assessed value of all real and personal
property located in the District is $700 Million. The total assessed value of all real and personal
property located in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center is $1.062 Billion.

The projected budgets for providing Governmental Services in the District by the County
and the Fire District are;

Fiscal Year ending in 2019: $ 916,437
Fiscal Year ending in 2020: $1.002,071
Fiscal Year ending in 2021: $1,019,702
Fiscal Year ending in 2022 $1,037,686
Fiscal Year ending in 2023: $1,056,030
Fiscal Year ending in 2024: $1,074,740

Factor calculations are as follows:

2018

Occupancy factor - 21.43% (1,500/7,000)

Property factor - 54.70% ($350 Million/$639.8 Million)
Payment factor - 38.07% (76.13/2)

2021

Occupancy factor - 25% (2,500/10,000)

Property factor - 65.9% ($700 Million/$1.062 Billion)
Payment factor - 45.45% (90.9/2)

The initial calculation of Tesla’s payments to the County under this Section 5 would be
as follows:

Execution Version

For the Fiscal Year ending in 2019:
For the Fiscal Year ending in 2020:
For the Fiscal Year ending in 2021:
For the Fiscal Year ending in 2022:
For the Fiscal Year ending in 2023:
For the Fiscal Year ending in 2024;

11

$348,856 (38.07% of $ 916,437)
$381,454 (38.07% of $1,002,071)
$388,166 (38.07% of $1,019,702)
$471,617 (45.45% of $1,037,686)
$479,954 (45.45% of $1,056,030)
$488,458 (45.45% of $1,074,740)




The initial amounts above will then be adjusted by the Parties by taking into account
other factors in determining the Participant’s fair share of the costs of providing Governmental
Services in the District.

For example, suppose that subsequent development in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center
has generated significant additional revenue to the County by Fiscal year 2019. Suppose further
that this additional revenue has improved the County’s financial position to the point that the
County can fund $700,000 of the $916,437 budget for Fiscal Year 2019. Assuming no other
factors suggest otherwise, Tesla’s payment to the County for Fiscal Year 2019 would be reduced
from $348,856 to $216,437.

Execution Version 12




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve second reading of Ordinance 15-263 adding
section 3.50.200 to the Storey County Code providing for a pilot project for granting partial
abatements of permitting fees to participants in a qualified project in Economic Diversification
District No. 1 and providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Ordinance 15-263.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4. Staff summary:

S.B. 1,28™ Special Sess. (Nev. 2014) allows Storey County to create an economic
diversification district and pledge an amount equal to the proceeds of all the sales and use taxes as
reimbursement payments for the costs incurred by the lead participant. The Board has passed
Ordinance 14-260 creating the Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1. Ordinance
14-260 is not effective until Storey County enters an agreement with one or more owners of property
in the district to defray in whole or in part the cost of local government services.

(Continued on next page.)

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 15-263

6. Fiscal impact: This ordinance will reduce the amount of money the County and Fire District
receive for plan checks, building permits and inspections.

7. Legal review required: Yes ME District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
QME; Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:

[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

L

Agenda Item No. q




4. Staff summary continued:

Ongoing discussions on this ordinance resulted in changes so that staff asked that the board
reintroduce the amended ordinance on its April 7™ meeting. The ordinance is now ready for
approval.

The Economic Diversification Act or S. B. 1, section 18, authorizes the governing body of
a county to grant to one or more of the participants in a qualified project an abatement of all or any
percentage of the amount of certain permitting fees and licensing fees imposed by the county if the
board provides by ordinance for a pilot project for the abatement of the fees.

The board may grant this abatement of certain fees for the purpose of encouraging local
economic development. After discussions, Tesla and county staff have agreed that the partial
abatements contained in Ordinance No. 15-263 will encourage local development. This partial
abatement is for ten years and covers the building official and fire district permitting, plan reviews,
and inspections for the Tesla factory project.




Ordinance No. 15-263

Sumrnary

An ordinance providing for a pilot project for granting partial abatements of permitting or
licensing fees that the county is authorized to impose or charge pursuant to chapter 244 of NRS
to participants in a qualified project in an Economic Diversification District.

Title

An ordinance adding section 3.50.200 to the Storey County Cede providing for
a pilot project for granting partial abatements of permitting or licensing fees to
parficipants in a qualified project in an Economic Diversification District and providing for
other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
SECTIONI:

3.50.200 Title.
This ordinance is known as the “Permitting Fee Abatement Ordinance”.

3.50.210 Determinations of the board.

The board has determined that it intends to encourage local economic development by
granting to any participant in a qualified project in an Economic Diversification District an
abatement of all or any percentage of the amount of any permitting fee or licensing feec which the
county is authorized to impose or charge pursuant to chapter 244 of NRS.

3.50.220 Definitions,
The definitions contained in the Economic Diversification Act and the Economic
Diversification District are incorporated into and are adopted for use in this chapter.

3.50.230 Creation of the pilot project. -

The board, for the purposes of encouraging local economic development, creates this pilot
project for granting partial abatements of permits, plan reviews, and inspection fees. The board
may determine, to the best of its ability, the amount of the abatement based on the anticipated
local economic development that the qualified project would bring to the county.

3.50.240 Abatement of fees.

A. The board finds that Tesla Motors, Inc. (“Tesla”) is a participant in a qualified project
within the county’s Economi¢ Diversification District No. 1. The board has determined to grant
an abatemnent of permitting fees it is authorized to impose pursuant fo chapter 244 of NRS for a
ten year period for building official and fire district permitting, plan reviews, and inspections for

Draft 5-5-2015




the factory project by fixing the following annual fees for each of the following fiscal years
ending June 30th:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Annual Fee
2015 $556,268
2016 $587.419
2017 $620,315
2018 $655,053
2019 $230,579
2020 $243,491
2021 $257,126
2022 $271,525
2023 $286,731
2024 $302,788

B. These fees are to be assessed on a fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2014.

C. The fees must be paid in advance on a quarterly basis (July 1, October 1, January 1, and
April 1.

D. These fee payments do not include payments by Tesla for additional plan reviews and
inspections that are performed by outside contractors.

E. During any year of the term of this abatement, the county may increase the annual fee
charged to Tesla during such year, with Tesla’s prior consent and approval, upon a showing by
the county to Tesla that the permitting, plan review and inspection activities required by Tesla
during such year have placed an extraordinary burden on county personnel.

F. Any abatement of fees by the County does not limit in any manner the discretion of the
County in the permitting approval process, and does not relieve the participant from the
obligation to obtain all necessary permits, entitlements and approvals for the construction of any
Project.

3.50.250 Annual report.

The board, if it grants an abatement pursuant to this chapter, must submit an annual report to
the governor and to the director of the Legislative Counsel Bureau for transmittal to the
legislature that includes for the immediately preceding fiscal year:

A. The number of qualified projects located within the jurisdiction of the board for which a
certificate of eligibility for transferable tax credits was approved. ‘

B. The number and doilar amounts of the abatements granted by the board.

C. The number of persons within the jurisdiction of the board that were employed by each
participant in a qualified project and the amount of wages paid those persons.

Proposed on , 2015,

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2015,

Draft 5-5-2015




Vote: Ayes  Commissioners

Nays Commissioners

Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Starey County Board of County Commissioners

Afttest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on

Draft 5-5-2015




Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Agenda Action Report
\ = Y
%\"V\-;
Meeting date: June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: 30 min,

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Presentation from the Nevada Department of Transportation to discuss Storey
County’s Work Program. (This item will be heard at 11:00am)

2. Recommended motion: Approve as presented.
3. Prepared by: NDOT
Department: Telephone:

4. Staff summary:
S. Supporting materials: Aftached

6. Fiscal impact: NA

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
]

Agenda Item No. |




Storey County

Board of County Commissioners

Nevada Department of Transportation

June 2015

Introductions

e

Bill Hoffrman — Deputy Director

Rorn Knecht - State Controlter, Transportation Board
Lee Bonner — Local Government Liaison

Andrea Edwards — Transportation Planner Analyst
Brad Burge ~ District 2

Steve Williams — District 2

Cristinia Leach — FHWA

Andrew Sodergorbh — FHWA

Steve Bragorgos - FHWA

\

Rudy Malfabon
Executive Director

Sondra Rosenberg
Assistant Director, Planning

Tracy Larkin-Thomason
Deputy Director

6/3/2015




NDOT LOCAL GOVERNMENT PLANNING

Annual Communication Rhythm

All Year Oct - Dec Jan - Apr

May - July July - Aug

Sept - Oct

Project Planning ! ¢ o Follow-Up
* Work Program . . -Gathi * Gather info on
|« Statewide [ cissues.
nsportati
Impravement

~County Tour i . Tribal Tour

- Réport Qut - . ' . Usten

. NDQT : Fied ol Present Overview
esenta Foliow-Gp -

Apbro_val
"+ STIP Approval
» TSP Approval -

Priority One - SAFETY

4 g

¢ Zero Fatalities
¢ Keeping You Safe and Connected

¢ NDOT projects - Safety

Next 3 slides

= Statewide Crash Data
®  Crash Density Map
=  Storey County Crash Report

6/3/2015




State-Wide Nevada fatalities by Critical Emphasis Area

5 Year Rolling Average

/

125 |-

75

50 §

2010

OQecupant Protection |

»mm e e e e e =

Motorcycles

| mpaired Driving
=~ Motorcycles

"""tefsection's' T DO st

S Impaired Driving

2011

wse|ntersections
= ccupant Protection

Pedestrians
—

2012

===Lane Departure
~aepedestrians

Storey County 5 Year Crash Density Map

Crash Density

2009 - 2014

Severity
]
2]
&  NON-INJURY

FATAL
INJURY

6/3/2015




Storey County 5 Year Crash Overview

292 Crashes

204 Non-Injury

87 Injury Crashes

117 Injuries

1 Fatal Crashes

1 Fatalities

FY16 Federal and State Funding

//

Federal Funding

- Highway Trust Fund

-  MAP21 Reauthorization

State F&nding Update

- Update on State Budget
- Overview of FY16

-

™~

TRANSPORTATION

Ask Congress to fund Transportation

6/3/2015




6/3/2015

NDOT Work Program

Storey County
Proposed Funding $77,743,127

irginia City
ELEV: 6200

FY16 $77,743,127

Proposed — Subject to change

FY16 Storey County Work Program

T 0.70ta
(Guardrail installation 543,127|
District Contract

T20140002-18

ISR 43% USA Pkwy from US 50, Lyon County, to | 80, Storey County 8T
0.00 1o 50.00

IXS201400%6-16 [Construct and extend current roadway from LS 50 ta ! 80, Design Bulld.| $77.700,000
State Gas Tax




6/3/2015

Looking Ahead

e ™
¢ Project Initiation Form
- www.nevadadot.com/pif

¢ Transportation Alternative Program
- www.nevadadot.com/tap

|
1

¢ Road Relinquishment Program

¢ Request acceptance of the FY16 projects
. S

EVADA
DOT




12015 Transportation Report

Storey County




STATE OF NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
1263 S. Stewart Street
Carson City, Nevada 89712

BRIAN SANDQWVAL RUDY MALFABON, P E., Director
Governor

Aprit 21, 2015

Dear Storey County Commissioners,

Thank you for allowing the Nevada Department of Transportation to participate in the
Storey County Commission meeting on June 16, 2015. This is a part of our annual
county consultation process and will include an update on projects for the coming
years. In addition, we will be there to listen to any concern or issue you may have
regarding our transportation system.

Our agenda includes funding information, crash data and projects scheduled for your
county. This packet will give you an overview of these items and the years they are
scheduled for construction.

We will present the Annual Work Program for fiscal year 2018, which are scheduled
for construction during the next fiscal year.

Our Short Range Elements (SRE) provide visibility into fiscal years 2017 through
2019. These work programs are on the radar provided we have the appropriate
funding levels through our state and federal governments.

We will also share Long Range Elements (LRE) for work anticipated in year 2020 and
beyond. These projects are in our system, but have not been scheduled or funded.
In working with your county we look to identify future needs and issues to further
transportation across our great state.

We look forward to presenting at your commission meeting.

Regards,

M?WJM
Rudy Malfabon, P.E.

Director
Nevada Department of Transportation




NDOT Mission, Vision, Core Values, and Goals

Mission
Providing a better transportation system for Nevada through our unified
and dedicated efforts.

Vision
The nation's leader in delivering transportation solutions, improving
Nevada's quality of life.

Core Values

+ [ntegrity — Doing the right thing.

+ Honesty — Being truthful in your actions and your words.
+ Respect — Treating others with dignity.

+ Commitment — Putting the needs of the Department first.
Accountability ~ Being responsible for your actions.

Goals

As one NDOT, our employees are key to successfully accomplishing our
mission.

+ Optimize safety.

+ Be in touch with and responsive to our customers.

* Innovate.

* Be the employer of choice.

» Deliver timely and beneficial projects and programs.
+ Effectively preserve and manage our assets.

« Efficiently operate the transportation system.




-

Mark Hutchison
Lt Governor

Ron Knecht

State Controller

Brian Sandoval
Governor_

Frank Martin
District 1

Tom Skancke
District 1

Len Savagé
District 2

Tom Fransway
District 3

Robert Nefiis
Deputy Administration

Bill Hoffman
Deputy Director

Sondra Rosenberg
Planning

Mary M'artlni
District 1

Senior Staff

Rudy Malfabon Tracy Larkin-Thomason

Director

Reid Kalser
Operations

Thor Dyson
District 2

Deputy Director

Sean Sever
Communications

Kevin Lée
District 3

John Terry
Engineering




EVADA

NDOT County Consultation Process

The Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) supports the importance of oufreach and
communication, especially in the transportation planning and programming processes. An open
exchange of information among a wide array of tfransportation users, government officials and
tribal leaders results in better decision-making and more publicly supported programs and projects.
With increasing demands on limited public resources, transportation programs and projects require
strong public support through an open and collaborative planning process.

NDOT LOCAL GOVERNMENT PLANNING

Annual Communication Rhythm

All Year Oct - Dec Jan - Apr May - July July - Aug Sept - Oct

Project Planning | |- Workshops ‘Fbllow-*l_,_l'p".__ inty Ta Tour :'A_phl"d\ial E
» Work Program. | | = Listening - Gather * Gather info on “ommission ' « STIP Approval
+ Statewide 41 CSTIPdnputand . ! issues .- - '

* TSP Approval .
- ~other information - ; | Ppovat

'_.Qou_r]_ty/Tribe:: Eend

NDOT has chosen to perform annual Workshops and Tribal Consultation visits to specific locations
in Nevada and has planned County Tour consultation visits to each of the 17 counties across the
State. NDOT will also work directly with the FHWA and the Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) to
annually update tribal transportation projects and Central Federal Lands Highway Division
(CFLLHD) projects for the Federal Lands Transportation Program and the Federal Lands Access
Program. In addition, CFLHD performs annual in-state visits to discuss ongoing and potential
projects. Tribal and CFLHD projects will be entered into the Work Program and/or STIP.

Meeting with each county commission and MPO across the state of Nevada is one piece of the
puzzle to keep counties informed, engaged and a valuable part of the transportation process.







Crash and Fatality Data - Statewide

FATAL CRASHES AND FATALITIES BY COUNTY, PERSON TYPE, DAY, MONTH, YEAR AND PERCENT CHANGE,

CURRENT SAME DATE LAST YEAR # CHANGE
Crashes Fatals " | €rashes | Fatals Fatals
41212015 1 1 411212014 1 1 0
MONTH 5 7 MONTH 10 -3
YEAR 74 79 YEAR 63 59 10
CRASH AND FATAL COMPARISON BETWEEN 2014 AND 2015, AS OF CURRENT DATE.
2014 215
COUNTY 4 2015 % 2014 2015 Alcohol | Alcohol % Alcohol | Alcohol %
Crashes Crashes | CHANGE | Fatalites | Fatalities| Change | Crashes ' Crashes ) Change |Fatalities| Fatalities| Change
CARSON 1 0 52100:00%:: 2 1] =100:00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0
CHURCHILL 1 1 1 1 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 6 0
CLARK 36 49 39 52 10 5 -50:00%: 12 [
DOUGLAS 1 1 1 1 0 1 AOGD086E 4 1
ELKO 2 1 2 1 1 0 [-100:00% 1 0
ESMERALDA 0 1 0 1 [ 0 0.00% 0 0
EUREKA 1 2 1 2 0 0 0.00% 0 0
HUMBOLDT 3 [i] 4 i} i 0 A0:00%: i 0
LANDER 3 2 3 2 9 0 0 0 1.00%
LINCOLN 0 2 0 2 0 1 0 1 I
LYON 3 2 3 2 3 1 3 1
MINERAL i} 1 0 2 0 [} 0 [\
NYE 1 3 +200.00%: % i 3 0 1 i 1
PERSHING [i] i 0.00% [i] [} 0 1] i [}
STOREY 1 D +2100.08% ¢ 1 0 0 0 9 [\
WA SHOE 10 9 i3] 10 1 ] 1 [+
WHITE PINE 0 0 ] 0 0 0 0 [t .
~_YID A3 74 69 79 i6 9 18 10 A4:44%
TOTAL 14 264 — 87 —
2014 AND 2018 ALCOHOL CRASHES AND FATALITIES ARE BASED ON VERY PRELIMINARY DATA.
COMPARISON OF FATALITIES BY PERSON TYPE BETWEEN 2014 AND 2015, AS OF CURRENT DATE.
) 204 ) o L ) 2014 | 2015
COUNTY Vehicle % 2014 | 215 s | % Other | Other
moped, [ moped,
Occupants | Occupants | Change Peds Peds Change Cyclist [ Change | Bike Bike aty atv
CARSCN 0 0 0 0 2 i} =160:00%; 0 0 0 ¢
CHURCHILL 1 1 0 0 0 g 0.00% 0 0 0 ]
CLARK 16 2 14 18 10 6 2403005 0 4 3 3
DOUGLAS 1 1 ¢ L] 0 4] 0.00% 0 1 0 ]
ELKO 2 1 ¢ 0 0 4] 0.00% 0 0 0 g
ESMERALDA 0 1 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 [i]
EUREKA 1 Z ] 1] 0 0 0.00% ] 0 0 4]
HUMBOLDT 4 [t i 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 ]
LANDER 2 1 1 1 D 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0
LINCOLN ¢ 2 9 i G 0 0.00% ] 0 i] 0
LYOMN 1 2 1] 0 1 0 100:00% 1 1] 0 0
MINERAL 1] 2 0 0 ¢ 0 0.00% 0 1] 1 0
NYE 1 3 0 0 [ 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0
PERSHING i] 1 . 0 G 9 0 0.00% 0 g 0 0
STOREY 9 ] 9.00% 0 0 1 g Z100:00% 0 ] 0 0
WASHOE 5 7 4 1 2 2 0.00% 0 i 0 0
WHITE PINE ] [ 0 L { 1] ] bij 0 0
_¥TD 34 44 15 20 16 8 1 4 3 3
TOTAL 14 146 —— 69 — 55 —— [ — 9 ——

Total 2014




uoisialg Busiaaurbuy
A1ayng nyynag

{ouT jsuaseg s
“$1811 i dund H0an)e ¥ 50|
DU S e { BN 0w yion sdioip o1 nalgns 5 ue sanos 1o Msuo
RRR0) [045 100N &q PyIdwany cang by dow sy ue e PRTREO 1G]

— —————

14 4 3 o]

AYNCNI-NON - @

ASNTNE @

Wivd @
FATIETETS

p102/1/{ - 6007/1//
Aoy Aaios

Ajisuaq ysni)

T




Storey County 5 Year Crash Data

Storey County: Age Ranges of Al Drivers in Crashes

Distracted, 5%

bstructed View, 2%




- AGGRESSIVE/RECKLESS/CARELESS

Storey County 5 Year Crash Data

Storey Ceunty: Vehicle Factors in All Crashes

‘WRONG WAY/DIRECTION
ROAD DEFECT

FOLLOWING FOO CLOSE
DISREGARD CONTROL DEVICE

EXCEEDING SPEED LINAF

MECHANICAL DEFECTS
UNSAFE LANE CHANGE
OVERCORRECT/STEERING

HITAND RUN

UNSAFE BACKING

DRIVERLESSVEHICLE

FAILED TO YEELD RIGHT OF WAY

MADE IMPROPER TURN

OBJECT AVOIDANCE

DROVE LEFT OF CENTER

OTHER IMPROPER DRIVING

UNKNCOWHN

FAILED TG MAINTAIN LANE

RAN OFF ROAD
TOO FAST FOR CONDITIONS

UNSAFE BACKING

EOLLOWING TOD CLOSE

| FAILED TO YERD RIGHT OF WAY
[ ROAD DEFECT
| DISREGARDCONTROL DEVICE
MADE IMPROPER TURN
OBJECT AVOIDANCE

UNSAFE LANE CHANGE

MECHANICAL DEFECTS
EXCEEDING SPEED LIMIT

AGGRESSIVE/RECKLESS/CARELESS

UNKNOWN

OVERCORRECT/STEERING

OTHER IMPROPER DRIVING

DROVE LEFT OF CENTER

FAILED TO MAINTAIN LANE

RAN OFF RDAD
100 FAST FOR CONDITIONS

; Storey County: Vehicle Factors in Non-Injury Crashes
AGGRESSIVE/RECKLESS/CARELESS
DISREGARD CONTROL DEVICE
EXCEEDING SPEED LIMIT
FOLLOWING TOO (LOSE
MECHANICAL DEFECTS
OVERCORRECT/STEERING

UNSAFE LANE CHANGE

DROVE 1EfT OF CENTER

UNSAFE BACKING

HIT AND RUN

OTHER IMPROPER DRIVING

FAILED TOr YEILD RIGHT OF WAY

DRIVERLESS VEHICLE

MADE IMPROPER TURN

OBJECT AVOIDANCE

FAILED TO MAINTAIN LANE

UNKNOWN
! RAN OFF ROAD
10O FAST FOR CONDITIONS







FY 2015 County Storey County
Tour Worksheet Date: June 17, 2014

Commissioners: Commissioner Bill Sjovangen, Commissioner Marshall McBride, and
Commissioner Lance Gilman,

FHWA Participants: Sue Klekar
NACO (Nevada Association of Counties): Pagny Stapleton

NDOT Participants: Mike Fuess, Jason Marty, and Scott Reeves of District IT and Jason
Van Havel, Rebecca Kapuler Catherine Cuccaro, Jana Mabry, and Melissa Chandler of
Transportation Multi-modal Planning.

Mr. Jason Van Havel discussed County Tour Talking points:

Funding update;

Status of Road Relinquishment Program;

Highway safety issues including the status of fatal crashes in the County;
Reviewing past issues and concerns of the Commission;

Requesting the Commissioners to vote for acceptance of the Work Program;
and,

¢ Other issues.

When Mr. Van Havel introduced staff he mentioned that two of the staff in attendance
worked in the transit section of Transportation Multi-modal planning section. e added that
Storey County is the only county in Nevada that does not have a transit partnership with
NDOT. He stated that if the commissioners wanted to initiate a transit program to contact
NDOT.

Mr. Van Havel shared the website regarding the 180 Corridor Study, www I180vision.org.
Discussion occurred pertaining to 341 and 342- there is not any construction scheduled for
this construction year on these roads. The topic of USA Parkway was raised and discussion
took place regarding funding, or lack of funding, for the projected project.

The Commissioners inquired about 6 Mile Canyon and there was interest in making this
roadway a State Highway. Mr. Van Havel suggested that the Commission talk with Bob
Madewell in Roadway Systems. Roadway Systems staff will be meeting with staff from
each county to discuss roadway relinquishments.

With no other questions or comments and no public comment, the commissioners
accepted NDOT’s 2015-2024 Work Program.




1. Introductions

Storey County

FY 2015 Transportation Planning Workshop

October 28, 2014 9am

Mike Nevin, Storey Co. Public Works

Dean Haymore, Storey County

Dessie Redmond, Storey County

Cherie Nevin, Storey County

Anita Lyday, NDOT District 2

Steve Williams, NDOT District 2

Scott Reeves, NDOT District 2

Coy Peacock, NDOT Planning

Catherine Cuccaro, NDOT Planning

Raymond Enerio, NDOT

2. Previous County Concerns

3. County Issues — We want to hear from you!

e USA Pkwy: Per Dean, the road became NDOT'’s yesterday. (The County Commissioner's
signed an agreement?) Dean has been working with Rudy, Bill & Pedro.

« [ NDQOT is taking over maintenance now, District needs to know. Snow season is coming and
District wasn't expecting maintenance of USA Pkwy untit after its completion. Signs on USA
Pkwy are not to NDOT standards and will need to be replaced. (Also, Portofinoe St at USA Pkwy
has wrong name.)

» Mike (Storey County): There is a chain up sign in the median of USA Pkwy. If NDOT needs to
remove it, Mike would like it back.

« Follow-up>  The chain up sign has not yet been changed out. i is stilt the Storey County's
sign. lt should be changed out by the next winter.

. 9am {ockwood Interchange

The workshop group met at the Lockwood Intg to discuss the county’s concerns regarding the
frontage road. Per Steve, there is a mill and fill scheduled for the frontage road next year and it is a
priority for the district. There was also a request to re-stripe the frontage road in the mean time.
They did understand it was late in the season but the residents of Lockwood had complained about
it. District said they would look into it but with only two crews may be difficult. Dean also asked
about the road at the Patrick Intg. That road also is on the betterment list for next year. They also
requested possible restripe of Patrick’s frontage road and District will look in that as well,
Follow-up> These were re-stripped twice and the pavement marking were added.

10am Virginia City. Curb, gutter, sidewalks {replacement and additional sidewalks)

Following the Lockwood review, the group met back up in Virginia City to review the county’s curb,
gutter and sidewalk concerns along C St. (SR 341).

Storm drains/manholes at Flowery St. tie into Storey Co sewer. Mike would like them cleaned.
Follow-up> The Storm drains have been cleaned out, right after the first of the year.

C SUVSR 341: NDOT responsibility is back of curb to back of curb, sidewalks are not ours.

Maintenance is responsibility of property owners.

Across from Washoe Club near Comstock Museum and in front of the old Fire House, Storey

County did a pilot sidewalk project and replaced spotty asphalt with pavers. (SHPO approved.) The

county would like to extend and add more. {East side of C St.) Also on the East side of C St

between Taylor St and Union St is where the sidewalk is the worst and some areas will need the
Page1of3




Storey County
FY 2015 Transportation Planning Workshop
October 29, 2014 9am
subfloor fixed before the curb could be replaced. Storey County has correction orders they can use
but some of the building subfloors under the sidewalk planks are pretty bad. C St is not scheduled
for overlay for several years and this would be an opportunity to add some of this to a 3R project.

Coy recommended that they submit a phased/prioritized list for possible extensions of the pilot
project and the other curb repair and replacement through the Transportation Alternatives Program
(TAP). County contributions of cash or “in-kind” services may help improve project ranking and
viability. If we work together it can be fixed much faster. There are several old curb cut for old
driveways not in use today. Deteriorated curb and gutter across Union at the C Street intersection.
The deteriorated gutter near the Storey County IT shop and The Way It Was Museum (east side of
C St on north end of town) is a primary safety concern of the county’s. The gutter is all but gone
and there is a 2” to 3" drop off from the pavement to the dirt. Per Steve, the concrete job would
need to be contracted out by the district as it's not a small job.

Storey County is looking into establishing a Redevelopment District, Historic Preservation Program
Funding (this is more for the buildings) and Commission of Cultural Affairs funding. This would also
allow them to team with us on these sidewalks projects.

The county was encouraged to use the online Project Initiation Form (PIF) for all projects and
needs.

Follow-up> As of this date we have not received any PIF applications.

They asked about the accidents on the Freeway at the USA Parkway exit but Steve stated it was on
the mainline issue and not because of the on and off from the exits. They also spoke of a blind spot
on the WB exit at USA Parkway?

Follow-up=> A Road Safety Analysis (RSA) has been completed,

There was also concern about SR 341 and US 50 new intersection. The trucks are constantly
running over the curb at the T-intersection when heading EB on US 50. They really miss the
sweeping right when heading WB on US 50. Steve explained there was not enough length for an
acceleration lane due to the businesses on the North side of US 50.

Follow-up> There has been no change to dale as this is a part of the new construction.

4. The Planning Process
e Coy explained the Transportation System Projects (TSP) cycle. We're finishing up the TSP
document to take to the transportation board in November for their approval, which includes
what we came out to all the counties with during the Spring County Tours (County Commission
meetings), and now we're starting up the Fall County Workshops (to start the whole {(yearly)
process over again of building the TSP, Statewide Transportation Improvement Program and 1
year Work Program, Short and Long Range Elements.

5. Project initiation Form (PIF)

¢ The Project Initiation Form was discussed and the county was encouraged to submit PiF’s for
their requested projects and needs.

Page2of 3




Storey County
FY 2015 Transportation Planning Workshop
October 29, 2014 9am
6. Future Workshop Agenda items
¢ No one had any future agenda items..

Page 3 of 3







TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM
TAP Projects

Award Cycle 2015

County Project Applicant Amount
Carson City Health and
CAMPO  |Western Nevada SRTS Coordinator Human Services $125,000
Carson City Freeway Shared Use Path Carson City $650,000
Clark Ciark County Safe Routes to Schools (SRTS) Clark County School
Coordinator District $96.170
Douglas State Route 756, Centerville Road Bike Lane Douglas County $600,000
County Road Improvements Minden $314,198
Elko HARP Trail Extension City of Elko $238,632
T™MPO Nevada Stateline to Stateline Bikeway North Demo,
Shared Use Path TTD $650,000
Washoe Katherine Dunn Elementary School Pedestrian Washoe County School
Improvements District $26,000
Total $2,700,000

FY16 TAP Process

Transportation Alternatives Program
1. NDOT announces the TAP funding cycle is open (prinfed in newspapers across the State,
advertised on the NDOT home page and via email-to inferested parties)

2. Applications are received by the due date (electronically via the Project Initiation Form)
www.nevadadot.com/pif

3. NDOT and FHWA review to verify that projects are TAP eligible.

4.  TAP Scoring Committee receives, reviews and recommends a ranking of applications based
on established scoring criteria

5. NDOT staff compiles the list of TAP projects and provides to NDOT Director for approval.

8.  Applicants are notified if they have been successful or if they need to reapply.

For more information please go to www. nevadadot.com/tap




Storey County
Proposed Funding $77,743,127

FY16 $77,743,127

Proposed — Subject to change




Annual Work Program / Short Range Element / Long Range Element

INTROGDUCTICON

This section of the Transportation System Projects document contains the ANNUAL WORK PROGRAM,
SHORT RANGE ELEMENT, and LONG RANGE ELEMENT listed by County.

The ANNUAL WORK PROGRAM (AWP} includes: FY16 - Fiscal Year 2016
* Construction projects NDOT intends to start work on or participate in during the coming
Federal Fiscal Year 2016
*  Construction projects NDOT plans to award to contractors
*  Major Maintenance work initiated by NDOT which may be completed by the end of the
Federal Fiscal Year 2016.

The AWP is considered the Department’s capital improvement program for the Federal Fiscal Year 2016, All
projects are subject to the availability of state and federal funds as well as staff resources. Problems in
financing, engineering, right-of-way acquisitions, or revised priorities may delay the completion of any
project listed.

The SHORT RANGE ELEMENT (SRE) includes: FY17 - FY19
*  Construction projects proposed for Federal Fiscal Year 2017 — 2019,
*  Construction projects NDOT plans to award to contractors
*  Major maintenance work initiated by NDOT to be completed by FY17.

The LONG RANGE ELEMENT (LRE) identifies: FY20 and beyond
Construction projects the State, the four Metropolitan Planning Organizations, and local
governments would like to have initiated within Federal Fiscal Years 2020 through 2025,

PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT DIVISION
Nevada Department of Transportation
1263 South Stewart Street
Carson City, Nevada 89712 (775) 888-7122




How to read the Work Program table and data

DEFINITIONS OF PROJECT ID OR CODE
(MAP LOCATION NUMBER)

PROJECT ID COLOR CODES USED ON MAPS:

Annual Work Program Fiscal Year 2016 Red
Short Range Elements 2017 - 2019 Green
Long Range Elements 2020 and beyond Blue

PROJECT ID CODE: WA20160003-16
WA20160003-16; These Two Letters designate the county

WA20160003-16: Starting with the FY 2016 AWP these Four Number designate the Fiscal Year
the Project was entered into the AWP

WA20160003-16: Starting with the FY 2016 AWP these Four Numbers are assigned to the Project
to differentiate it from Other Projects within the same County and
Fiscal Year

WA20160003-16: These Two Numbers represents the Year the Project is to be funded

WA20160003-LRE: A Project or Phase of a Project that has not been scheduled for funding is
listed as a Long Range Element (LRE)*

*When the Project or Phase is scheduled for funding it moves from the LRE to the AWP or to the Short
Range Element and is assigned a Project ID Code.

COUNTY IDENTIFIER ABBREVIATIONS

CC - Carson City EU - Eureka County NY — Nye County

CH — Churchill County HU — Humboldt County PE — Pershing County

CL ~Clark County LA - Lander County ST —Storey County

DO - Douglas County LN — Lincoln County WA — Washoe County

EL — Elko County LY —Lyon County WP - White Pine County

ES — Esmeralda County MI — Mineral County







NDOT Projects: Storey County

Fiscal Year 2016 Work Program

Prepared by: Fhiz Map is for display purposes only.
Nevada Department of Transporation No Hability is assumed for the information
April, 2015 displaged hereon.




Storey County FY16 Work Program

" Location ProlectD S—

Virginia City truck route, southbound a
480'. ST 0.70 to

5T20140002-16

7 forax. .

Build.
State Gas _Tax

Guardrail installation $43,127
District Contract
SR 439 USA Pkwy from US 50, Lyon County, to | 80, Storey
County ST 0.00 to 10.00
XS520140015-16 Construct and extend current roadway from US 50 to | 80. Design | $77,700,000




Thank you for allowing the
Nevada Department of Transportation
to engage with the Commissioners, County

Staff and citizens of Storey County.




uoisialq fupsauifuy
Apagng a1yyni)

S5 5P DN 3408 oM aB s p diaite
o waig s L gN &9 pofdasy Gao suy Jacw syt e papn]iua uaniouioiy sl

. ——p——

¥ 4 3 o

AYNTNIFNON @

AdNrNl @
TVlvd @
Ajenag

102/1/1 - 6002/1/(
Apinoy Aaro45

Ayisuaq ysna)




NDOT Intersection Detail

PROPERTY DAMAGE#4
INJURY CRASH _
{PROPERTY DAMAGE

INJURY CRASH 2013
INJURY CRASH , 2013
INJURY CRASH 2 2013
PROPERTY DAMAGE3 2013
PROPERTY DAMAGE(8-Api 2013
PROPERTY DAMAGE13-Ap 2013
PROPERTY DAMAGHT6:A 2013
INJURY CRASH [ 2013
INJURY CRASH " 2013
PROPERTY DAMAGE? 2013
INJURY CRASH 2013
INJURY CRASH 2013
PROPERTY DAMAGE22:M 2013 1040
INJURY CRASH 26:M 2013 |
PROPERTY DAMAG 2013 {024
PROPERTY DAMAGE! 2013 |
INJURY CRASH 0 2013
PROPERTY DAMAGE14: 2013
INJURY CRASH 26- 2013
.[PROPERTY DAMAGEZ2 12013
|PROPERTY DAMAGH 2013
{INJURY CRASH , 2013
PROPERTY DAMAGH® 2013
PROPERTY DAMAGED 2013 F
PROPERTY DAMAGE 2013 {02
PROPERTY DAMAGE 2013 09
INJURY CRASH 2013 [08:2
PROPERTY DAMAGE? 2013
' 2013 -
2013
2013

2013

2013

2013

INJURY CRASH 2013
INJURY CRASH 2013
INJURY CRASH 2013 |
PROPERTY DAMAGE 2013 1
PROPERTY DAMAGEQ; | 2013
PROPERTY DAMAGE]: 2013
PROPERTY DAMAGE 2013
PROPERTY DAMAGE 2013
INJURY CRASH 2013

2013




PROPERTY DAMAG
INJURY CRASH
PROPERTY DAMAG
PROPERTY DAMAG
PROPERTY DAMAG

INJURY CRASH
PROPERTY DAMAG
PROPERTY DAMAG
PROPERTY DAMAG

INJURY CRASH
PROPERTY DAMAG
INJURY CRASH

PROPERTY DAMAGE
{INJURY CRASH
INJURY CRASH D9
PROPERTY DAMAGEZ]z!
FATAL CRASH 06
PROPERTY DAMAGEH

PROPERTY DAMAGE
PROPERTY DAMAGED?
PROPERTY DAMAGE
{PROPERTY DAMAGE
PROPERTY DAMAGEJ:
PROPERTY DAMAG
PROPERTY DAMAG , {
PROPERTY DAMAGE{7:Jin2014.| 2014 |0-

Additional Detail on File with the Storey County Clerk’s Office




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required []

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve Resolution 15-428 authorizing the transfer of
funds to the Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association for crack-sealing on Cartwright
Road.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Ordinance 15-428 authorizing the transfer of funds to
the Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association for crack-sealing on Cartwright Road .

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten Department: Commissioner’s Office Tel: 847-0968

4. Staff summary:

For the current fiscal year ending June 30, 2015, a line item was placed in the Community
Services budget in the amount of $40,000 with the intent channeling $10,000 to each of the four
distinct communities in the County. The two active Highlands Property Owner’s Associations have
Joined together to collectively request the $10,000 dedicated to the Highlands to be applied toward a
crack-sealing project on the portion of Cartwright Road that is not owned by Storey County. As this
portion is heavily travelled by County staff, inclusive of Fire/EMS and Sheriff’s Deputies, staff
believes this is a most appropriate expenditure and fully meets the spirit and intent and the
“community fund” concept. Staff extends our appreciation to both the Virginia City Highlands
POA, under the leadership of Jay Carmona and the Highland Ranches POA, under the leadership of
Craig Chanslor for their dedicated efforts to make this a reality and we recommend approval of
Resolution 15-428,

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 15-428 and Letter of Request from both the 1 and 10 Acre
Property Owner’s Associations Boards of Directors

6. Fiscal impact: $10,000 as budgeted in the current FYE 2015 budget
7. Legal review required: Yes Daistrict Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

@Munty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e
—t

Agenda Item No. ] 3




RESOLUTION NO. 15- 428

RESOLUTION Authorizing Transfer of Funds to Virginia City Highlands Property
Owners Association for Crack-Sealing of Cartwright Road.

WHEREAS, NRS 244.1505 authorizes a Board of County Commissioners to grant
money to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes to be

expended for an authorized purpose; and

WHEREAS, a grant to a non-profit organization must be made by a resolution of the
board of county commissioners which must specify the purpose of the grant and any conditions

imposed upon the expenditure of the granted moneys; and,

WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes if the
sole or primary purpose of the organization is to advance a public purpose or provide services
that are otherwise required to be provided by a local government and the organization is

operating in this state, See NRS 372.3261; and,

WHEREAS, an organization that qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes

must also meet the requirements that:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the benefit of a private
shareholder, individual or entity;

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

(¢) No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted to the advocacy of

any political principle or the defeat or passage of any state or federal legislation;




(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf
of or in opposition to any candidate for public office; and,

(¢) Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is claimed is used by
the organization in this State in furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational

purposes of the organization.
NRS 372.2361(5); and,

WHEREAS, the Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association (VCHPQA) is a
Nevada domestic non-profit corporation operating in the State of Nevada which otherwise
appears to qualify as a charitable organization authorized to receive grants from the County for a

public purpose; and,

WHEREAS, the VCHPOA desires to obtain a grant from Storey County in the amount
of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) for the purpose of paying for a portion of the costs of crack-

sealing Cartwright Road between Lousetown Road and Saddleback Road; and,

WHEREAS, the crack-sealing of Cartwright Road will allow greater access of public
safety and fire vehicles, use of the road by the residents of the area, access by public and private
entities providing services in the area and is a function that has been provided by Storey County

in the past and does thereby serve a public purpose; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County has previously

appropriated funds for the requested grant by approval of the County budget;




NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

1. The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County does hereby grant to the
VCHPOA the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) for the specific purpose of
defraying the expenses of crack-sealing Cartwright Road between Lousetown Road and

Saddleback Road.

ADOPTED this day of June, 2015.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer




-

g

e
f:gV’- ’,p@;&

el

A
R
b Bws Aol
, g\.,
s i

"~ Lillian Henyy, Dif
Lot Ll 2L

iohn S l’lfﬂ?}i r, Director

.\\ﬁ’;{? ) . . . - o \-M !

i ¢ -y

_Micl‘%el Riley, Director




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approve bid award for Public Works Project No. ST-2015-181; Cape Seal Project on
approximately 12.31 miles of selected roads and streets in Storey County.

2. Recommended motion: Motion to approve bid award for Public Works Project No. ST-2015-181 to the
low bidder, Sierra Nevada Construction Inc. in the amount of $1,044,830.00 for Storey County
Public Works Cape Seal Project.

3. Prepared by: Mike Nevin
Department: Public Works Telephone: 847-0958

4. Staff summary: Staff recommends approval of award of bid to the lowest responsive bidder, Sierra
Nevada Construction, Inc. All documents and bid package conform to requirements of NRS 332
and 338 as applicable.

5. Supporting materials:
ALL ATTACHED:
A. PWP ST-2015-181 Bid Tabulation / Comparisons
B. Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc. Bid Submittal and Contract Documents (applicable sections)
C. Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc. — Bid Bond - Licenses and Permits
D. Farr West Engineering — Letter of Recommendation of Award

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: YES Fund: Infrastructure and Roads Budgets ~ Comptroller %

7. Legal review required:

District Attomey
8. Reviev;f)i by:
AN Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. | 4




xs[x'qep prg [eagaduy onkorog
Aunen) Aaoig

1o

$102/87/5
wefo1d [eag ade) $107

FuusomBug 15044 Leg

T I quey

00°SS9°LLI'TS 00'08F"0IE' LS 00°0£8"pHO°TS TEI0L
00°05L'09FS SL'YS 00°0£8°225S 6E'SS 00'0L9°'865% 11'v8 AS ] 000'L6 397 YL ¥
00°S61°L0€S 6513 00°0£L°L¥ES 61'5% 00°095°992% 86'€S AS |_000°29 AND Bl £
00°SE6'vLEs 1A% 00076 6¥ES A%z} 00'056°61€3 $6'ES AS | 000'18 SPUETUSLH DA 4
00" mE_ ?\.ﬁ 66'v3 00°00G" om& 0093 oc Omm mmm LE'ES AS | 0001 mBBmm Ewk..w V_GE [

Buyoswuy 8o Led ‘g4 wewA Jorn avoupBuy

Awnoyy £alolg LruM

Wd 00:T 1L

S107 ‘LT AR ‘Aepsaupapy, iasE(

12568 AN ‘ouay 'y smg ‘oue  A3jSuc] zpps Suusomdug 1sep, Uz uopese| Sumadg pig

(181-6102-1S "ON dMd)
109foid |eag ade) GLoz
Aunon Aal1038

avidag




FARR WEST

ENGINEERING

May 28, 2015

Mr. Mike Nevin

Storey County

100 Toll Road

Virginia City, NV §9440

RE: BID ACCEPTANCE 2015 CAPE SEAL PROJECT
Mr. Nevin,

As you are aware, Storey County (County) held the bid opening for the 2015 Cape Seal Project on May,
27 2015. Sierra Nevada Construction (SNC) is the apparent low bidder with a total bid cost of
$1,044,830.00. SNC met the various bid requirements with a complete and balanced bid that contained
all required submittals.

Farr West has performed a due diligence check on SNC by checking references, Nevada State
Contractor’s Board, debarment, Secretary of State, and the Labor Commissioner. The references were all
posttive; the general consensus is that they are more than competent to complete the work. A search of
the Contractor’s Board shows no disciplinary action against SNC and they are within their licensed limits.
A search for “Sierra Nevada Construction” in the System for Award Management showed that SNC has
no active exclusions or delinquencies. A search of the Secretary of State shows that SNC is in current and
good standing. Lastly, a search of the Labor Commissioner shows no action as well. SNC has over 25
years of experience, and as a company, has performed many local construction projects including asphalt
sealing and maintenance.

SNC has provided the low bid and appears to be competent in performing the work; therefore, Farr West
recommends that the County award the complete project construction to Sierra Nevada Construction.

If you have any questions or require additional information regarding this letter, please feel free to contact
me,

Sincerely,

Greg Lyman, P.E.
Project Manager

5442 Longley Lane, Suite A » Reno, Nevada 89511 + (775) 851-4788
421 Court Street « Elko, Nevada 89801 » (775) 738-2121

www.farrwestengineering.com




Contract Documents

Storey County
2015 Cape Seal Project

Storey County, NV
Public Works Project No.
ST-2015-181"

April, 2015

OWNER;
Storey County
100 Toll Road
Virginia City, Nevada 89440
(775) 847-0958

ENGINEER:
FARR WESTB
ENGINEERING
Farr West Engineering
5442 l.ongley Lane, Suite A
Reno, NV 89511

(775) 851-4788
(775) 851-0766 Fax




TABLE OF CONTENTS

00010~ TABLE OF CONTENTS
00100 - ADVERTISEMENT

00200 — INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

00410 —BID FORM

00430 — BID BOND

00440 ~ SUB-SUPPLIER

00450 — QUALIFICATIONS STATEMENT

00510 —NOTICE OF AWARD

00520 - AGREEMENT

00550 - NOTICE TO PROCEED

00610 — PERFORMANCE BOND

00615 ~PAYMENT BOND

00700 — GENERAL CONDITIONS

00800 — SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

00840 — ENGINEER’S SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS
00900 - PREVAILING WAGE RATES COVER

00950 — PREVAILING WAGE RATES

00975 - PREVAILING WAGE RATES AMENDMENTS
02785 — TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

APPENDIX A — PROJECT MAPS

Storey County 00010 FWE #8588
2015 Cape Seal Project Table of Contents Contract Documents (Aprif 2015)




STOREY COUNTY

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
2015 CAPE SEAL PROJECT
PWP No. ST-2015-181
May 6, 2015

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

Sealed Bids for the construction of the Storey County 2015 Cape Seal Project will be
received, by Farr West Engineering, at the office of Farr West Engineering, 5442 Longley
Lane, Suite A, Reno, NV 89511, until 2:00 p.m. local time on Wednesday, May 27, 2015, at
which time the Bids received will be publicly opened and read. The work generally involves the
placing of approximately 260,000 Square yards of 3/8” and/or 1/2” chip seal, Type III Rapid Setting
Slurry Seal and Type II Shurry Seal in Virginia City, Virginia City Highlands, Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, and Mark Twain Estates in Storey County, Nevada.

The Contractor will have 21 calendar days to reach substantial completion and 28 calendar days to reach
final completion of the Work in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

The Engineer’s Opinion of Probable cost for this project is estimated at $1,200,000.

Bids will be received for a single prime Contract. Bids shall be on a wnit price basis as indicated in
the Bid Form.

The Issuing Office for the Bidding Documents is: Farr West Engjneering, 5442 Longley Lane, Suite
A, Reno, Nevada 89511, 775-851-4788, Attn: Cuyler Frisby cuyler@farrwestengineering.com.
Prospective Bidders may examine the Bidding Documents at the Issuing Office on Mondays through
Fridays between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p-m., and may obtain copies of the Bidding Documents
from the Issuing Office as described below. '

Bidding Documents may be viewed and ordered online by registering with the Issuing Office at
http://www.farrwestengineering.com/bidroom. html. Following registration, complete sets of Bidding
Documents may be downloaded from the Issuing Office’s website as portable document format (PDF) -
files. The cost of printed Bidding Documents from the Issuing Office will depend on the number and size
of the Drawings and Project Manual, applicable taxes, and shipping method selected by the prospective
Bidder. Cost of Bidding Documents and shipping is non-refundable. Upon Issuing Office’s receipt of
payment, printed Bidding Documents will be sent via the prospective Bidder’s delivery method of choice;
the shipping charge will depend on the shipping method chosen. The date that the Bidding Documents
are transmitted by the Issuing Office will be considered the Bidder’s date of receipt of the Bidding
Documents. Partial sets of the Bidding Documents will not be available from the Issuing Office.

A 5% bid security shall be furnished in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders. All bidders shall be
licensed and qualified by the Nevada State Contractor’s Board to do the type of work contemplated for
this project prior to the time of opening of said bids and shall be skilled and regularly engaged in the
general class or type of work.

This proposal to the Owner is irrevocable for a period of sixty (60) days after the date of the bid opening.
The right is reserved by the Owner to reject any and all bids, waive irregularities, informalities, or non-
conformities; or to accept the bids deemed in their best inferest, such as the lowest, responsible,

EJCDC® C-111, Suggested Advertisement for Bids for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Councit of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. Al rights reserved. Page 1




responsive bid. The right to add or delete items, or change quantities shown on the bid forms is further
reserved by the Owner. Omission or improper completion of any or all of the proper bidding documents
may be considered as a reason for rejection of the Bid..

Published:

Comstock Chronicle

Owner: Sterey County

By:
Title:
Date:

Mike Nevin
Public Works Director
May 6, 2015

END OF ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

EICDC® C-11%, Suggested Advertisement for Bids for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. Page2




SECTION 00200

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
Article I —Defined TEITNS ...oiiirii ettt et oo es e e eaee et eeeeeseeeee s ee e 1
Article 2 — Caopies of Bidding DOCUTIENTS «....cuuu it oot esese s e e ses s oo I

Article 3 — Qualifications of BIAErS .....ocovvveveicoieotesssceeceeeccaaes s s eeseeesenseeeneee |
Article 4 -~ Site and Other Areas; Existing Site Conditions; Examination of Site; Owner’s Safety Program;

Other WOrk A the SIEe .....uiiuiiei ettt e st e s e ees st se et e 3
Article 5 — Bidder’s REPIESEIHATIONS ...ovueuorrierairieieemeeeeeee e tteeeeseecere e eeeeenesee e s e s e st s seseesene 4
Article 6 — Pre-Bid CONFEIENCE. ........o.ov ettt ettt eee e ee s e e e s s e s s 4
Article 7 - Intérpretations and Addenda 5
ATCIE 8 — Bt SECUTTLY ....oreiir ittt st e ee e s esesseme s et e e e eee e seeeee e 5
ATHICIE 9 — CONTACE TIMES. .uvuitieceeecieeecresceeesets e est e eee e see s st s e s e eee e em s st s e seee et seee e ee s 5
Article 10 — Liquidated DamMAZES .....c..veueceercrecmrrieraenuernseesesssese e eee s steessassemeeess e seeseeeseeseeeeseeeseeeeses 5
Article 11 — Substitute and “Or-EQUAL” IEEIMS ..o.oivoureiueeeee et s e e eeere e ee e eee e 5
Article 12 — Subcontractors, SUPPHETS, @I OIS u.vu..eeeeeecrieiee et e ee s e ens 6
Article 13 — Preparation 0F Bid ... eeecceetie it ssessssssss et seeesesssesassseeseses e seeseeeeeeeeee e eeeee e 7
ATHCIE 14 — Basis 0F Bi......coiuceiriicirire et et e e enee st st s e eeee e e eeee e 7
Article 15 — SUBIMITAL O Bid......oocooeeeeree ettt eees s ees s et 8
Article 16 — Modification and WithdraWal 0F BId .........co.uiveveeeresevieeceeeeeeeenereseesesssssss e eeesseseeeesone 8
Article 17 — Opening 6f Bids............ ettt ettt et et c st renee e e bt ben e e e et srere e eanne st eaen e ©
Article 18 — Bids to Remain Subject 10 ACCEPIANCE c....ovvcv.irev oot et ess s s et e eeeeeees oo 9
Article 19 —Evaluation of Bids and AWard 0f COMTact......vovueuiieeeceeecee e e eeees oo 9
Article 20 — Bonds and INSUTANCE ..........cccvevceenecoevennriernrssereesse e et ettt e n et ns 10
Article 21 — Signing ongreement....‘...............;.........................; .............................................................. 16
Article 22 — Sales and USE TAXES. ... iueceeceerirererernsesessessssssssesseesscesessssessmcssaesesesesesseeemsssssessssseessses oo 10
Article 23 — Contracts 10 De ASSIZENE ....oovuceoreeiriceeeeeecee e s e e eee et 10
Article 24 — Wage Rate REGUITEIMENTS ......ocovucrerereerr ettt eee e sesesemse e e e eseem e s s s 11
ATtICIE 25 — RETAIMAZE ....ccovveererecreeneireeeieiasistssconseanseerssssesssssssessestseeeseseeeeneeeesssssasesessssms st eeeseeeeeesesnas i1
Atrticle 26 — Nevada Public Works REGUITEIMENES «.....covvvuveieecececreeeeem et e e 11
ATHICIE 27 — PAMOEIING ......coeeo e creeereeeecstessets e re e sse st see s s s st eeeme e e s e s e s s eee et et s eee e eeeeeee 11

EJCDC® C-200, Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Construction Contracts.
Copyright @ 2013 National Society of Professicnal Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.  Page




ARTICLE 1 - DEFINED TERMS

101

Terms used in these Instructions to Bidders have the meanings indicated in the General
Conditions and Supplementary Conditions. Additional terms used in these Instructions to Bidders
have the meanings indicated below:

A.  Issuing Office — The office from which the Bidding Documents are to be issued
electronically,

ARTICLE 2 - COPIES OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS

201

2.02

2.03

Complete sets of the Bidding Documents may be obtained from the Issning Office in the number
and format stated in the advertisement or invitation to bid.

Complete and unaltered sets of Bidding Documents shall be used in preparing Bids; neither
Owner nor Engineer assumes any responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the
use of incomplete sets of Bidding Documents.

Owner and Engineer, in making copies of Bidding Documents available on the above terms, do
so only for the purpose of obtaining Bids for the Work and do not authorize or confer a license
for any other use.

ARTICLE 3 - QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

To demonstrate Bidder’s qualifications to perform the Work, Bidder shall submit with its Bid (a)
written evidence establishing its qualifications such as financial data, previous experience, and
present commitments, and (b) the following additional information:

A. Evidence of Bidder’s authority to do business in the county and state where the Project is
located.

Bidder’s state or other contractor license number, if applicable.

C. Subcontractor and Supplier qualification information; coordinate with provisions of Article
12 of these Instructions, “Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others.”

D. Other required information regarding qualifications.

A Bidder’s failure to submit required qualification information within the times indicated may
disqualify Bidder from receiving an award of the Contract.

No requirement in this Article 3 to submit information will prejudice the right of Owner to seek
additional pertinent information regarding Bidder’s qualifications.

Bidder is advised to carefully review those portions of the Bid Form requiring Bidder’s
representations and certifications.

ARTICLE 4 - SITE AND OTHER AREAS; EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS; EXAMINATEON OF
SITE; OWNER’S SAFETY PROGRAM; OTHER WORK AT THE SITE

4.01

Site and Other Arveas

A. The Site is identified in the Bidding Documents. By definition, the Site includes rights-of-
way, easements, and other lands furnished by Owner for the use of the Contractor. Any
additional lands required for temporary construction facilities, construction equipment, or
storage of materials and equipment, and any access needed for such additional lands, are to
be obtained and paid for by Contractor.

EICDC® C-200, Suggested [nstructions to Bidders for Construction Contracts.
Copynght © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. Al rights reserved. Pagel




4.02  Fxisting Site Conditions
A.  Subsurface and Physical Conditions; Hazardous Environmental Conditions
1. The Supplementary Conditions identify:

a.  those reports known to Owner of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at
or adjacent to the Site. )

b. those drawings known to Owner of physical conditions relating to existing surface
or subsurface structures at the Site (except Underground Facilities).

¢. reports and drawings known to Owner relating to Hazardous Environmental
Conditions that have been identified at or adjacent to the Site.

d. Technical Data contained in such reports and drawings.

2. Owner will make copies of reports and drawings referenced above available to any
Bidder on request. These reports and drawings are not part of the Contract Documents,
but the Technical Data contained therein upon whose accuracy Bidder is entitled to rely,
as provided in the General Conditions, has been identified and established in the
Supplementary Conditions. Bidder is responsible for any interpretation or conclusion
Bidder draws from any Technical Data or any other data, interpretations, opinions, or
information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings.

3.  If the Supplementary Conditions do not identify Technical Data, the default definition
of Technical Data set forth in Article 1 of the General Conditions will apply.

B. Underground Facilities: Information and data shown or indicated in the Bidding Documents
with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the Site are set forth in
the Contract Documents and are based upon information and data furnished to Owner and
Engineer by owners of such Underground Facilities, including Owner, or others.

C.  Adequacy of Data: Provisions concerning responsibilities for the adequacy of data farnished
to prospective Bidders with respect to subsurface conditions, other physical conditions, and
Underground Facilities, and possible changes in the Bidding Documents due to differing or
unanticipated subsurface or physical conditions appear in Paragraphs 5.03, 5 .04, and 5.05 of
the General Conditions. Provisions concerning responsibilities for the adequacy of data
furnished to prospective Bidders with respect to a Hazardous Environmental Condition at the
Site, if any, and possible changes in the Contract Documents due to any Hazardous
Environmental Condition uncoveréd or revealed at the Site which was not shown or
indicated in the Drawings or Specifications or identified in the Contract Documents to be
within the seope of the Work, appear in Paragraph 5.06 of the General Conditions.

4.03  Site Visit and Testing by Bidders

A. Bidder shall conduct the required Site visit during normal working hours, and shall not
disturb any ongoing operations at the Site.

B. Bidder is not required to conduct any subsurface testing, or exhaustive investigations of Site
conditions.

C.  On request, and to the extent Owner has control over the Site, and schedule permitting, the
Owner will provide Bidder access to the Site to conduct such additional examinations,
investigations, explorations, tests, and studies as Bidder deems necessary for preparing and
submitting a successful Bid. Owner will not have any obligation to grant such access if
‘doing so is not practical because of existing operations, security or safety concerns, or
restraints on Owner’s authority regarding the Site.

D. Bidder shall comply with all applicable Laws and Regulations regarding excavation and
location of utilities, obtain all permits, and comply with all terms and conditions established
EICDC® C-200, Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Canstruction Contracts.

Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.  Page 2




by Owner or by property owners or other entities controlling the Site with respect to
schedule, access, existing operations, security, liability insurance, and applicable safety
programs.

E. Bidder shall fill all holes and clean up and restore the Site to its former condition upon
completion of such explorations, investigations, tests, and studies.

4.04  Owner's Safety Program

A. Site visits and work at the Site may be governed by an Owner safety program, As the
General Conditions indicate, if an Owner safety program exists, it will be noted in the
Supplementary Conditions.

4.05  Other Work af the Site

A, Reference is made to Article 8 of the Supplementary Conditions for the identification of the
general nature of other work of which Owner is aware (if any) that is to be performed at the
Site by Owner or others (such as utilities and other prime contractors) and relates to the
Work contemplated by these Bidding Documents. If Owner is party to a written contract for
such other work, then on request, Owner will provide to each Bidder access to examine such
contracts (other than portions thercof related to price and other confidential matters), if any.

ARTICLE 5 — BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS

5.01  Itis the responsibility of each Bidder before submitting a Bid to:

A. examine and carefully study the Bidding Documents, and any data and reference items
identified in the Bidding Documents;

B. visit the Site, conduct a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and adjacent areas, and
become familiar with and satisfy itself as to the general, local, and Site conditions that may
affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work;

C. become familiar with and satisfy itself as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost,
progress, and performance of the Work; -

D. carefully study all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or
adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or
subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions,
especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings, and (2) reports and
drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditiosns, if any, at or adjacent to the Site
that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to
Technical Data in such reports and drawings;

E. consider the information known to Bidder itself; information commonly known to
contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained
from visits to the Site; the Bidding Documents; and the Site-related reports and drawings
identified in the Bidding Documents, with respect to the effect of such information,
observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work; (2) the
means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by
Bidder; and (3) Bidder’s safety precautions and programs;

m

agree, based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, that
at the time of submitting its Bid no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests,
studies, or data are necessary for the determination of its Bid for performance of the Work at
the price bid and within the times required, and in accordance with the other terms and
conditions of the Bidding Documents;

EICDC® C-200, Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. Page3




G. become aware of the general nature of the work to be performed by Owner and others at the
Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents;

H. prompily give Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies
that Bidder discovers in the Bidding Documents and confirm that the written resolution
thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Bidder:

I determine that the Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey
understanding of all terms and conditions for the performance and furnishing of the Work;
and

J. agree that the submission of a Bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by
Bidder that Bidder has complied with every requirement of this Article, that without
exception the Bid and all prices in the Bid are premised upon performing and furnishing the
Work required by the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 6 - PRE-BID CONFERENCE

6.01

No pre-bid conference will be held

ARTICLE 7 —INTERPRETATIONS AND ADDENDA

7.01

7.02

All questions about the meaning or intent of the Bidding Documents are to be submitted to
Engineer in writing. Interpretations or clarifications considered necessary by Engineer in response
to such questions will be issued by Addenda delivered to all parties recorded as having received
the Bidding Documents. Questions received less than seven days prior to the date for opening of
Bids may not be answered. Only questions answered by Addenda will be binding. Oral and other
interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect.

Addenda may be issued to clarify, correct, supplement, or change the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 8 — BID SECURITY

8.01

8.02

8.03

8.04

A Bid must be accompanied by Bid security made payable to Owner in an amount of {5%]
percent of Bidder’s maximum Bid price (determined by adding the base bid and all alternates)
and in the form of a certified check, bank money order, or a Bid bond (on the form inchrded in the
Bidding Documents) issued by a surety meeting the requirements of Paragraphs 6.01 and 6.02 of
the General Conditions. o

The Bid security of the apparent Successful Bidder will be retained until Owner awards the
contract to such Bidder, and such Bidder has executed the Contract Documents, furnished the
required contract security, and met the other conditions of the Notice of Award, whereupon the
Bid security will be released. If the Successfil Bidder fails to execute and deliver the Contract
Documents and furnish the required contract security within 15 days afier the Notice of Award,
Owner may consider Bidder to be in default, annul the Notice of Award, and the Bid security of
that Bidder will be forfeited. Such forfeiture shall be Owner’s exclusive remedy if Bidder

defaults.

The Bid security of other Bidders that Owner believes to have a reasonable chance of receiving
the award may be retained by Owner until the earlier of seven days after the Effective Date of the
Contract or 61 days after the Bid opening, whereupon Bid security furnished by such Bidders will
be released.

Bid security of other Bidders that Owner believes do not have a reasonable chance of receiving
the award will be released within seven days after the Bid opening.

EJCDC® C-200, Suggested Instructions to Bicders for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.  Page 4




ARTICLE 9 — CONTRACT TIMES

9.01  The number of days within which, teh M : i the
Work is to be substantially completed and ready for final payment are set forth in the Agreement.

ARTICLE 10 - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

10.01  Provisions for liguidated damages, if any, for failure to timely attain a Milestone, Substantial
Completion, or completion of the Work in readiness for final payment, are set forth in the
Agreement.

ARTICLE 11 - SUBSTITUTE AND “OR-EQUAL” ITEMS

11.01 The Contract for the Work, if awarded, will be on the basis of materials and equipment specified
or described in the Bidding Documents, and those “or-equal” or substitute materials and
equipment subsequently approved by Engineer prior to the submittal of Bids and identified by
Addendum. No item of material or equipment will be considered by Engineer as an “or- equal”
or substitute unless written request for approval has been submitted by Bidder and has been
received by Engineer at least 15 days prior to the date for receipt of Bids in the case of a proposed
substitute and 5 days prior in the case of a proposed “or-equal.” Each such request shall comply
with the requirements of Paragraphs 7.04 and 7.05 of the General Conditions. The burden of
proof of the merit of the proposed item is upon Bidder. Engineer’s decision of approval or
disapproval of a proposed item will be final. If Engineer approves any such proposed item, such
approval will be set forth in an Addendum issued to all prospective Bidders. Bidders shall not
rely upon approvals made in any other manner. Substitutes and “or-equal” materials and
equipment may be proposed by Contractor in accordance with Paragraphs 7.04 and 7.05 of the
General Conditions after the Effective Date of the Contract.

1102 All prices that Bidder sets forth in its Bid shall be based on the presumption that the Contractor

will furnish the materials and equipment specified or described in the Bidding Documents, as

. supplemented by Addenda. Any assumptions regarding the possibility of post-Bid approvals of
“or-equal” or substitution requests are made at Bidder’s sole risk.

11.03 If an award is made, Contractor shall be allowed to submit proposed substitutes and “or-equals”
in accordance with the General Conditions.

ARTICLE 12 ~ SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS, AND OTHERS

12.01 [Deleted]
12.02 [Deleted]

12.03 I required by bid documents, the apparent Successful Bidder, and any other Bidder so
requested, shall within five days after Bid opening, submit to Owner additional lists of the
Subcontractors or Suppliers proposed for the major portions of the Work, trades on the
job, and specific areas or expertise required.

If requested by Owner, such list shall be accompanied by an experience statement with pertinent
information regarding similar projects and other evidence of qualification for each such
Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity. If Owner or Engineer, after due
investigation, has reasonable objection to any proposed Subcontractor, Supplier, individual, or
entity, Owner may, before the Notice of Award is given, request apparent Successful Bidder to
submit an acceptable substitute, in which case apparent Successful Bidder shall submit a
substitute, Bidder’s Bid price will be increased (or decreased) by the difference in cost

: EJCDC® C-200, Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.  Page 5




12.04

12.05

12.06

12.07

occasioned by such substitution, and Owner may consider such price adjustment in evaluating
Bids and making the Contract award.

If apparent Successful Bidder declines to make any such substitution, Owner may award the
Contract to the next lowest Bidder that proposes to use acceptable Subcontractors, Suppliers, or
other individuals or entities. Declining to make requested substitutions will constitute grounds for
forfeiture of the Bid security of any Bidder. Any Subcontractor, Supplier, individual, or entity so
listed and against which Owner or Engineer makes no written objection prior to the giving of the
Notice of Award will be deemed acceptable to Owner and Engineer subject to subsequent
revocation of such acceptance as provided in Paragraph 7.06 of the General Conditions.

Contractor shall not be required to empley any Subcontractor, Supplier, individual, or
entity against whom Centractor has reasonable ohjection.

The Contractor shall not award work to Subcontractor(s) in excess of the limits stated in SC
7.06.

The Contractor shall submit a list of Subcortractors and Suppliers which make up at least
5% of the total bid price with the Bid Submittal. The Contractor shall submit a list of
Subcontractors which make up 1% of the total Bid price or $50,000, whichever is greater,
within 2 hours of the Bid Opening. Per NRS 624, names, percentages, license numbers,
addresses and a description of work shall be included on all lists for Subcontracters and the
Bidding Prime Contractor.

ARTICLE 13 - PREPARATION OF BID

13.01

13.02

13.03

13.04

13.05

13.06
13.07

13.08

13.09

The Bid Form is included with the Bidding Documents.

A. All blanks on the Bid Form shall be completed in ink and the Bid Form signed in ink.
Erasures or alterations shall be initialed in ink by the person signing the Bid Form. A Bid
price shall be indicated for each section, Bid item, alternate, adjustment unit price item, and
unit price item listed therein.

B. If the Bid Form expressly indicates that submitting pricing on a specific alternate item is
optional, and Bidder elects to not furnish pricing for such optional alternate item, then
Bidder may enter the words “No Bid” or “Not Applicable.”

A Bid by a corporation shall be executed in the corporate name by a corporate officer (whose title
must appear under the signature), accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The corporate
address and state of incorporation shall be shown. :

A Bid by a limited liability company shall be executed in the name of the firm by a member or
other authorized person and accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The state of formation
of the firm and the official address of the firm shall be shown. '

A Bid by an individual shall show the Bidder’s name and official address.

‘A Bid by a joint venture shall be executed by an authorized representative of cach Jjoint venturer

in the manner indicated on the Bid Form. The official address of the joint venture shall be shown.
All names shall be printed in ink below the signatures.

The Bid shall contain an acknowledgment of receipt of all Addenda, the numbers of which shall
be filled in on the Bid Form.

Postal and e-mail addresses and telephone number for communications regarding the Bid shall be
shown.

The Bid shall contain evidence of Bidder’s authority and qualification to do business in the state
where the Project is located, or Bidder shall covenant in writing to obtain such authority and

EICDC® C-200, Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 Natioral Soclety of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. - Page 6




qualification prior to award of the Contract and attach such covenant to the Bid. Bidder’s state
contractor license number, if any, shall also be shown on the Bid Form.

ARTICLE 14 - BASIS OF BID

14.01

14.02

14.03

14.64

Base Bid with Aliernates

A.  Bidders shall submit 2 Bid on a unit price basis for the base Bid and include a separate price
for each alternate described in the Bidding Documents and as provided for in the Bid Form.
The price for each alternate will be the amount added to or deleted from the base Bid if
Owner selects the alternate.

B. In the comparison of Bids, alternates will be applied in the same order of priority as listed in
the Bid Form.

Unit Price

A.  Bidders shall submit a Bid on a unit price basis for each item of Work listed in the unit price
section of the Bid Form.

B. The “Bid Price” (sometimes referred to as the extended price) for each unit price Bid item
will be the product of the “Estimated Quantity” (which Owner or its representative has set
forth in the Bid Form) for the item and the corresponding “Bid Unit Price” offered by the
Bidder. The total of all unit price Bid items will be the sum of thesc “Bid Prices™; such total
will be used by Owner for Bid comparison purposes. The final quantities and Contract Price
will be determined in accordance with Paragraph 13.03 of the General Conditions.

C. Discrepancies between the mulfiplication of units of Work and unit prices will be resolved in
favor of the unit prices. Discrepancies between the indicated sum of any column of figures
and the correct sum thereof will be resolved in favor of the correct sum.

Allowances

A.  For cash allowances the Bid price shall include such amounts as the Bidder deems proper for
Contractor's overhead, costs, profit, and other expenses on account of cash allowances, if
any, named in the Contract Documents, in accordance with Paragraph 13.02.B of the
General Conditions. .

[Deleted]

ARTICLE 15 - SUBMITTAL OF BID

15.01

15.02

15.03

With each copy of the Bidding Documents, a Bidder is furnished one separate-unbound
electronic copy of the Bid Form and the Bid Bond Form. The unbound copy of the Bid Form is
to be completed and submitted with the Bid security and the other documents required to be
submitted under the terms of Article 7 of the Bid Form.

A Bid shall be received no later than the date and time prescribed and at the place indicated in the
advertisement or invitation to bid and shall be enclosed in a plainly marked package with the
Project title (and, if applicable, the designated portion of the Project for which the Bid is
submitted), the name and address of Bidder, and shall be accompanied by the Bid security and
other required documents. If a Bid is sent by mail or other delivery system, the sealed envelope
containing the Bid shall be enclosed in a separate package plainly marked on the outside with the
notation “BID ENCLOSED.” A mailed Bid shall be addressed to the Owner and location as
indicated in the Advertisement for Bids.

Bids received after the date and time preseribed for the opening of bids, or not submitted at the
correct location or in the designated manner, will not be accepted and will be returned to the
Bidder unopened. ' :

EICDC® C-200, Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. Page7 '




ARTICLE 16 - MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF BID

16.01 A Bid may be withdrawn by an appropriate document duly executed in the same manner that a
Bid must be executed and delivered to the place where Bids are to be submitted prior to the date
and time for the opening of Bids. Upon receipt of such notice, the unopened Bid will be returned
to the Bidder.

16.02 If a Bidder wishes to modify its Bid prior to Bid opening, Bidder must withdraw its initial Bid in
the manner specified in Paragraph 16.01 and submit a new Bid prior to the date and time for the
opening of Bids.

16.03 If within 24 hours after Bids are opened any Bidder files a duly signed written notice with Owner
and promptly thereafter demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of Owner that there was a
material and substantial mistake in the preparation of its Bid, that Bidder may withdraw its Bid,
and the Bid security will be returned. Thereafier, if the Work is rebid, that Bidder will be
disqualified from further bidding on the Work.

ARTICLE 17 — OPENING OF BIDS

17.01 Bids will be opened at the time and place indicated in the advertisement or invitation to bid and,
unless obviously non-responsive, read aloud publicly. An abstract of the amounts of the base Bids
- and major alternates, if any, will be made available to Bidders after the opening of Bids.

ARTICLE 18 — BIDS TO REMAIN SUBJECT TO ACCEPTANCE

18.01 All Bids will remain subject to acceptance for the period of time stated in the Bid Form, but
Owner may, in its sole discretion, release any Bid and return the Bid security prior to the end of
this period.

ARTICLE 19 - EVALUATION OF BIDS AND AWARD OF CONTRACT

18.01 Owner reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, including without limitation, nonconforming,
nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional Bids. Owner will reject the Bid of any Bidder that
Owner finds, after reasonable inquiry and evaluation, to not be responsible. If Bidder purports to
add terms or conditions to its Bid, takes exception to any provision of the Bidding Documents, or
attempts to alter the contents of the Contract Documents for purposes of the Bid, then the Owner
will reject the Bid as nonresponsive; provided that Owner also reserves the right to waive all”
minor informalitics not involving price, time, or changes in the Work.

19.02 If Owner awards the contract for the Work, such award shall be to the responsible Bidder
submitting the lowest responsive Bid.

19.03 Evaluation of Bids

A." In evaluating Bids, Owner will consider whether or not the Bids comply with the prescribed
requirements, and such alternates, unit prices, and other data, as may be requested in the Bid
Form or prior to the Notice of Award.

B. In the comparison of Bids, alternates will be applied in the same order of priority as listed in
the Bid Form. To determine the Bid prices for purposes of comparison, Owner shall
announce to all bidders a “Base Bid plus alternates” budget after receiving all Bids, but prior
to opening them. For comparison purposes alternates will be accepted, following the order of
priority established in the Bid Form, until doing so wonld cause the budget to be exceeded.
Afier determination of the Successful Bidder based on this comparative process and on the
responsiveness, responsibility, and other factors set forth in these Instructions, the award

EICDE® C-200, Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Compantes,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.  Page 8




may be made to said Successful Bidder on its base Bid and any combination of its additive
alternate Bids for which Owner determines funds will be available at the time of award.

19.04 In evaluating whether a Bidder is responsible, Owner will consider the qualifications of the
Bidder and may consider the qualifications and experience of Subconiractors and Suppliers
proposed for those portions of the Work for which the identity of Subcontractors and Suppliers
must be submitted as provided in the Bidding Documents.

19.05 Owner may conduct such investigations as Owner deems necessary to éstablish the responsibility,
qualifications, and financial ability of Bidders and any proposed Subcontractors or Suppliers.

ARTICLE 20 — BONDS AND INSURANCE

20.01 Article 6 of the General Conditions, as may be modified by the Supplementary Conditions, sets
forth Owner’s requirements as to performance and payment bonds and insurance. When the
Successful Bidder delivers the Agreement (executed by Successful Bidder) to Owner, it shall be
accompanied by required bonds and insurance documentation, '

ARTICLE 21 — SIGNING OF AGREEMENT

21.01 When Owner issues a Notice of Award to the Successful Bidder, it shall be accompanied by the
unexecuted counterparts of the Agreement along with the other Contract Documents as identified
in the Agreement. Within 15 days thereafter, Successful Bidder shall execute and deliver the
required number of counterparts of the Agreement (and any bonds and insurance documentation
required to be delivered by the Contract Documents) to Owner. Within ten days thereafter, Owner
shall deliver one fully executed counterpart of the Agreement to Successful Bidder, together with
printed and electronic copies of the Contract Documents as stated in Paragraph 2.02 of the
General Conditions.

ARTICLE 22 — SALES AND USE TAXES (NOT USED)
ARTICLE 23 - WAGE RATE REQUIREMENTS

24.02 Contractor shall pay State Prevailing Wage Rates for each labor classification. Copies of the wage
determinations are included in Section 00900 and are available at the Labor Commission office
and website.

24.03 The contracter shall submit certified payrolls to the owner for every week worked for verification. .

ARTICLE 25~ RETAINAGE

25.01  Provisions concerning Contractor’s rights to deposit securities in lieu of retainage are set forth in
the Agreement -

ARTICLE 26 - NEVADA PUBLIC WORKS REQUIREMENTS

26.01 Contractor shall comply with all provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) Chapter 338-
Public Projects, if applicable, and all regulations promulgated under the statutes.

ARTICLE 27 - PARTNERING (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION

EICDC® C-200, Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Construction Contracts. :
Capyright © 2013 National Society of Professicnal Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.  Page 9




ARTICLE 3 - BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS

31 In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents that:

A. Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents, and any data and
reference items identified in the Bidding Documents, and hereby acknowledges receipt of

the following Addenda:
Addendum No. Addendum Date

\ _._lelﬁh_s_

B. Bidder has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and
adjacent areas, and become familiar with and satisfied itself as to the general, local, and
Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

C.  Bidder is familiar with and has satisfied itself as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect
cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

D. Bidder has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface
conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions reiating to
existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the
Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and
drawings, and (2) reports and drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if
any, at or adjacent to the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions,
especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings.

E. Bidder has considered the information known to Bidder itself information commonly
known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and
observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Bidding Documents; and any Site-related
reports and drawings identified in the Bidding Documents, with respect to the effect of
such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of
the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of
construction to be employed by Bidder; and (3) Bidder’s safety precautions and programs,

F.  Bidder agrees, based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding
paragraph, that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data
are necessary for the determination of this Bid for performance of the Work at the price bid
and within the times required, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of
the Bidding Documents.

G. Bidder is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the
Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents.

H. Bidder has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or
discrepancies that Bidder has discovered in the Bidding Documents, and confirms that the
written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Bidder. :

. The Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all
terms and conditions for the performance and furnishing of the Work.

EJCDC® C-410, Bid Form far Construction Contracts.
Copyright ©® 2013 Nationai Society of Professionat Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.  Page 2




SECTION 00410

BID FORM FOR CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTS
Storey County 2015 Cape Seal Project
PWP No. ST-2015-181
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page

ATticle 1 = Bid RECIPIBIL ..ottt se e sttt se s s ees et eeense s eeeme s enen 1
Article 2 — Bidder’s ACKTOWISAZEIIIENES ..eucvrirereerereeeesestesieeaensemee e sesesene st emeasaeesessesssssssmessmeseemsessesesseseeenes 1
Article 3 — Bidder’'s RepIesentations ... e ceeeieee e emses ettt eeeennere e se e neseseeasssmrsesass 2
Article 4 — Bidder’s CertifiCation ...ooo i iiirerieererisenisirsesrssses i ebase et e eaee st sene e e essses st teeseseeeessnn s 23
Article 5 —Basis O Bil ...t sttt s e b st sas s seas s caot e ee e sen e e ae s enesaen 3
Article 6 — Time of Completion.....c it ee e eeers Heeteee e et s e re e e sna e e sanes 5
Article 7 — Attachments 10 this Bid ..o irreiercenesscerirereren st ssee e ereseese s eseesessssssasesssessre e srnas 5
Article 8 — DefINed TOIIIIS c.oe oo ettt et stetee e e emea s eaen st s smsmeneseemsasas soeneseeameer e s e tsssseseeees 5
Article 9 — Bid SUDIIAL....vviice et ss e ssss ettt st e ee e e sr e seren e e e ens e sesnnees 6

ARTICLE 1 —BID RECIPIENT ’ .

i1 This Bid is submitted to Owner address as identified in Section 00100 — Advertisement.

12 The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement

with Owner in the form included in the Bidding Documents to perform all Work as speciffed or
indicated in the Bidding Documents for the prices and within the times indicated in this' Bid and
in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 2 — BIDDER’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

2.01 Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, including without
limitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid security. This Bid will remain subject to
acceptance for 60 days after the Bid opening, or for such longer period of time that Bidder may
agree o in writing upon request of Owner.

EICDC® C-410; Bid form for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Sotiety of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.  Page 1




ADDENDUM NO. 1

May 15, 2015

Engineer: Owner:

Farr West Engineering Storey County

3442 Longley Lane, Suite A 100 Toli Road

Reno, NV 89511 Virginia City, NV 89440

STOREY COUNTY 2015 CAPE SEAL PROJECT

To: All Holders of the Bidding Documents, Specifications, and Drawings

The Contract Documents for the above-referenced Project are modified as sct forth in this Addendum.
The original Contract Documenis and any previously issued addenda remain in full force and effect,
except as modified by this Addendum, which is hereby made part of the Contract Documents. Bidder
shall take this Addendum into consideration when preparing and submitting a bid, and shall acknowledge
receipt of this Addendum in Article 3 of the Bid Form. Failure to do so may subject the Bidder to

disqualification.

Bid Submittal Deadline: The Bid submittal deadline remains the same and is not changed by this

Addendum.
This addendum consists of

2 Pages of text (including this cover sheet and attachments)

Prepared by:

Greg Lyman, P.E.

Storey County o A-7
2013 Cape Seal Project

FWE 88588
Addendum No. [ (May 2015)







REVISIONS TO CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

1. Section 00410 — Bid Form for Construction Contracts

a.

Article 5 — Basis of Bid
i. DELETE the following paragraph:

“The placing of approximately 260,000 Square yards of 3/8” and/or 1/2” chip seal, Type III
Rapid Setting Slurry Seal and Type II Slurry Seal. The approximale pay quantity shall be
PLACED SQUARE YARI} specified spread rates within the Detail Specifications. The
emulsion and/or oils shall be part of the bid price(s) of the Detail Specifications. Also, all
required equipment, personnel, sweeping, traffic control, reflector tabs, protecting of existing
tape markings, public notification and signage for the complete project shall be part of the
unit prices. See Contact Plan Descriptions and Maps.”

il. REPLACE with the following:

“The placing of approximately 260,000 Square yards of 3/8” and/or 1/2” chip seal, Type II1
Rapid Setting Sharry Seal and Type II Slurry Seal. The approximate pay quantity shall be
PLACED SQUARE YARD specified spread rates within the Technical Specifications. The
emulsion and/or oils shall be part of the bid price(s) of the Technical Specifications. Also, all
required equipment, personnel, sweeping, traffic control, reficctor tabs, protecting of existing
tape markings, public notification and signage for the complete project shall be part of the
unit prices. Bid schedule items shall also include replacement of all existing pavement
markings. See Contact Plan Descriptions and Maps.”

CLARIFICATIONS

1. The bidders should be aware that there is centerline and miscellaneous striping on Waltham Way
(TRI Center). The bid specifications are hereby amended to include replacement of all existing
pavement markings within the current bid schedule items for all project areas. In other words,
striping replacement by the contractor shall be considered incidental to the cape seal work in each
street and will not have its own bid items. Existing striping shall be tabbed to ensure replacement in
the same locations. All striping work shall be in compliance with Orange Book ' )
specifications. Striping shall not be placed earlier than 2 weeks from the completion of the cape seal
to allow for cure time of the top coat.

Storey County

END OF ADDENDUM

A-2 - FWE #5888

2013 Cape Seal Project Addendum No. I (May 2015)







ARTICLE 5 — BASIS OF BID
5.1 Bidder will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following
price(s): '

The placing of approximately 260,000 Square yards of 3/8” and/or 1/2” chip seal, Type III Rapid Setting
Slurry Seal and Type II Slurry Seal. The approximate pay quantity shall be PLACED SQUARE YARD
specified spread rates within the Detail Specifications. The emulsion and/or oils shall be part of the bid
price(s) of the Detail Specifications. Also, all required equipment, personnel, sweeping, traffic control,
reflector tabs, protecting of existing tape markings, public notification and signage for the complete project
shall be part of the unit prices. See Contact Plan Descriptions and Maps.

15,000 Square | Type II Rapid Setting Shurry Seal
Yards with 3/8 chip seal , complete and | § 19 $ 5‘} 550-%

in place at
“Mark Twain Ihuainllmnmh)mm‘

Estates” Lenls

per 8Y
81,000 Square | Type II Rapid Setting Slurry Seal _
Yards with 3/8 chip seal , complete and | $ 395 $ 3]7' 5pyee
in place at .
“VC Highlands” nmiﬂhmm,mm
per SY

67,000 Square | Type Il Rapid Setting Slurry Seal

Yards with 3/8 chip seal , complete and | § 338 $ Zblg,bhﬂo—a

in placea
“Virginia City” MMMM’

]

per 8Y
97,000 Square | Type III Rapid Setting Slurry
Yards Seal with 1/2 chip seal , complete | $ '4" s 3 £
and in place at
“I'RI Center” Bu:‘lﬂma\exmmL
per SY

TOTAL BASE BID PRICE - 5_},044 $30-%

s_One mills &l i
’ InWords

' Bidder acknowledges that (1) each Bid Unit Price includes an amount considered by Bidder to be

EICDC® C-410, Bid Form for Construction Contracts.
Capyright © 2013 Natioral Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.  Page 4




The submission of this Bid constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that
Bidder has complied with every requirement of this Article, and that without exception the
Bid and all prices in the Bid are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work
required by the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 4 — BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION

4.1 Bidder certifies that:

A,

This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed
individual or entity and is not submitted in conformity with any collusive agreement or
rules of any group, association, organization, or corporation;

Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false
or sham Bid;

Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; and

Bidder has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing
for the Contract. For the purposes of this Paragraph 4.01.D:

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of
value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process;

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to
influence the bidding process to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish bid prices at
artificial non-competitive levels, or (¢) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and
open competition;

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or atrangement between two or more Bidders,
with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish bid prices
at artificial, non-competitive levels; and

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly,
persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or
affect the e execution of the Contract.

— EICDC? C-414, Bid Form far Construction Contracts.
Capyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companias,
ard American Society of Civil Engineers. Allrights reserved.  Page 3




Preference Bidding Certification

Nevada Public Works Preference Bidding Program
Chapter 338 of Nevada Revised Statutes

The undersigned, being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

I, Craig D. Holt, swear or affirm under penalty of the law that I am Vice President of certifying
firm Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc. and fully authorize to submit this Affidavit on behalf of
the certifying firm, and that I have read and understood all of the information and statements
submitted in this Affidavit and that they are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, and
that all responses are full and complete, omitting no material information. The responses include
all material information necessary to fully and accurately meet the requirements for obtaining a
bidder preference for Nevada public works projects pursuant to Chapter 338 of Nevada Revised
Statutes (NRS).

I recognize that the information submitted in this affidavit is for the purpose of certifying that the
certifying firm will meet the following requirements for the entire duration of the project,
collectively, and not on a specific day;

a) At least 50 percent of all workers employed on the Project, including, without limitation, any
employees of the certifying firm and of any subcontractor engaged on the Project, will hold a
valid driver’s license or identification card issued by the Nevada Department of Motor
Vehicles;

b) All vehicles used primarily for the Project will be:

1) Registered and partially apportioned to Nevada pursuant to the International Registration
Plan, as adopted by the Nevada Department of Motor Vehicles pursuant to NRS706.826;
or

2) Registered in this State;

c) Atleast 50 percent of the design professionals working on the Project, including, without
limitation, any employees of the certifying firm and of any subcontractor engaged on the
Project, will have a valid driver’s license or identification card issued by the Nevada
Department of Motor Vehicles;

d) The certifying firm and any subcontractor engaged on the Project will maintain and make
available for inspection within this State his or her records concerning payroll relating to the
project.

I understand that if the certifying firm receives a preference of bidding and is awarded a contract
for the Project that such contract will:

a) Include a provision in the contract that substantially incorporates the requirements of
paragraphs (a) to (d), inclusive, above;







I declare under penalty of perjury that the information provided in this Affidavit is true and
correct.

Signature: (7 - D H aes Date:_Mm’LL?,ZDIS

By: ﬂrm% A Tite:Viee-Mesident

Signed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this 3'1’*—‘3 day of M&F , 2015
by ia ) Yol .

Mﬁumﬂhh

Notary Signattire

FR e L T E O D T TP TR

_ DARCIAA, CARFENTER
4%\ Notary Public - Stats of Nevada
¢/ Aopeiniment Becorded in Washos Colnty
> No: 98-3487-2 - Explres August 1, 2015 §

....................................







NEVADA STATE CONTRACTORS BOARD

. 5670 GATEWAY DRIVE, SUITE 100, RENO, NEVADA, 59521 (775) 8881141 FAX (775) 688-1271, INVESTIGATIONS (775) 688-1150
2310 CORPGRATE CIRCLE, SUITE 200, HENDERSON, NEVADA, 88074, (702) 486-1100 FAX (702) 486-$190, INVESTIGATIONS (702) 486-1110

CERTIFICATE OF ELIGIBILITY
PER NRS 338.147 and NRS 338.1389

. CERTIFICATE NUMBER: BPC-00-01-27-0032

SIERRA NEVADA CONSTRUCTION, INC. (HEREIN THE “GENERAL CONTRACTOR") NEVADA STATE
CONTRACTORS’ LICENSE NUMBER 25565 ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE: 07/05/1988 BUSINESS TYPE: CORPORATION
CLASSIFICATION: A-GENERAL ENGINEERING MONETARY LICENSE LIMIT: UNLIMITED STATUS: ACTIVE, IS

—

HEREBY ISSUED THIS CERTIFICATE BY THE NEVADA STATE CONTRACTORS’' BOARD, BASED UPON THE

THIS CERTIFICATE OF ELIGIBILITY IS ISSUED ON AUGUST 1, 2014 AND EXPIRES ON JULY 31, 2015, UNLESS
SOONER REVOKED OR SUSPENDED BY THE NEVADA STATE CONTRACTORS BOARD. - _

Q&@\\\ §\§ , /N-\-Nm\\m\
‘NANCY/MATHIAS, LICENSING ADMINISTRATOR DATE :
FOR MARGI GREIN, EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Nevada State Contractors Board assumes no liability or responsibility for the
accuracy or validity of the information contained in the Contractors Statement of
Compliance with NRS 338.147 or the Affidavit of Cettified Public Accountant as Proof of
Contractors Compliance with the Provisions of NRS 338.147. The above-named
General Contractor shall bear the responsibility to ascertain the accuracy and validity
of the affidavits provided to support the issuance of this certificate. .







adequate to cover Contractor’s overhead and profit for each separately identified item, and )
estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids,
and final payment for all unit price Bid items will be based on actual quantities, determined as
provided in the Contract Documents.

Unit Prices have been computed in accordance with Paragraph 13.03.B of the General
Conditions. '

The requirements of Nevada Revised Statues (NRS) shall apply to this project. The BIDDER
is responsible for compliance with all applicable statues. These statutes include, but are not
limited to:

A. NRS 338.020: Hourly and daily rate of wages must not be less than prevailing wage in
County.

B. NRS 338.080: Exemptions

NRS 338.141: Bids to include certain information concerning subcontractors; requirements
for substitution of named subcontracts.

D. NRS 338.147: Award of Contract to Contractor who submits best bid.

We qualify and claim the Preferential BIDDER status as specified in NRS 338.147, and have attached
the appropriate information in accordance with the requirements of NRS 338.147 as described in
Supplementary Condition SC-6.09.K.

We do not qualify for the Preferential BIDDER status as specified in NRS 338.147.
Contractor; %\&N‘ﬂ, N&Mt}ﬂ, [:&Nﬁhﬂﬁ}.mﬂ,]ﬂﬁ.*

License No: 255l05

Authorized Signature: C7‘7' 'b f‘igl‘," d/(f

Lraig D. Holt

ARTICLE 6 - TIME OF COMPLETION

6.1

6.2

Bidder agrees that the Work will be substantially complete and will be completed and ready for
final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions on or before the
dates or within the number of calendar days indicated in the Agreement.

Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to Liquidated Damages.

ARTICLE 7 - ATTACHMENTS TO THIS BID

7.1

The following documents are submitted with and made a condition of this Bid:

Required Bid security in the form of a Bid Bond (EJCDC C-430);

List of prdposed Subcontractors (Section 00440);

List of proposed Suppliers (Section 00440);

Required Bidder Qualifications Statement with supporting data (EJCDC C-450);
Evidence of authority to do business in Storejf County and the State of Nevada;
Evidence of qﬁaliﬁcations for in-state bidder preference, if requesting consideration; and

Contractor’s License No.: _ZSS[&S (may be combined with another
attachment).

@ " m o o0 ® >

EICDC® C-410), Bid Form for Construction Contracts. T
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers, All rights reserved.  Page 5




ARTICLE 8 —- DEFINED TERMS

8.01  The terms used in this Bid with initial capital letters have the meanings stated in the Instructions
to Bidders, the General Conditions, and the Supplementary Conditions.

ARTICLE 9 - BID SUBMITTAL

BIDDER: [Indicate correct name of bidding entity]

Sierrm“avﬂllﬂﬂuﬂhthMJNC.

By: . .
[Séi'gnature] ‘__/ ‘7” %J/«f){?&
[Printed name] Erm b HOH'

(If Bidder is a corporation, a limited liability ¢ pany, ap rship, or a joint venture, attach
evidence of authority to sign.)

Attest:
[Signature]

[Printed name]
Title: SmM]Imasum
Submittal Date: Mmll Z"f 2015

Address for giving notices:

?0 Box 507460
S?MKS,N?MA& 39435

Telephone Number: 375-355- 0420
Fax Number: 715.355-0535

Contact Name and e-mail address: nfﬂ.l q h “0“'

JLA&@_SNC\M.

(where appl zcable)

Bidder’s License No.:

EJCDC® (410, Bid Form for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. Allrights reserved.  Page 6




ACTION BY UNANIMOUS WRITTEN CONSENT
OF THE BOARD OR DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
OF
SIERRA NEVADA CONSTRUCTION, INC,

July 31, 2012

The undersigned, being all of the directors and shareholders of Sierra Nevada
Construction, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Corporation™), do hereby unanimously
approve, adopt, make, ratify and confirm the following:

WHEREAS, Kevin L., Robertson acts in the capacity of President, Craig D. Holt
acts in the capacity of Vice President and Secretary, and Bryan Holt acts in the capacity
of Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc.

WHEREAS, Kevin L. Robertson, Craig D. Holt and Bryan W. Holt as officers of
this Corporation may be required from time to time to execute agreements on behalf on
Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc.

NOW THEREFORE, the undersigned directors and shareholders of Sierta
Nevada Construction, Inc., resolve as follows:

RESOI;VED, that the féllowing individuals are appointed to serve as officers of
this Corporation in the specified capacities:

Kevin L. Robertson . President
Craig D. Holt . Vice President
Marce T. Markwell . Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer/Secretary

RESOLVED, that Kevin L. Robertson, Craig D. Holt, and Mare T. Markwell as
officers of this Corporation are authorized to execute agreements into, between or among
Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc., and third parties without further authorization from the
directors and/or shareholders.

and, further

RESOLVED, that Kevin L. Robertson, Craig D. Holt, and Marc T. Markwell in
their capacities as officers of this Corporation are authorized to take all necessary and
appropriate steps on behalf of the Corporation to effectuate the proposed amendments to
the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Corporation..







IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the directors and shareholders have executed this
instrument effective July 31, 2012.

Directors: Shareholders:
Cr D AR Clop DA et
Craig D. Holt Craig D. Holt

Lo 74—//,%:-

Kevin L. Robertson Kevin L, Robertson







PENAL SUM FORM

BID BOND

Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

BIDDER (Name and Address}: Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc.
2055 East Greg Street

Sparks, NV 89431

SURETY (Name, and Address of Principal Place of Business): Liberty Mutual Insurance Company
14123 Denver West Parkway
Gaolden, CO 80401

OWNER {Name and Address): Sterey County
100 Toll Road

Virginia City, NV 89440

BID
Bid Due Date: 5-27-15

Description (Project Name— Include Location):  Storey County 2015 Cape Seal Project
Storey, County, NV

BOND
Bond Number: Bid Bond
Date: May 13, 2015
Penal sum Five percent of attached bid § m5ope

{(Words) {Figures)
Surety and Bidder, intending to be legaily bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause
this Bid Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative.

BIDDER SURETY

Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc. (Seal) Liberty Mutual Insurance Company {Seal)

Bidder’s Name and Corporate Seal Surety’s Name and Corporate Seal

By: C 70 A akt By: Af)/U )(ml/ -
Signature Signature (Atta@ower of Attorney)
l m.l b_“o\’( Lori Jones
Print Name Print Name

Attorney-In-Fact

Title ’
Attest: :@:z/a—oté ;/“-—m a2

Attest:

& /’;
@gﬁtu@‘l’. MasKwgit— Signature
Titlesem{mvrﬁmww Title  Agent

Note: Addresses are to be used for giving any required notice.
Provide execution by any additional parties, such as joint venturers, if necessary.

EICDC® €430, Bid Bond [Penal Sum Form). Published 2013.
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee,
Pagelof2







PENAL SUM FORM

1. Bidder and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and
assigns to pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond. Payment of the
penal sum is the extent of Bidder's and Surety’s liability. Recovery of such penal sum under the terms of this Bond
shall be Owner’s sole and exclusive remedy upon defauit of Bidder.

2. Default of Bidder shall occur upon the failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding
Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents.

3. This obligation shall be null and void if:

3.1 Owner accepts Bidder’s Bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or any
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents, or

3.2 All Bids are rejected by Owner, or

3.3 Owner fails to issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Documents (or any
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when required
by Paragraph 5 hereof).

4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default of Bidder and within 30 calendar days after
receipt by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner, which notice will be given with reasonable
promptness, identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due.

5. Surety waives notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue Notice of
Award agreed to in writing by Owner and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award including
extensions shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from the Bid due date without Surety’s written consent.

6. No suit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default
required in Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety and in nd case later than one year after the Bid due
date.

7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the
state in which the Project is located.

8. Notices required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses shown
on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by United States
Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective upon
receipt by the party concerned.

9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney evidencing the authority
of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and deliver such
Bond and bind the Surety thereby.

10. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any
applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at
length. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute shall
govern and the remainder of this Bond that is not in confiict therewith shall continue in full force and effect.

11. The term “Bid” as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable.

EICDC® C-430, Bid Bond {Penal Sum Form). Published 2013.
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee,
Page2of2







i
'

Nptrvélid for. mortgagde, tiote; loan, ' !étter of credit,

- This Pawer of Aftomiey is.made_'an_d executed pursuant _tdand
- Company, 1iberty Mutual-Insufancé Company, and WestAmerican Insurance Compaity Which resolutions are now in full fofée and effect reading-as follows;

currency rate, interest rate or residual vajue guarantees.

~ Certificate of Designation — The Presiderit o the Company, aciing pursiant 1o the Bylaws of the:

THIS PCWER OF ATTORNEY 1S NOT VALID UNLESS IT iS PRINTED ON RED BACKGROUND., :
This Power of Attorney timits the acts of those named herein, and they have no authority to bind the Company except in the manner and to the extent herein stated.

Ceriificate No. 6929258

American Fire and Casualty Company Liberly Mutual insurance Company
The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNGWN ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That American Fire & Casualty Company and The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company are corporations duly organized under the laws of
the State of New Hampshire, that Liberty Mutual Insurance Company is a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Massachusetts, and West American insurance Company
is a corporation duly organized under the faws of the State of Indiana {herein collectively called #he “Companies™), pursuant to and by authority herein set forth, does hereby name, constitute
and appoint, __Lori Jones; Nicholas D. Rossi; Patricia Owens; Teri L. Wood

all of the ity of Reno , state of NV each individually if there be more than one named, is frue and lawful attorney-in-fact to make, execute, seal, acknowledge
and deliver, for and on its behalf as surefy and as its act and dead, any and all undertakings, bonds, recognizances and ather surely obligations, in pursuance of these presents and shall
be as binding upon the Comparies as ¥ they have been duly signed by the president and attested by the secretary of the Companies in their own proper persans.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, this Power of Atlomey has been subscribed by an authorized officer o official of the Companies and the corporate seals of the Companies have been affixed
thereto this_31st _day of _March o5

American Fire and Casualty Company
The Ohio Casualty insurance Company
Liberty Mutual insurance Company

i\':.?merican Insurance Company
By: Mﬁ%

STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA ss David M. Carey“Assistant Secretary
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY )
‘Onthis 318t day of _March , 2015 | before me personally appeared David M. Carey, who acknowledged himself to be the Assistant Secretary of American Fire and

“Casualty Company, Libérty Mutual Insurance Company, The Ohio Casually Insurance Company, and West American Insurance Company, and that he, as such, being authorized so to do,

exécute the foregoing instrument for the purpdses therein contained by-signing on behalf of the corporations by hiniself 3s & duly authorized officer.

"IN-WiTNE_SS WHEREOF, t have hereunto subscribed my name-and afftxed my notarial seal at Plymouth Mééfing, Pennsylvania, on the day-and year first above written.

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA-

"0 Notagaiseal . ' /_\ 7ﬂ é ﬂz
Teresa Pastella; Notery: Public By: g A
Plytmodth Twp,, Montgomery. Cotinty. " Teresa Pastelia, Notary Public
My Commissian Expires March 28, 2617 |-

;T:f’ / : Mariber, Peansytvania Assaciation of Notarids

liy':authoﬁfy of the follpvﬁng Bydaws qnd_Aﬁiho_r_i_zaﬁoh_s of Ameérican Fire-and Casualty Company, The Ghio Casualty fnsurance

ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS - Section12. Power of Attarmiey. Any:officer or other official of.fhe'.Corporati'on authorized for that purpose in writing by the Chairman or the President, and subject
to such limitation as the Chairman or the President may prescribe, shall appoint such attorneys-in‘fact; as may be necessary fo acf in behalf of the Cormporation to make; execute, seal,

-acknowledge and deliver as surety any &nd all uridertakings, bands, recognizances-and other surety obligations. Such attormeys-nfact, stibject to the limitations setforth in their respective

pawers of atfomey, shall have full power to bind the Corporation by their signature and-execidion of any such instrumenis and 4o attach thereto the seal of the Corporation. When so

“executed, such instruments shall be as binding as if signed by the President and attested to by the Secretary. Any pewet or authority granted o dny representative or attorney-in-fact under

the provisions of this arficle may be éevoked &t any time by the Board; the Chairman, the Presidént or by the officer or officers granting such.power or autfiority.

'ARTICLE _Xili:.--Exécution of Cd_ntracts — SECTION 5, Surety Bonds and Un_dertakin’gs;Anyidfﬁnerbf'therCs;ﬁpany-aﬂthbri}:ed.for that purpose in writing by the chairman or the president,

-and subject fol siich imitations &s the chaiman or e Hirésident may. preseribe; shall appoint such aflornsys-in-fagt, as may be riecessary to act in behalf of the Company.to make, execute,
seal, acknowledge and deliver as surety-any and alt undertakings; bonds; recogniza

respective pawers of attornay, shall have:
exectted such instiuients shall b as biding s if sighed by the president

gnizances:and other surety obl ations. - Suchatiomeys-in-fact stsbject fo thee Emitations set forth in their

ig furs i xecution of any-such instruments and to‘attach thereto the seal of the Compary, When so

I nower-to bind the Company by the

_ j ] : mbany.'.aﬂp}aﬁizés David M. Carey, Assistant Séqr'etary to appoint such atforneys-in-
fact &s:may be necessary fo act on behalf of the Company fo'make, exécié, seal, acknowladge arig deliverag surety any and all-undertakings, bonds, recognizances and other surety

" obligations.

Aufliorfzatidh -_'By unanimous consent of the Cb'ﬁibanyfé_ B@S_ard of-Dirédér_s, the Comﬁaﬁy cqnseﬁi_siihét facéirﬁi_lé'or mechianically reproduced signatute of any assistant secretary of the

‘Company, whersver appearing vipon a certified copy of ahy'puwer of attomey issued by the Comipény in connéction with surety bonds, shal be valid.and binding upon the Company with

the samie force and effect as though manually-affixed, - _ . o . o
1, Gregory W, Davenport, the undersigned; Assistarit Secrefary, of American Fire and Casuatty Comipany, The Ohio-Casualty Insirance Company, Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, and

-West:American Insurance Company do-heréby cerlify that the original puwer of atforney &f which the foragoing is-a full, frie and comect copy of the Power of Aftorney executed by said

Compaies, is in full force-and effect and has not been revoked. : , . :
ffixed the seals of saif Companies this 5 day of M . , 20 ‘/5

. By:

Gregoiy W. Davenport, Assistant Secretary

T 34.of 150
LMS 19873 129013

To confirm the validi

y call
30 pm EST on any business day.

00 am and -4

ty of this Power of Attorne

1-610-832-8240 between 9







PENAL SUM FORM

BID BOND

Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

BIDDER (Name and Address):

SURETY (Name, and Address of Principal Place of Business):

OWNER (Name and Address).

BID
Bid Due Date:
Description (Project Nome— Include Lacation):

BOND
Bond Number:
Date:
Penal sum : %

(Words) {Figures)
Surety and Bidder, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause
this Bid Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative.

BIDBER SURETY
(Seal) (Seal)
Bidder's Name and Corporate Seal Surety’s Name and Corporate Seal
By: ) ’ ' " By: .
7 Signature o Signature {Attach Power of Attorney)
Print Name Print Name
Title Title
Attest: : Attest:
Signature Signature
Title Title

Note: Addresses are to be used for giving any required notice.
Provide execution by any additional parties, such as joint venturers, if necessary.

EICDC® C-430, Bid Bond {Penal Sum Form). Published 2013,
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee,
Page I of 2




PENAL SUM FORM

1. 8idder and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and
assigns to pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond. Payment of the
penal sum is the extent of Bidder’s and Surety’s liability. Recovery of such penal sum under the terms of this Bond
shall be Owner’s sole and exclusive remedy upon default of Bidder.

2. Default of Bidder shall occur upon the failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding
Documents {or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents.

3. This obligation shall be null and void if:

3.1 Owner accepts Bidder’s Bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents {or any
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents, or

3.2 All Bids are rejected by Owner, or

3.3 Owner fails to issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Documents (or any
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when required
by Paragraph 5 hereof).

4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default of Bidder and within 30 calendar days after
receipt by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner, which notice will be given with reasonable
promptness, identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due.

5. Surety waives notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue Notice of
Award agreed to in writing by Owner.and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award including
extensions shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from the Bid due date without Surety’s written consent.

6. No suit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default

required in Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety and in no case later than one year after the Bid due
date.

7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the
state in which the Project is located. _ . .

8. Notices rei:;uifed hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses shown
on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by United States
Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective upon

receipt by the party concerned.

9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney evidencing the authority

of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and deliver such -

Bond and bind the Surety thereby.

10. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any
applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at
length. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute shall
govern and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith shall continue in full force and effect.

11. The term “Bid” as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable.

EICDC® C-430, Bid Bond (Penal Sum Form). Published 2013.
Prépared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page2 of 2




5% SUBCONTRACTOR LIST

Each Bidder shall list below the name of cach subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of
the Work to the Contractor for which he will be paid an amount exceeding five (5) percent of the
Bidder’s total Bid and the number of the lcense issued to the subcontractor pursuant to Chapter 624
of the NRS. The Bidder shall also list themselves as performing all remaining Work not otherwise
subcontracted that is exceeding 5% of the total bid. A general description of this Work shall be
listed.

Project Name: ____§ §m.ﬁmﬁy.%%lﬁ%a‘?p§mllfm;‘wi ............................................................

Bidder Name:______Siesta. Nevaan, Conshuction Ig.” e
Nemﬁ.&?ﬁ

Bidder Address: V0 Box AD¥6D, SparKs. Nevada 80435 T
Telephone No.: __375:358:0420 e

SRIE

1. (Describe all reaz'z‘ng ork O | (Rammg {Prime Contrctor)
otherwise subcontracted, see above.) percentage of . .
Slufry seal, Micro seal, chipseal,
} ? { + l subcontracted:) ?0 BDX 507 bb
TaYHe Contro s Kﬁ N AAA'89435
185% parhs, ey
#255b5
2. {Supcontractor)
strins ermout o Shurry Seal bue.
}f‘P"“ﬁ 5% wos*remmalwaq.szﬂezzqq Reno, Ny 89502
3. (Subcontractor) 119 35§- 1355
#23LST
4, (Subcontractor)
5. _ (Subcontractor}
6. (Subconiractor)
7. ' ‘(Subcontractor)
8. {(Subcontractor)
NOTE: Additional numbered pages may be attached if needed,
3% Suppliers may be included on this or another page.
Storey County 00440-1 FWE #8588

2015 Cape Seal Project Sub-Supplier List Contract Documents (April 2015)

i : . e
e e




1% SUBCONTRACTORS LIST

Within 2 hours after the completion of the opening of the Bids, the Bidders who submitted the three
lowest bids must submit a list of the name of each subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion
of the Work to the Contractor for which he will be paid an amount exceeding one (1) percent of the
Bidder’s fotal bid or $50,000, whichever is greater, and the number of the license issued to the
subcontractor pursuant to Chapter 624 of the NRS. This list may be emailed or faxed to the Owner
or Owner’s Representative, or may be submitted with the Bid Proposal Form. The Bidder shall also
list themselves as performing all remaining Work not otherwise subconiracted that is exceeding 1%
of the total Bid or $50,000, whichever is greater. A general description of this Work.shall be listed.

Project Name:_______ S’mtc, County 2015 r,&eal an;cc{ ..........................................................
Bidder Name: . mm _______________________________________________________________
Bidder Address:______ 90 Box sa'ﬂgo,s;m 3?435 .....................................................

Telephone No.: . F19-388-0420

. ez’be all remaining work not (Reazmng {Prime Contractor)
otherwise subcontracted, see above.) percentage of | a. .
\ work not S‘l’f\' o NUMA& EDNS‘ mﬁ 10N ,I“C-
9 u,ﬂ‘v S%.\ ML To %ﬂl f)m‘l Sw.\, subcontracted:) 70 BDX 50760
Hralle tasirl 85% | Sparks.N Novada §135
#25565
2. (Subcantractor)
stripin : Tntermmuntai Shurmy Seal Inc QJ'
PN 5% mosTmmNaq Suite 720, Pesso, NN $9602
3. ) | (Subcontractor) 1¥53581395
' #23(5?
4. ' (Subcontractor)
5. 7 . (Subcontractor)
6. {(Subcontracior)
7. (Subcontractor)
NOTE: Additional numbered pages may be attached if needed.
Storey County 00440-2 FWE #1888

2015 Cape Seal Project Sub-Swpplier List Contract Documents (April 2015)




5% SUPPLIERS LIST

Each Bidder shall list below the name of each supplier who will provide materials or equipment to the
Contractor for which they will be paid an amount exceeding five (5) percent of the Bidder’s total Bid and
the number of the license issued to the supplier pursuant to Chapter 624 of the NRS. The Bidder shall
also list themselves as supplymg all remaining Work items not otherwise supplied that is exceedmg 5% of
the total Bid. A general description of this Work shall be listed.

Project Name: ﬁ’fﬁ\‘ﬁi Qﬂ

Bidder Name: nxj‘

Bidder Address:____ Dl maum 3
Telephone No.:_____375-355-M2

5 fape Seal Froj m}

st

- a.rﬁuﬁ ?5135 .......................... -

| 1. (Describe a nemamm‘;,r work not --(Remammg (Prime Contractor)
otherwise supplied, see above.) percentage of .
work other Sium,Nt}MA& Qmsxruclaon,lblc.
Sl sea, iero sa), i ea, e o | 90 Box 507
supplies:
Yradtie control " SPMKS,NW 8935
#2555
. ] Supplier) A\ -537.

2 slm?’“‘“" euu,\aioN W4% (Supp )'AD :;loksikﬁmb aalm §37-0100
| E\el';?rowe,ct\ 95624 =
3. ' ) (St lier) Westemd 5 oNS 748-8020

kig\\p loat clru? emu‘s:oﬂ 21% > gu af Pa;;.,z*ﬂ
“ (Supplier) 3D Long rete/DufonAgqreqate
3g* chip aggregde 1% 20 Ricei Ro wﬂs.ﬂ:%«ﬂ
(Supplier) Qodheronsirugliv
W ok 14% 3 Mw‘ 415.575.4388
£ g o
6. l (Supplier) Martin ame a 115 425 —4{56
My fgles 3 Sl Novade,
7. (Supplier) )
8. (Supplier)

NOTE: Additional numbered pages may be attached if needed.

Storey County
2015 Cape Seal Project

00440-3
Sub-Supplier List

FWE #388
Contract Documents (April 2015)




BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS STATEMENT

THE INFORMATION SUPPLIED IN THIS DOCUMENT IS CONFIDENTIAL TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAWS AND

REGULATIONS

1. SUBMITTED BY:
Official Name of Firm: Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc.
Address: P.O. Box 50760

Sparks, Nevada 89435

2. SUBMITTED TO: Storey County c/o Farr West Engineering
3. SUBMITTED FOR: Storey County 2015 Cape Seal Project
Owner: Storey County
Project Name: Storey County 2015 Cape Seal Project
TYPE OF WORK: Placing of approximately 260,000 Square yards of 3/8” and/or 1/2” chip

seal, Type Ill Rapid Setting Slurry Seal and Type Ii Slurry Seal in
Virginia City, Virginia City Highlands, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
and Mark Twain Estates in Storey County, Nevada.

4. CONTRACTOR'S CONTACT INFORMATION

Contact Person: Craig D. Holt
Title: Vice-President
Phone: 775-355-0420
Email: bids@snc.biz

5. AFFILIATED COMPANIES:

Name: N/A

EICBC" C-450, Qualifications Statement.
Copyright © 2013 National Suciety of Professional Engineers, American Councll of Engineering Companies,
and Amerlcan Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved,
Pagel1of8




Address:

6. TYPE OF ORGANIZATION:
[ SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP
Name of Owner:
Doing Business As:
Date of Organization:
[[] PARTNERSHIP
Date of Organization:

Type of Partnership:

Name of General Partner(s):

ﬁ CORPORATION
State of Organization:
Date of Organization:
Executive Officers:
- President:

- Vice President(s):

- Treasurer:

- Secretary:

(] LIMITED LIABILITY COMPAN

State of Organization:

Date of Organization;

Nevada

3/2/88

Kevin L. Robertson

Craig D. Holt

Marc T. Markwell

Marc T. Markwell

Y

EJCDC' C-450, Qualifications Statement.

Copyright © 2013 Nationat Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Soclety of Civil Engineers, All rights reserved.

Page 20f 8




Members:

[J JOINT VENTURE

Sate of Organization:

Date of Organization:

Form of Organization:

Joint Venture Managing Partner

- Name:

~ Address:

Joint Venture Managing Partner

- Name:

- Address:

Joint Venture Managing Partner

- Name:
- Address:
7. LICENSING
Jurisdiction: Nevada
Type of License: Contractors License
License Number: 25565

EICDC’ €-450, Qualifications Statement.
Copyright ® 2013 National Soclety of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Seciety of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
: Page 30f 8




Jurisdiction:

Type of License:

License Number:

8. CERTIFICATIONS CERTIFIED BY:

Disadvantage Business Enterprise:

Minority Business Enterprise:

Woman Owned Enterprise:

Small Business Enterprise:

Other ( k:

9. BONDING INFORMATION

Bonding Company: Liberty Mutual Insurance Company

Address: 14123 Denver West Parkway

Golden, Colorado 80401

Bonding Agent: L/P Insurance Services, Inc,

Address: 300 East 2nd Street, Suite 1300

Reno, Nevada 89501

Contact Name: Lori Jones
Phone: 775-996-6037
Aggregate Bonding Capacity: $75 million

Available Bonding Capacity as of date of this submittat:__$45 million

1{). FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Financial Institution: Heritage Bank of Nevada

Address: 2330 South Virginia Street

Reno, Nevada 89502

Account Manager: Barry Collier

EICDC® C-450, Qualifications Statement,
Copyright © 2013 Nationat Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and Amarican Society of Clvil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 40f 8




Phone: 775-321-4106
HNEEUBE-AS-AN-ATTACHMENT-AN-AUDITEDS- BALANCE SHEET-ROR-EACH-OF-THELAST 3 YEARS

11. CONSTRUCTION EXPERIENCE;

Current Experience:

List on Schedule A all uncompleted projects currently under contract {If Joint Venture list each participant's
projects separately).

Previous Experience:

List on Schedule B all projects completed within the last 5 Years (If Joint Venture list each participant’s
projects separately).

Has firm listed in Section 1 ever failed to complete a construction contract awarded to it?
[ ves ﬁ NO
if YES, attach as an Attachment details including Project Owner's contact infermation,

Has any Corporate Officer, Partner, Joint Venture participant or Proprietor ever failed to complete a construction
contract awarded to them in their name or when acting as a principal of another entity?

[Jves EZ( NO
If YES, attach as an Attachment details including Project Owner's contact information,

Are there any judgments, claims, disputes or litigation pending or outstanding involving the firm listed in Section
1 or any of its officers {or any of its partners if a partnership or any of the individual entities if a joint venture)?

e Ono see attached

If YES, attach as an Attachment details including Project Owner's contact information,
12, SAFETY PROGRAM:

Name of Contractor's Safety Officer: Jeremiah Merritt

include the following as attachments:

Citations & Notifications of Penalty (monetary or other) received within the last 5 years (indicate disposition
as applicable} - IF NONE SO STATE. NONE

EICDC" C-450, Qualificatfons Statement.
Copyright © 2013 National Soclety of Professional Engineers, American Councll of Engineering Companies,
and American Soclety of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 50f8




Current Legal Proceedings or Arbitrations for SNC

e lames Cotton vs. Sierra Nevada Construction, et al — Matter involving a third party injury that
occurred on one of Sierra Nevada Construction’s project. Litigation pending.

» The Springs Property Owner Association vs. Syncon Homes, et al — Matter involving alleged
construction defects by several contractors. SNC had a very small part of this project. Litigation
pending.

* Payment dispute with owner Hard Rock Casino South Lake Tahoe. Litigation pending.

* There are several other matters that are ongoing but are in the normal ordinary course of
business for a heavy civil construction company of SNC’s size. Currently, there are no
judgments against Sierra Nevada Construction. For further clarification, please call Marc
Markwell for more information at {775)355-0420.




SIERRA NEVADA CONSTRUCTION - WORK IN PROGRESS

Amount Completion  Design Owner
Agency Joh Name Type of Contract Contract Amount Compileted Date Engineer Owner Contact  Phone Owner Address
1263 5. Stewart St, Carson
Mevada Department of Transportation  |[NDOT #812-14 Reno Maintenance Yard | Grading and Paving $ 1,559,007.00 {$ 1,002,644.00 53015 NDOT Sam Lompa  |775-834-8330 [City, NV 89712
Lumos & 1105 Terminal Way, Suite 108,
Regional Transpertation Commission | 2014 Prevent Maintenance, Slumy Seal Asphalt Maintenance $ 248500000 {$ 2,239,038.00 &115 Assoc. Scott Gibson  |775-332-2137 |Reno, NV 89502
Summit P.0O, Box 256, Nixon, NV
Pyramid Lake Pajute Tribe Pelican Point Paving Project Street Reconsinuct $ 992,405.00 | $ 640,934.00 | 611415 Engineering | Johnnie Garcia |775-574-1000 {89424
Gary Davis | Sarah Hussong 221 Fairway Dr., Tahoe City,
Tahoe City PUD Kilnar Park Tennis Court Tennis Court Reconstruct $ 233,007.00 | § - 6/12/15 Group Johnson 530-580-6338 {CA 96145
City of 4081 Alvis Ct., Rocklin, CA
City of Rocklin South Whitney Rehab Project Street Recconstruct / Pave $ 704,707.00 | $ 73,607.00 6/15/15 Racklin Zach Bosch 016-625-5511 |95677
City of 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV
Cily of Sparks COS 2015 Street Rehab Unit 2 Street Reconstruct 3 507,007.00 | § - 6/30115 Sparks Andy Echeita  |775-353-2273 |89432
1263 S. Stewart St, Carson
Nevada Department of Transportation |NDOT #3563 Chip Seal $ 5,000,000.00 |$ 2,288325.00 6/3015 NDOT Kari Rhodes | 775-687-3367 |City, NV 89712
County of 2220 Tulare St. 6th Floor,
County of Fresno Fresno County Slumy Seal Slurry Seal $ 496,007.00 | § - 71n1s Fresho |D'Andra Buchanan |558-600-4108 |Frasno, CA 93721
City of 600 Sisth St., Lincoln, CA
City of Lincoln Lincoln 2014/2015 Street Micro Micro $ 245007.00 | $ - TH15 Lincoln Marc Femnandez |916-434-2480 |95648
201 N. Carson Street, Ste. 3,
Carson City 2014 Street Maintenance Project Asphalt Maintenance $ 855,000.00 | $ 324,837.00 7115 Carson City John Platt 775-283-7137 |Carson City, NV_B9T0H
24601 Center Ridge Rd., #200,
TA QOperating, ELC TA Travel - Wells Sitework $ 499,773.00 | § - 7HONMS - Darrell Sowards |760-552-2355 [Westlake, OH 44145
1 Main Street, Rio Vista, CA
City of Rio Vista Rio Vista 2014 Airport Pave Asphalt Maintenance 3 693,007.00 | § - 7/15M5 | Kirtey Hom Dave Mel 707-374-6451 |94571
Summit 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV
City of Sparks COS 2015 Pavement Replace Unit 1 Street Reconsiruct $ 406,007.00 | $ - 71515 Engineering | Andy Echeita  |775-353-2273 |89432
980 Sandhill Rd., Suite 100
Alston Construction Wildhorse Pelco Paving § 1,180,308.00 {§ - 71515 Techtonics Mark Drahos | 775-827-4631 |Reno, Nevada 89521
1033 Fifth St., Clovis, CA
City of Clovis Clovis Rubberized Cape Seal Cape Seal $ 1,372,00700 % - 8/4/15  |City of Clovis| Steve White  {559-324-2060 |93612
1263 8. Stewart St, Carson
Nevada Department of Transportation  |NDOT #3587 US 50 Cattle Guards Catlle Guard Repair 3 689,007.00 | § - 8115 NDOT John Angel 775-6887-3376 |City, NV 89712
City of 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV
Cily of Sparks COS 2015 Preventive Maintenance Slurry Seal 3 424,006.00 | $ . 81115 Sparks Brent Quilici 775-353-2273 [89432
Mohssen 3851 Performance Drive, Suite
Califomia Department of Transportation |Cattrans 03-0G1804 Winters Micro Micro 3 629,007.00 | § - 81115 Caltrans Gh i 916-869-6087 |E, Sacramento, CA 95838
United 5300 Mill Street, Rena, NV
United Construction Logisticenter Building A Sitework $ 2,603,50000 t$ 1,405258.00 81115 Construction | Mick Christ 775-870-3347 |89502
United 8300 Mill Street, Rena, NV
United Construction Logisticenter Bulding C Sitework $ 1,727.600.00 | $ 1,040,061.00 8115 Construction [ Nick Christensen {775-870-3347 |69502
Wood 1050 S. 21st Street, Sparks,
Q&D Construction, Inc. Q&D Southeast McCarran Paving § 4,011,140.00 [ $ 486,911.00 B/15/15 Rodgers Lance Semenke |775-786-2577 |NV 89431
Nichols 280 Gentry Way Suite 1, Reno,
SMC Contractors Edgewood Phase 3 Sitework § 6,059,642.00 |$§ 5526,077.00 8/15/115 Consulting Jog Steward  {TT5-324-1800 |NV 89502
Washce PO Box 11130, Reno, NV
Washoe County Washoe County Slurry 2015/2016 Slurry Seal $  1.534,02000 [ § - 9tMS County Greg Belantio  |775-328-2041 [89520-0027
Lumos & 1105 Terminal Way, Suite 108,
Regional Transportation Commission  |RTC 2015 Preventive Maintenance Slurry Seal § 257451200 (% - 9/18/15 Assac. Scott Gihson | 775-332-2137 |Renn, NV §9502
City of Reno City of Reno College Dr. Sewer Underground $ 3,016,00700 (5 - 10/30115 | City of Reno | Khalil Wilson  |775-334-2461 {PO Box 1800, Reno, NV 89505
P.O. Box 1900, Reno, NV
City of Reno 2015 Permanent Patch Program Asphalt Maintenance $ 1,267,007.00 | % 173,930.00 | 10/30/15 | City of Reno Kerrie Koski | 775-334-2548 |B9505
Nichals 290 Gentry Way Suite 1, Reno,
SMC Centracting, Inc. Edgewood Phase 4 Sitework $ 7.406311.00 |5 - 413016 Consulting Josh Merkow  |530-544-1423 |NV 89502




1068 AN AID) UOSIED g 815 Jeads UosIeD "N L0Z| §5ec-i88671 dieysiier 1102/13 Buididpiue LpiomaNs 00720082 LS UB L JSTEM |IiH Uosud SYIOM Dlignd A BOSIED
LZG68 AN '0USY "0CE 25 PAE H S1aNod 6686] 2096-258512 opesiucg 9A%)G 1102/ 19 SYIOMBNS |006L2 922 1§ 9SNOYPNOD) So4E T OWLIER “DUf UORSMLASLDG JPUNG
50668 AN oUSY ‘0061 X0 rd| VSEB-1ZEGLL UOSHAA TIEUN 1L0Z/1/8 UoNINISLO0SY 12aNS |00 200'S68 LS 1 1) 1 10Z ousy Jo A ouay o A

ZLZ6B AN AIID uosieD IS Bema)5 S £9Z || 69¥2-592 (DES) moo[ed Wl 1102/22/9 LOIOMSUCOSY 19908 [00715€ 66ES UORONASLIOdSY PUE BUAE} AIQ) EPEABN AND epeas Jo A0
£6/56 ¥D OJUSWeRES 1Sap0 TLELAE X08 "0'd[ 0051-€.4€ (916) Bheg UBlY] 11029/ aouelS)uep JiEtdsy [/ ¥2.'6858 SEA - 2oUBUBINIEW SAREUASI] |10Z D1Y |eag Aunig Asien
15196 V3 S0LUE] S4BT LInos ‘00 1# "pY Hodlly LO6L] 2819-2bG0ES By Ausys| 1L0ze8 UofPrjsucoay g Bumed uosdy |00 1950988 £ aselld Uodliy s0yE | s4eT Yyinos S0uE] a3e] yImog Jo AIg|
51856 VO OlBLieEReg 15e0S YIOE - 277 1] 2ee5-230 (0es)|  Jaislediuop orer| — 1LL0Z/0Es LOfONISLE00aY 18805 |00 200'98L 1§ 3fiin910D B9 ok ¥0ZPE-60 SUBKERD uoneHedsLel L J0 jJuauuedaq BILOKED
LOBEE AN "N 19948 JaNd $66] 9£05-8¢L (G20 Wuoidil "M sno|  1L0Z/0g/e eag diyd J00'000'02$ [eas di7) ssed Lostiey SHIOM Oland Aunoy o3

62h68 AN "sBULdg JoA(lS anuaAy Weuelo oege| |105-226-642 FEELEE SRR [E35 AMN|S/[EoS diyD (00 0065 1§ ALAIg driD D10 Auned UBAT Aurog uoky
Z0GBZ AN 065y B0} 015 ABM IBUILLBL GOl 1| LIL0-8veGll sluueq iUl 1 10Z/L/0F UOSNASU0DRY 192405 |00°Z00° 454 TS BpISayE’] £0-01 PajeploSLOY) olay UOISSILULLIOT UoHEHodsUEl | jeucibey
£0S68 AN OUay '129Ng Uiy 1S9M SOV || Z0v0-62E (G22) U9 aueds|  LIOZ/IEDL UONSANSU052Y 190NG JOO L00 LIS IESHP3[3 J8d - 1065 31 01d Eapel3 Hyd

01856 YD OMSWERES 188S UIOE - L2/ || 8695-/8G (OES) Agsap Uil L1OZ/0L/LL UoonNSUooeY 19811 |00 L0D'68S L 68 1 FIIMBURS $OS LWE-E0 SUBKED uofjejodsuel] jo pawpedsq elwojes
ZLi68 AN ADUbsied 1S Wemals "S €921 0042-2244 (844) mpeed epfog| ITLoz/SLLE uoporsuncay 1934S 100 /008568 ORIW L1-110-Z0 LOaN uoRepcdsLe) | Jo Jualigeds( BpeAaN}
1856 vo OJUSLIERES 18815 UOE - /271 ] 1£86-065 (0E5) sREWYed|  |Lo/BLILE UO[oTU)SU0DaYy 1880g 100200 Z56% 182 Td 9L YOPEWE-E0 SUBNED uongeHndsuRl J0 Wawpedsg plwoged
10268 AN M0 UDSIES) '€ 915 y9@)S U0SIED N 102| 6602288 (G40 dieys wor|” T tloz/0TEL UORoNNSU0TaY 198AS 00002058 1102 2oUBURJLIER Jo38S AT UOSIED R uosed jo kg
91E68 AN 'BYain] 10a4S UeW 'S 04| 6ozg-LET (GL4) apleq uod| LL0zZ/eEE HORNNSUOaY Jad4S [0 L00'659°L BUUSPIAA 05 SN UoAdes) exeing Aunod exaing

$19G6 ¥D 'OjAWERES 18a8S YIOE L2/ 18/0-2/8-092]  uuBULaiapA U] LLOZ/LERZL UO[oM)Suoday 18adg |00 Z00'985°E 21pog y018EL-60 SUBNED uonepodsuRl J0 Jusupedsg eROoKED
91EER AN eielid eelS UeW 'S OF| G925-JE2GLL Qelliz] uoy [N Buidiariiomals 00 Z00'8FS L jue|d jualijeal] aep fajlea Juasald) Aunog exaing

Z0S68 AN "0UH "B01 J)S Aeps leunia) colt[ 12108 (640 997 epuaig Z10EIHL uoRNSUoIRY JealS [0S LeF S0 13 (Ajiadsoid) £0-} | PBIEPIGSUOD OUSY D1Y UGES|WIIDY uopepodsuely jeuciboy
70968 AN ‘0USY "601 91 AeM [ELLD ] GOLE| FLI0BVE (G40 el Uolep| — Z10e/EzT uojonsucday 18383 |00 L00'¥998 uoneyliqeyay aUBT WE¥IS DIH UoISSIUWICY Uoepodsuell [Buoifiay
12G6% AN '0USY 'PAIG ebed 819n0d 995 £eot-829GLL enBe[D WIr|  ZL0ZELE UofanIjsucaey 18ang 002006213 1102 skemuny pahedun epeibiey Hodily Sqqe5 Ao aAN

Z0G68 AN "0USY "B0L A5 Aep [BUIS] GOLL| ¥/8E-GESGLZ uosqIoy Noas|  ZL0ZIRLE SOUBNSIIRKY WeydsY [00°€55'920 1S SOLEUSIIIEY SAIDBLGD |1OZ O1Y UDISSIALIDY) UolepodsURIY [ELOIDoY
Z1/69 AN 'AND osieD 1S UeM3IS S £oz L[ 060./-88g (620 BUUET SASS|  Z10Z/0elY SOUBUBUIEW YBYGSY [00°200'G613 1077 Bunped Z1-100-00 1LOON uonepodsuely jo waugedsq epeAsN
ZOGES AN "OuUdY - PATd IBIdED) GSE L | 9508-ve8 (G20 WPUGSRd WIF[ Z10Z/0E% Gudigrpomans [00°200°909% HIUN HOD VML LOINY JS1EAN EMOPESJY 8830l

Z0G68 AN 'OUSH §UL 215 ABM [EBILISL GOL L[ LZL0BVE (G20 S SRWIW] — ZLOZ/DEY UOONISU0d8Y 18885 |00 200 +¥0 1§ (15 15013) g @seld [0-| | PojEpiosuo] clay JIH UDISSIMNLIOD uojepodsuBLE [RuoIiay
71268 AN AID UOSIED 1S HEMBIS 'S £9¢ )| 0602888 GL0 Qe eASS|  ZI0Z/0E HOMR)S (00200261 abeuleiq Malnade] Z1-200-vD LOAN UDOELOdSUEL { JO juauntedaq BpEASN
70568 AN '0USH "BOL 915 ABM |BUILLIR L GOL L] 181 GEEGLL Uoslajed aule|g LTS UoIPniSU05ay 19205 | 007 L00°62E 1S BAIQ SPUBHEUS F G0 UOJSSILLIGY Uojepcdslil [eucifioy
51.€69 AN 'BYoinT 190K5 U= 'S 01| G925 42 GiL faweguod]  Z10Z/51/9 UDnaLsiooay 18305 [00°200'v2E v SIUBL{UIE J92NS | 10Z BY9Ing AUndD eYaing

ZLIEB AN ‘A uosied IS HeMaIS 'S €0z | 1042202 (G140 Uied apfog| — ziowiEe leag dS [00°LG¥ 280°98 €85 diyd | 1-900-5Q LOGN UCREHOdSURIY JO JUalIpede] EperaN
ZH.G8 AN AL UosIRD 1S LEMSIS 'S £971| 0962728 (62 2) uelwqe] eneq[  FLOZOLS Repaag Weydsy |00 200 60vS sa3edg Ad - ISR SWBATD YI0ISeA] sypedg ouay "yiny SIopIsIA uopuaauog spedg/olay
91856 VO "OjusleIoes 12943 WOE - 72/ 1] 5726-568 (0ES) uosuyor uelg| — ZLoZiELiL uonONAsUndaY 19988 (002006198 ORIN 02 1Y FOZEWP£0 SUERED uopencdsuel ] Jo JusWeda(] BUOj|ED
Z0568 AN "OU3Y 'g01 915 "AepA [PULDS) 50LL) $/816EES.L uosgiSy Noog] — Z10zeLL SoUeUSIUE Jeydsy |00 Z00°EELS UISJEd "SOUBUSIUEN SARUSARId 102 D1 UOISSIWLOD Uonepodsuel] [euobiay
G0GEE AN oSy '0061 X083 "0 d| k1 15-128 (G4} oG gog]  ZLOZHEIL LoRINKRSUOSaE 1895 [00°200°251'Z3 5 UM - ety 19ang Z1.02 ouay 1o AID ousy Jo Aun

ZLL68 AN ‘AID UDSIRD IS HemMSIS S £0Z1[ 066858 (G22)] maAsyd suspen]  ZIOZ/LE/L plenfsgeduoponnsuciay 1995 |00 20072613 SPIeng 8ied 21-500-2D LOON ucpepodsuel] Jo Justipedad EPEASN
Z0S68 AN "0l '80] 915 “AepA [PUMLS) GOLLFEZLO-8FE (11} SItUa] SRUIW] 710288 UDRONSUCDaY 18NS |00 [00 LEL1S {AQyuug) | 9Seld 20-1 L PeIepIosog cuay D1y UOISSHULIOD uonepodsuel [BUotiay
glE56 vo ClUsiEIoes 1eans i0E - J2/ 1| ¢6ve-cae (0ESH  19bVIoH REIW|  z1oe/1e/8 Aepang eydsy [00°200°969°2S AePdAQ 688 0/ 1Y $0Z63E-20 Suelie) uofepcdsuRl] JO Juelieda BUCHIED)
9068 AN AID) U0sIED) ‘Aensied [EL)SNPU] 10| 222E-OVE (GLL) prog BeS] Z10z/aL0L SpoMelS [00°ZBY LGS 5000 SONIW - [00LDS SIPPIA AGIEA, ojbed vonannsued ssli
01856 Vo CjUslueibeg eaus (N0E - JZL 1| JEBG-289 (0ES) UGN o8| 21027610k UCRONNSUOISY 199NS |00° 20065 E /S 9ONINIL 031 FOEGNIE-E0 SUeie] uofeMcdsue] | 30 Jueliedeg BUces)
0G196 WD "S0UBL E] HN0S "BUET] BIRE 2501 ] LZ09-2¥S (DES) clus wir| — ZL0Z/LEi0L togonysuooay eans [00°€91L° /2’ UcREINqEYay] PROY 2102 Sele] @%eT uinos jo A
Z0GE8 AN "0uay 501 9IS "Ap [eulula} cOL L] LLLo8FE (52 uosqiy §oog] — £10Z/ELS souBLBIUER YeLdsY [00'200'E55% [eag ¥oEID "aouBUBjul BAlUaARId Z10Z DLH Uolssiirliog) Uonepedsuel] JEUoiay
71168 AN A UDSIED 15 WEMDIS 'S £02) | 62 1-889 (62D 3d '360g ALUE | £l0e/1es uonpnnsuooey 19ans [00°200°696'93 ATy BIOIDIIA GOVE# LOUN uopepodsugi] Jousunedaq epeaeN
01866 ¥ Ojuellenes J9ais WOE L221] $0Se- 12085 ajedoy ofny|  £L0Z/18/8 Aepan0 viRH [007200°0028 AUNcT operop|3 - SUERjen BILOJ|ED UopeHOdsURI jo juswpedag

OLY68 AN SlliAlaupies) "oAUQ U Le6| 889659261 sswer IarT E1L02/02/8 SOUBUB|UIE| 18ans| 00,00/ 19% geyaY 18888 £102 US| JUSLLBA0ITW] |B1RURG SIABURIED)

02568 AN OUSY "2000E Xogd "0°d] +/8I-GEEG/L UOSGIO BOOS | E102/02/8 _ PHlI} PUNCIBIepU yjonuis U000y J0oNs| 00 J0098 1S qgyBY 1998S CANg HOSS|LULLGT) Uogepodsuel | feucibay)

21288 AN A0 uosie] 1S HEMAIS 'S £0ZL| JOEE-J89G1L weuaydsis|  EL0TSHE piengd Sed [ 00°200°8838 PIEND BMED UoRERosUB. . J0 JUSLILEdS(] EpEASN
01856 VO OJUSIWRES 18843 UIOE £Z41| ¥0GS-L¥20EG aledol o6nH}  £10E/51/8 |ESS0L0IN PUE B9ABA| 00 200°8558 aljnIaoeld - SUBED uolepodsued | §o Jusinieda RO

02068 AN 'dWNiUBH "Z 28NS 081 AMH "N 0G6Z| PZ18-¢8¥ 512 Bunue. pped|” ELOZ/0E/. e UOSSILURE pUB AIoe-] lap MaN| 00' 20021 § UlE UoissiULed ] pue Ajfoed JIapl MaN Auncg SAN
0568 AN oloy 19948 (16 3 Ges| 00e0BYEGLL WED KBS ELOZ/EIL PRASUOSSY YOI | BUjUUNY [00°2002+S$ PIAsE00eY Y28l Bujsdny JSH] [004S AUNoD SCSEM

02568 AN 0UaY ‘Z000€ Xod "O'd| 00p0-8FESL. UOSGD) BOOS|  ELOZIOEID Wdjed pUe yoeIG “Jue SAlUBAR)d (00°200°820°LE JUBN B HOBID BANUSARID £10Z UOSS|LULLIGY Logepedsuii] [euoibay

02568 AN 0U2Y "Z000€E 08 'O'd] 00b08PESLL uosQie) Yoos|  £LOZHEB SoURURUIEW 3AG3U0D (00 200 ELE LS SOHELBLEW ARSALOD UO|SSILILLIGY UCRELOds1R]), |etdibay

91956 VI olRLRbES 13005 TIOE 221 055 LyL 085 apdoy obnH]  £LOZHES wewubesy peoy pue }oMUIg|00° 200942 ) UBIpaiN 08 +OE0JE-E0 SUBN[ED uonepedsuel) jojuswpedaq elluoyied

AN URSNY {4} X08 "'O'd| 97029662/ e sinol — £102/08/6 UGHEIS diing Jo18008 |00 200'.26 €3 SWINSAS JBIBM UNSTY JO UMOL Aunod Japue

91866 V0 QUSRS 19985 WOE /22| POSS-Lt2085 apdol oBnH|  £10ZA1E je0d [28S teqqny yeydsy[00°200'880'L$ JE0]) [E9S 154Ny Heydsy suejes UGREVGdEUBIL Jo JUetiedeq eIlsED

02568 AN SUSH "Z000E Xod ‘'O'd| DOv0-BvESLL Uosqis) joog| — €10Z01E uofeArssald Judlianed [00°/00'989° 1§ ‘S8l 1888S SAl( Splseye] UoSsiwLeD uelepodsuell [puolisy

11656 AN 'UIPROY “I0 SIAN Lg0b| 1156629916 ZSREND BNOIN|  EloZile/e oeold HORSNRSUGISH 19985 [00°200°582 18 Fslolg UogORSUODaY 199G U0y Jo A

21268 AN "Ai) uosieD 15 1ema)s 'S €021 | 1988489611 wejuauydaig|  e102/1E/8 souRUBUEN Heydsy Jo0'100°L1Y 1S BMEMOSE O0E HS £LSE# LOON UOIENOOEUEL] jO Jusuiedog epeAsN
20568 AN olfay 'L apng *Rep, Auss 66z] 00BEL-FEE G pems Sor| — €10z/1Es JOMISPHIOMANSIO0 000'001 1§ KUISPESY oG JBong "ou| Bupoequed DS
19195 Vo ‘eoyorl] PeOY HOWNY GaXori] £Ri0)| F06e 285056 KpUeTppol| €10/ uononnsuose 19als 100°200'982'28 ale] ayig sAUQ SNYSLRID)| GO4ONI] JO UMD
2168 AN 'AID HOsSIED IS HEMAIS 'S €921 ] /086289617 uosAgioql|  vLOZ/¥ LY Spesbid) Mopeg/eUNSIEM [00T59 9195 piE A SOUBLIBIUEIN I IS brSe# LOGN UBENOdSURIL jo Jusiipedaqg epeAsN

1 Ev68 AN SHEAS Fep Joveld bev] £/2eL50-GLL OInD Wag|  ELOZ/ELES SOUBUSIUE JEUdsY (0D 96 G268 eabold SURUSMIRI SATRUSASY] €102 S¥ieds J0 D

0168 AN "®faing 12anS UBW 'S 01] G9Z5-JE2G1Z SPWReQ UOH|  £10%/1E/101 topenisuasay JaaS [00°'80L 602 €S WEIFoId SOUBUSUEI 19805 £102 Aunod eysIng

19196 VD 9a%0M} "peoy Yodiy eaxoni] oGeoLl] 611285065 WS WASM[ —€102/08/L 1 UGDNASUCOSY ¢ Buihed uoidy |00 826 OE8 FE webold Saueualue PRI £L02 PUSI HOdiy S00e] Sa¥0NI |
10868 AN OAIJ anuony 36100 1GAL| IveL il GLL|  PUBPIOWG SIUUSQ|  EL0e/0Z/a Busepnsonin |00 E99'Fres 1oal0ldg BUBENSOHIN £108 o3 J6 A0

£Z¥68 AN USPUIN ‘9L ¥oB 'O'd| 1029-28LGLL UoSEW PA|  €L0Z/LE/0) RePaRg UCISNASU5H Joohg |00 195 6EVS Joel0Jd ABLSAD PUE 1605 PEoH BL0Z Runed sebRog]

AN LRSI pir| X08 'O'd| 9/92¥06-G11 wesno)|  pLOZ/IEL UORINNSuGIsH 19945 [00°615006% alld SIUETSUIBN PEGH £10Z Runad BEUE]

LOJ6B AN "AID UDSIB] g SIS 198G UDSIBD "N 10| 5652288 (620 dieys yar| " #LOZ/LE/L UOHNRSU0Iy 19alig [OO'E8P 0043 wesBold SoUBUSIUER 198G CEOZ A3 uosieD Jo ApD
19196 v ooynl] ‘pecy Hodiy SaXoRI1 £al0l] y06Z-295-066 Apue)ppol|  FLoZ/LILL 71 PUNCIBIBPUFISUO00Y 1900S (00 200 P40 ¢8 I 254 SAUQ Al 5] SOHONIL IO UMOL ]
0GL96 'vD @O0UEL 948 ] UInos "sue Bjel 250L| JZ06-ErS WEe) ouuaw WIr] ~pige/1e@L | SPHIN PUnaUBlapunAsucaay 19a4S [000ES'ESE'GE adedsieans enusAy UDSIEH S0Uel ae \pnos Jo AND)|
SSaJppYy| # auolyd Uosiag Joejuon ayeq 1enuUos) jo +dA] | Junowy yoenuony aweN qor Kouaby|

usnpejdwon

JONIARIdXA 40 INFWILYLS "ONI ‘NOLLONYLSNOD VAVAIN VHY3IS




01856 Vo) '0JuslIeRes 1S UloE - £221] 86956286 {0EG) Agsoag) Wiy 800Z/HS sjuBLUBANIdL| ebeUeI(] [G0200'[26' 1S yoeag SBUY F0606¢ C08 SUBIED uopepodsuel ] Jo Juauiiedaq BNUONED
70568 AN ‘oUsy "PAIA IEIJED GGE 1| 950858 GLD [ 2002718 Buidignjue Lppomals (007 200'9ek' LS NUEL Jojeph PIUBIAS Apoyiny JS]EA SMOPESIN 39YONUL
10868 AN O[J 100NG JoAld vB6{ 0E0GBEL (G20)]  1i UOKIL ‘M SRO| _ 8002/5e/8 [Eag dus [00°Z00FIFS |eag diuy peoy sEEIF SJUOISSIUILIG] AUnoy oNI3
16956 YO OJUSWETIES "M oAy [oNdeD "M OLLL{SPor-218 (0L6)] aiddeyde pieual]  go00z/iess uopanisuodey 18a0g [G0°/00'62E'FS Fema|es) abpLg Jomo | OIBLIERES 153 JO AUD
02568 AN 'ouay 80t %S "Aepa eutia | SoL L L7081 (620 Aogep Brog| — g00Z/1€/8 UOIRNAISUOSY 19005 |00 L00 ¥E8 LS Remiied SOl $67 D14 UoISSILILIo]) Defepadsuel] [Euohod
70568 AN '0USY G0} 215 ABMA (BRG] GOL LY VZ}0-BVE (G20 ENEEEEN IECHEES UOIATISU035Y 19005 |1 06929093 BpESOJR ]/ PMIRAd D1y UDISSIWIOY uoferodsuel), [eUojfex
20568 AN 'OUSH 'GOL 915 REAA [BURMIB L SOL L] 1ZL0-8¥E (LD uebo] piaed|  S00z0ES Uop2rujsuoday 1eans [c07 200 /52'1S FueqAen D1 uoissiluwo uonepodsuely euoifay
10468 AN A0 UOSIED) ACpA AN SOGE] §5C2-488 (GLL) eld Uuor| B00Z/0€/s [eag AUng (91268 v6vS Aunjg Ay uos.ed gooz R ucse) o Mg
70568 AN OUSH "PAH IE0ED 55¢ 1] 950878 (G20 ypupand Wif| ™ go0z/ /0L Bud|dAlue | Siomells (0000 Z80'ES £# JUE1 19)ep SIyBieH YBleEY RUGUINY J318M, SMOPEa SononiL
DE1L68 AN 'seliap 5B oAU sauld Aeuo L "N 1075{ 5005629 (L08) Jyaoy aaeig|  8002/01/01 MOMRNS [OOTIGGLE LS 100~20-D-05EG-DY NIEd ¥80L] BURIED SAAIRG JS8I0] SN
91856 ¥D OJUBWEKIES J8aNS YOG - 12/ || 082E5EZ (0ES) sulliwnd suud|  800z/5Li0L Guilapiw Japinoys | 00720088328 PO FOQ18E-Z0 SUBRED Uonepodsugl], Jo Juslieds() elwojesn
LLSEE AN "Ouay D1 918 AWdld Joju5) Buais 0869 1216-95E (GLL) mysmoboe 1 opo|  800z/1e/0l SapiRn PUNoIBISpUAHOMONS |00'ShL SZL 08 13}U87) SUAULIOT UBDLELIRY 158/ MD1]) [BLULIEL Y
02568 AN "oUSY 80l 315 Reps [eullia ] 5oL L[ 1210-8vE (645 siuuag s1IsWRIN|  900/LE0} uofonijsiicasy J2ang [60° 2006973 DEOY PUBPPRM| UGiSSIULI0Y) uopepcdsuel | [elolbey
10268 AN AID UDSIED ABpA TANE G0GE| 65%e-/88GZL Zpyes usted|  |00Z/LLE SoplN puncJBiepUNASICOaY 18805 |00 Zrr 639 £3 orS055H SALIG Melnied RIg uosred 3o ALD
10268 AN ‘A uosied Aepn ming SOGE| Soe2-/69617 Neld Uuor| — 8002/0Z/1 | UoInAISucoay 19eNS |00 200 EL8S BuLSPIA SAHT MOIAIERID A9 UGSIeD) 10 AR
BOFGR AN A2|Lad "pAjg e0eT 18MIS G6G| OLB6-P8.I-G2L Uojed I9mo] BO0T/ /L BudigAue LAHoNSHS |00 LOD'ECE 13 6 elord smpngsell] SUBASALGT JSEM) KSSS J0 Aun
91966 VD "OJUBWENES '19aNS UIoE - 2Z/1| lu90-Z48-092 Jotiwiolg or] — 800Z/LI0L uonennsucoay Aemaard (607 200'88Y L8 PEOY HooX] H00Y ¥10682-60# SUBRIED Uonepodsuel] jo jusljedaq BILOHED
21268 AN AID UDIET 5 Hemals 'S €921 0Z08-E29 54 GE|A | 600Z/51/01 SAEJ PUE puLS IEYdsyY |00 L0030 6% pnadwng Jreeg LOON usijesodsuel ], Jo Jueliieda() EPEASN
02668 /AN 'WEWNOW Smed Joois IP0AWnH S GLE| S882-5E9-54L Aol BI9]  6002/G /0L SoueUBjUel JeUdsy [00 200 9528 yodify UBlunoyy Spies Aunog Jepuey
21269 AN A1) uosied) |5 HemMa)S 'S €91 L98C-789GL) e aaels|  600Z/L/LE uonpnysticasy Aemasty (oo’ Z00'ERES URYUNGI uoh /8EE# LOON uohepodsied] jo Juawpedaq EpeAaN
OZSEE Vo eolepuadapu] D Jameld O'd| 10Z0-8/8-084 JepleS UUoT| 600271/ 1L UOTINISUCOSY 16805 |00 200 9948 SaleT UoXIQ/MoBEg N SHIOM Dliand Aunos) oAG]
Z0G63 AN "ouad "0 915 Aep euia  SOLL| S 10BbeGl7 o] epuald]  B0OT/LEL UOINIISU00SY 19305 | 007198 285 LS UooRAsUDIRR 19915 [N Uiojssiwiungy topepodsuel | jelobay
20568 AN 'ousy ‘80l 315 Aep [BLLESL SOLE| FAIOBFESEL o8] epuaig]  B00Z/L/LL UOIRMIISUO3aY 13918 | 00°'E52 6¥a% 3l AS[Buo] LOISSIULIOT) UoNENcdsue) | jeuolbay
12568 AN OUdH PAIg 9[bed 2]anoQ 65| 2291-828-GLL anbeg E__._ 6002/1/LL HomsllS [00°Z00°ELES vodiny SGqES Aunod 24N
9LEGE VO "oluslueies wans UL - IZZL] 1050278091 Jawiolg scr)  800Z/L/EL 9ARd PUE pULIS BUdSY {00 Z00°E66 1S UGOUNF BICUOS #OOOEE-60# SUBRIED uonepodsuel) Jojusliiedsq eiiofjes
¥0 00143 001 9} S0BL3] ISLUNG BUGIS 0852] EVEE-DZSD1E Apseld WeM| 600G LY HOJPNISH000Y AcMaal] |00 200 ¥ES 1S A31pLo 66 WS SJUSLLLISACE JO UORBIO0ESY Aunog aung
v} 'BAODIGT OUOUEY "oRUD $IBd 1odsold 62.2] ¢169-698-818 1SND APUY|  GO0E/08 LY s ple puip 1eudsy (00720022218 T @5eld UOREPIqEySY JUsSWaAed BACPIOD OYoUEY Jo AED
[9EG6 VD DUBqUand 1sang pay) J0/8] B8Z1/-698602 ligRes BINET|  600ZIGLIZE UoRINsUCoaY 12888 |00 S8Z FE9 FS Z OSEld UORBIIANESE UMOIIMOQ JueqraAty Jo 41D
0168 AN "2Y2Ing JeaNg HEW 'S 0L] GO2G-/EZGLL BpWe UOH|  GO0Z/LER) Budidpiue Lppomsis (00720071 E2S jue] Jajep ejeIns Aunad exaung
6LP68 AN Ho0[eAO] ony SINYUNI 0GLL] 6184-€/2GI) iPUNN N[ 0L0ZISHE Boma)ls (00 200625 S[00L4RS AUne) BUSIag sl jooyos Auncd Bulysiad
QIEE8 AN Bjeun3 eans wWeW S 0Lf G926-LecGL)] BUnoA oLl  0102/1/9 605 AWNS PUE DUIREd |00 L00 8FE 1S 6007 SOUELSUEN Tealg Aunod exaing
Z0G68 AN "OUSY "0 9IS Aepp [PUMUSL SOLL] 1ALO-BPEGLT WEemMoW Ugeal — Dlog/ 19 Uolpniisliossy 198RS [00°400'2488 Z0-60 PRIEPIOSUCD Syieds UGISSILIWOY boneyodsuel | jeuolbay
91856 VO OJUBLUIBIDES 984S UINE J2.L[ SOE-ZZB-0ES sujied wodl  0102/1/9 UORMUIELI003Y 198RS |00 L0DZ285 vapsiielg ¢06831-20 SUEied uopeHodsuBl] Jo Jusliedsd Blliclied
Z0568 AN 'OUSH ‘801 915 ABM [BUIMUAL SOLL] 1LI0-8YE-GLL SIMRQ SIOUON| _ GLOZ/0EI9 UoINsucday J18eng |00 J05'6vS 1S BUE] enZapyENIBIA S LGISSULIoD ueneyodsues ], jeuolfey
Z65P6 Vo O[JIEA oAU ANID €EE )| SOFE-cva 0G| Uebuesue opaliiy]  QLO/EHE |eag diy3 [00'200'81ES [E85 dI4D UOSIEA JUNOJy 0BG 18I0 SN
91556 VD OlUSLIeDeS 1980S L J221| 906.-8¥008L Jowwolg =0ff — oLoz/iS1He RepanQ Jieydsy 00200 Z20' €8 Butip, 227 FO6ZFE-60 SUEReD UORBOUSUEI] J0 JUeieda( EILOED
10186 VO 'Sein)y ‘o30S UUON M 00Z| Z1GeECe-0c5| LosHagod loiseys|  oLozisls aJUeuS|uel Je0dsy [o0 L00'681S Yodify seinjfy| Selhjy Jo AHD)|
51556 VO OIIGLIERES Joans (AL [24F| BIB6-G92-08G UpENeG peN| OlLoz/0ae Uojprjsiooay 15aR8 [00° 7006248 &t AN ¥DSGTIELO SURRED HORENOdSURI] JO JUsWHEdR ) BILIGHED
9LE68 AN BYaing jeong uleW S 0| Sozs-lez-gr/] spWeq U0y gloz/oz/e SOUBUBIUIEH Jeddsy |00 2009658 SUEUSILIEN 19885 VY 0102 Auno) exalng
16956 v2) OWISLIBIOES IS8, " oAy [ONOED M OLLL| Svor-Z10-816 Giop AqoL]  oloerieie UGOTUEUCo8Y J00H5 |00 10} P2V 83 SnUBAY [OdED) 1S54 GUBLIERES 159AA Jo AND
20568 AN 'oudd "pAld deD GSEL] 0008+ERSLL IHBUEond Wirl — 0102/01/6 Buididpiue Lpuomais |00 200'2688 JUET 19315 UL 15aM) ROy JSJER SMOPES)] 99%oMIL
Z0G68_AN 'ouay 80| 815 Aepj leulunel coii| LZIDBYESIL SIUUSQ B9YIN|  01L0Z/08/6 UORITLASUOO8Y 190N5 |00 L0060V 1S 03NS JESEEA UGiSSIWoD uonepcdsugi] jeuoiiay
Z0SE8 AN '0uaYy "0 =18 Appa feuisia] GOLi| LZLOBveS/) jED Uslep|  0LOZ/OL UoIRTUISUCoRY 19aNS |00 Z00°'85Y S Z0-0L POIEpIOSUoD ouay uniSSILILIOY udnepodsuet | [suoiisy
6T¥53 AN 'SBULdS 19ARS "anuaAy WeYels) 066l L10S-2/5-5771 prRJd AeD]  DLOZILOL UoROISU0DaY 13208 |00 FE0'259% UORMSL035Y SAUCT 0SLIONY| Aunog ueky
91966 vD OuewRReg 1908 NOE J221| GOEV¢es0es|  msioun) swosar]  QLOZALOL BUiSPIAA PEOY [00° 20061 ES BIAUCISULICT FDB0EE-Z0 SUBRED uoRepodsUEl] jo juslieda() BILCED

21268 AN RO LUOSIE] 1S HeMalS G £9¢)| £8Ce6485.L R ETIIZaN oAEd pUE pUls) Yeudsy [00°700°E65°8S BisIA 08 Se2c# LOON
GIES8 AN EYalnd] 18eng UieN "S 03| S925-/E251L spweq uod|  0L0Z/LEL UBf3NN)SU008Y PEOYHEMBSIBIEM [00°Z00'9€6'ES PRISUCoaY JaMag ¥ JOlepA J98aS UER| Aunod exaing
0G196 V2 Sole] aYe] yinog g isesd mopesW 6221 plbabG08S GjosBreg oAl | LOZ/BLIE Jemagbuididsuemalls [00°200°L20'28 UORe}S il 88E Jan 1| PUSIF AN Slknd 2cUet ynog

JONIRIAdXT 40 LNJWILVY.LS "ONI ‘NOILONYLSNOD VAVAIN YH3IS







Rispans iy e e e L e L S R T e T ety
= = - = . . gmﬁw&%%%m‘%ﬁ@ﬁ e
R it ho Es et z.m_"-ﬁt_"g:m S e S e el e,

e i e e e S SR

S
ST gn T

e e
-

e
s

SN
R e
BT e
s R
ot s

T A

Jid -
L L

Gy
A RS S r ety

% Sy dEmnma e
s - S e

i PRl el Saeensen

e

Hodyle oty

S .2’&"““““'%% oS

e e e
7 m%m:@rg&m@ww i

sy it

e i s o g

Spesasyies eyt
R

SEEE
R 2‘5.‘.‘3.‘5;-, iz
SR e s )

SRR C

g

*g;%ag i

i

o e e e s R e
TR SR P s SR
UG s s e b St
Hednlba e e i o

SaEmR R R e b d et
L T L S s T el e e o
e T s
e e i S S

2

i
Zi{o%;
L

&

S deeene il
T e e P
s e

T

=
EE e
b

e

£ e

e e
il 4
Bt
i

e

SE

e
REC GRS s
e
SRR e
oy =
3

e i Bk T
S b

s
it 3
“xmi‘%'g“;é% iy

FnERg e

Bt
hitrsni

ot

o e

S e g e
s R e e S s e SRl e Jetns
SETEEmT R S kel 1

i ]
A R

T s LR
L = Foet T e
% e gongs s ‘Qk;:z;"a—c i
SR Gl FR D e e
Reshinne gt St

e T
S e
e H

i

e R

SEa ey
eI

SR R St fetinnl & fem el =
e e e R e e R ShEiatl e
ST e e : Eomiiaiisinoainnan e =
e e T qeEiny G e :

Bottngny e el (S e el S
S e e me s e
IR e e R e R e e
e R e e St et

e R S S e T T

gy Sboite i Eevin B b tan-
fur by B EhoiE
e

it
ji

o
B

i

i
i

15 £ T E ey
L O
s &

i e e e Nl e

Shemrmsonis Rl e e s o
S S SR s b e

S ey ERta m:@%w%«%m“;wﬁm%ﬂw 2

s - . . - =

el e S e e S D e L ey

T b M@Wﬁw S s ] T

e ST i Lo S E el e e

e o e L e L

iRt e T e
R

m E e e

S "*%Wg%”*i «Mﬁéﬁw"ﬁ“‘g”x" S %ﬁ?»&fzmg : "%Q‘E e

STk S e s SR e e s e e e
I G e M&gﬁ—&%?%* T

£t ittt

A A e

i
P A

e




Southern Nevada Cffice . Northern Nevada Office
2310 Corperate Clrcle, Suite 200 ’ 9670 Gateway Drive, Suite 100
Henderson, Nevada 839074 Reno, Nevada 89521
I The Nevada State Contractors Board certifies that
SIERRA NEVADA CONSTRUCTION INC l
Licensed since July 05, 1988 '
License No. 0025565
Is duly licensed as a contractor in the foliowing classification(s):
PRINCIPALS: . K LIMIT: Unlimited
A-GENERAL ENGINEERING EXPIRES: o7/31/2015
KEVIN LELAND ROBERTSON,President C i
MARC TERRY MARKWELL,CFO
I CRAIG DANIEL HOLT, Vice President '
’ //% M
cr@n. Nevada State Contractors Bodrd—"
| S m— oe— e——
STATE OF NEVADA STATE OF NEVADA
CONTRACTORS LICENSE STATE CONTRACTORS BOARD
THIS IS TO CERTIEY THAT THE COMPANY 9670 Gateway Drive, Suite 100 Reno, Nevada 89521
LSTED BELGW IS LICENSED IN THE STATE OF 2310 Corporate Gircle, Sulte 200 Hendarson, Nevada 89074
NEVADA FOR THE CLASSIFICATION(S) SHOWN:
SIERRA )r(\IEVADA CONSTRUCTIONING | 1c no POCKET CARD RE-ORDER FORM
P O BOX 50760 T s8 i
SPARKS NV 894350760 0025565 Bocket cord 3T Gofars 0T aaon ! adaivone!
EXPIRES: )
Firm Nameo
HMTlimited 07/31/2015 .
Class: A '
Date: By:,

SIERRA NEVADA CONSTRUCTION iNC
P OBOX 50780
' SPARKS NV 894350760

@ISPO Rev. 8:12) (0)2797 5w




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5-10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve a License for use of County Property
between the County of Storey (County), a political subdivision of the State of Nevada and
Mark Twain Community Center (MTCC), a Nevada non-profit corporation.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve a License for use of County Property hetween the
Storey County, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada and Mark Twain Community
Center (MTCC), a Nevada non-profit corporation.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Services Telephone: 847-0986

4, Staff summary: Storey County is identified as the owner of a parcel of real property located at 500
S8am Clemens Avenue in the Mark Twain area of Storey County. There is a building located on that parcel
of land which was formerly used as a fire station by the Storey County Fire Protection District known as
Fire Station #73. It is no longer used as a fire station, althongh fire equipment is stored within the structure.
It is currently available for use as a place where community meetings can take place and community
activities can oceur. Mark Twain Community Center is a non-profit corporation qualified as a 26 USC
§501(c)(3) tax exempt organization dedicated to providing a forum for addressing issues arising in the Mark
Twain community and for encouraging community activities. The organization desires to use Storey
County’s building as a place fo hold community meetings and other community functions.

This license serves as an agreement between both parties on how the building will be used and maintained
as a community center,

5. Supporting materials: License for use of county property
6. Fiscal impact: NONE
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review reguired:
MV\ L District Attorney
8. Reviewed by: '

C M\/ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

CMW Manager . Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved [
[1] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
‘Continued

e

Agenda Item No, | 5




LICENSE FOR USE OF COUNTY PROPERTY
AT 500 SAM CLEMENS AVENUE

This License for the use of County Property is made by and between the County of Storey
(County), a political subdivision of the State of Nevada and Mark Twain Community Center MTCC), a
Nevada non-profit corporation, and is effective as of the date of its execution by the last party signing
this license.

BACKGROUND

Storey County is identified as the owner of a parcel of real property located at 500 Sam Clemens
Avenue in the Mark Twain area of Storey County. There is a building located on that parcel of land
which was formerly used as a fire station by the Storey County Fire Protection District known as Fire
Station #73. It is no longer used as a fire station, although fire equipment is stored within the structure.
It is currently available for yse as a place where community meetings can take place and commuynity
activities can occur.

Mark Twain Community Center is a non-profit corporation qualified as a 26 USC §501(c)(3) tax
exempt organization dedicated to providing a forum for addressing issues arising in the Mark Twain
community and for encouraging community activities. The organization desires to use Storey County’s
building as a place to hold community meetings and other community functions.

| ' AGREEMENT
Accordingly, the parties agree as follows:

1. The following definition applies in this Agreement,
a. “Facility”, as used in this Agreement, means that portion of the building and grounds
located at 500 Sam Clemens Avenue which is not used for the storage of fire equipment.

2. County authorizes MTCC to utilize the Facility for so long as it may desire, for the purpose of
holding community meetings of the residents of the Mark Twain area of Storey County. County
also authorizes MTCC to utilize the unused portion of the building for the purpose of conducting
community activities, for office space, for storage of MTCC documents, files and materials
associated with MTCC’s authorized uses of the building.

3. MTCC shall pay for the costs of ytilities utilized by MTCC in the course of holding meetings
and conducting activities at the Facility. These utilities include water, heat, power, telephone
and internet service.

4. MTCC may not make any alterations or improvements to the Facility without the express
written permission of County. Upon termination of this license any alterations or improvements
made to the Facility which are affixed to the Facility shall become the property of County
without further payment or reimbursement to MTCC.




5. MTCC must maintain the Facility in a neat and orderly condition throughout the time this license

remains in effect. The MTCC is responsible for routine janitorial services. Any damage
occasioned to the Facility by the conduct of MTCC, its members and guests must be repaired at
the expense of MTCC. County will be responsible for the expense of routine repairs for ordinary
wear and tear.

. The license granted to MTCC by County to use the Facility is terminable at any time and for any

reason by either party to this Agreement. If the license is terminated by County, County will
give MTCC written notice ninety (90) days in advance of the termination that it is terminating
this license. The written notice provided by County may be mailed to MTCC at 500 Sam
Clemens Avenue, Dayton, Nevada 89403. This license may be terminated by MTCC without
giving advance notice to County and is effective upon delivery of written notice of the
termination either by personal delivery or by mailing to Community Services, P.O. Box 7, 372
South C Street Virginia City, NV 8944(. Upon termination of the license MTCC shall return the
Facility in a neat and clean condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted, free of the possessions of
MTCC.

. The license granted MTCC is not exclusive and County reserves the right at any time to grant

other or similar privileges to others to use the Facility.

. MTCC acknowledges that it will occupy and utilize the facility at its own risk and waives any

claim for damages for injury or loss of life to its members, officers, employees and volunteers
and agrees to indemnify and hold County harmless for any claims of injury or loss of life
occasioned by MTCC’s use of the Facility whether that claim is made by MTCC’s members,
officers, employees, volunteers or guests.

. The making, execution and delivery of this Agreement by MTCC has not been induced by any

representations, statements, warranties, or agreements other than those expressed in this
Agreement. This Agreement embodies the entire understanding of the parties and there are no
further or other agreements or understandings, written or oral, in effect between the parties,
relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement may only be modified or
amended by an instrument in writing signed by the parties to this Agreement.

Dated this____day of , 2015, Dated this ___ day of , 2015.
Marshal McBride, Chairman Ron Engelbrecht, President

Storey County Board of Commissioners Mark Twain Community Center
Attest:

Storey County Clerk




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: (- |lo- |5 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Marlette Water Agreement

2. Recommended motion: Move to approve and authorize the chairman to sign the contract to
provide water service from the Marlette system.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attomey’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0964

4. Staff summary: This contract of indeterminate end provides for the delivery of water by the
State of Nevada from the Marlette Water System to Storey County.,

5. Supporting materials: Contract to Provide Water Service

6. Fiscal impact: Cost of obtaining water from State of Nevada through the Marlette Water

System
Funds Available; Fund: Comptrolier

7. Legal review required: X  District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

Wunty Manager Other agency review:
~Board action:

[1 Approved i Approved with Modifications
[ Denied 1 Continued

Agenda Jtem No. \ b




CONTRACT TO PROVIDE WATER SERVICE

This Contract is made by and between Storey County (County), a political subdivision of
the State of Nevada and the State of Nevada (State), by and through the State Public Works
Division of the Department of Administration, Buildings and Grounds Section on behalf of the
Marlette Lake Water System (collectively referred to as the Parties) (“Agreement™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Marlette Lake Water System, composed of the water rights, easements,
pipelines, flumes and other fixtures and appurtenances used in connection with the collection,
transmission and storage of water in Carson City and Washoe and Storey Counties, was acquired

by the State of Nevada pursuant to law; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute 331.160, the Public Works Division of
the Department of Administration is responsible for the supervision and administration of the
functions of the Marlette Lake Water System; and

WHEREAS, Storey County is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada and pursuant
to Nevada Revised Statute 331.160 is entitled to water from the Marlette Lake Water System;
and ‘

WHEREAS, the State of Nevada purchased the Marlette Lake Water System in 1963 and
has provided water from the Marlette Lake Water System to Storey County and that commitment
has been continuous since the 1963 purchase (See Exhibit A, Deed between Marlette Lake
Company and the State of Nevada); and

WHEREAS, the State of Nevada recognizes that the Marlette Lake Water System is the
only reasonably available source of water for Storey County and recognizes the historical and
practical need to continue to provide water for the County while stilt preserving its obligations as
owner of the Marlette Lake Water System to ensure that the State’s water needs are met; and

WHEREAS, the County and the State Public Works Division are Public agencies as
defined by NRS 277.100, and pursuant to NRS 277.180, are authorized to contract for the
performance of any activity, service or undertaking which they are authorized by law to perform;
and

WHEREAS, the State owns rights to water generated in the Marlette Lake Water System
" including, Marlette Lake, Hobart Reservoir, and East Slope drainage areas and the appurtenances
necessary to collect, transmit, store, and distribute the water, all defined by the Nevada
Legislature as the Marlette Lake Water System; and

WHEREAS, the statutory purposes of the Marlette Lake Water System are to provide
adequate supplies of water to the areas served, maintain the appurtenances of the system in a




condition calculated to assure dependable supplies of water, and to sell water under equitable and
fiscally sound contractual agreements.

In consideration of the mutual covenants set forth, the County and the State agree as
follows:

ARTICLEI
DEFINITIONS

1.1 “State” means the State of Nevada.
1.2 “County” means Storey County.

1.3 “Marleite System™ means the Marlette Lake Water System as defined in NRS
331.160 extending to the point where it connects to the Storey County System at the center of -
Highway 393. See Exhibits B, 1974 Contract to Supply Water and Convey Water Distribution
Facilities State of Nevada — County of Storey and Exhibit C Marlette Pipeline System
Transferred to Storey County Map.

1.4 “County System” means the Storey County System and includes the pipeline that
connects to the Marlette System at the center of Highway 395 eastward to a point terminating at
the Syphon Qutlet in the SW ' of Sec. 15, T. 16 N, R. 20 E., right-of-way based on written
easement grants and United State B.L.M. use permits, and Pipeline easement from the Syphon
Outlet running northeasterly to Five Mile Reservoir located in the S ¥ of SE % of Sec. 2, T. 16
N., R. 20 E., right-of-way based on written easement grants and United States B.L. M. use
permits, and also including the Five Mile Reservoir and any other part of the County System,
See Exhibit B 1974 Contract to Supply Water and Convey Water Distribution Facilities State of
Nevada — County of Storey and Exhibit C Marlette Pipeline System Transferred to Storey
County Map.

1.5 “Raw Water” means water from the Marlette System, prior to {reatment.

1.6 *Available Raw Water” or “Available Water” means water that the State determines
to be in excess of that necessary for the State to fulfill water commitments predating this contract
or any new requirements of the State for water.

1.7 “Committed Water” means the amount of water necessary for water commitments
predating the purchase of the Marlette System or any new requirements of the State for water.

1.8 “Point of Delivery” means the point at which the State delivers and the County
receives water at the intersection of the pipeline at the center of Highway 395, as shown on
Exhibits Band C.

1.9. “Other Water Commitments” or “Other Commitments™ means the primary obligation
of the State to fulfill the State’s present and new water needs from the Marlette System and its
other, secondary obligations to fulfill commitments to supply water to the County wnder this




Agreement, to Carson City, and to any other parties fo which the State may commit to supply
water. See Exhibit D, Franktown Decree,

1.10 “SCADA” means Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA). A
computer-monitored alarm, response, control, and data acquisition system linked to the Marlette
System for the purpose of monitoring and operating the Marlette System,

ARTICLE TI
OWNERSHIP

2. Ownership. The State and County maintain ownership of their own facilities and
imply no transfer of ownership as part of this Agreement. The State retains absolute ownership,
supervision, and control of the Marlette System and the County retains absolute ownership,
supervision and control of the County System ds further defined above and illustrated on
Exhibits B and C.

ARTICLE IIT
TERM OF THE AGREEMENT

3.1. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall remain in effect for so long as the State
shall operate or be responsible for the operation of the Marlette System through its own agents or
through subcontractors unless sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement and applicable Nevada Revised Statutes. Upon cessation of the operation of the
Marlette System by the State the obligation of any contractor, assignee or purchaser of the
system will be subject to the terms of this Agreement but such person or entity may initiate the
termination of this Agreement as provided in section 3.1 below. With at least 90 days written
notice, either Party may request the renegotiation of the Agreement.

3.2. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either party with or without
cause provided that such a termination shall not be effective until ten (10) years after a party has
been served with written notice of termination. This Agreement may be immediately terminated
by the mutual consent of the parties. Additionally, the Parties expressly agree that this
Agreement may be terminated by mutual consent if for any reason the funding ability of either
party to satisfy this Agreement is withdrawn, limited, or impaired. All termination rights set
forth herein are subject to controlling Nevada Revised Statutes.

ARTICLEIV
SALE OF RAW WATER

4.1. Amounts of water. The State agrees that the County is entitled to purchase from the
State Raw Water up to the amounts'specified in the following schedule:




Year June, July, August, Remaining months Annual use limit
& September daily peak limit Acre feet
daily peak limit
2014 820,500 gpd 520,500 gpd 440.3 a/f
2015 833,500 gpd 533,500 gpd 448.2 aff
2016 846,500 gpd 546,500 gpd 456.1 a/f
2017 859,500 gpd 559,500 gpd 464.0 a/f
2018 872,500 gpd 572,500 gpd 471.9 o/f
2019 885,500 gpd 585,500 gpd 479.8 a/f
2020 898,500 gpd 598,500 gpd 487.7 a/f
2021 911,500 gpd 611,500 gpd 495.6 a/f
2022 924,500 gpd 624,500 gpd 503.5 a/f
2023 937,500 gpd 637,500 gpd 5114 o/f
2024 950,500 gpd 650,500 gpd 5193 a/f

In the years following 2024, the daily peak limit of water which Storey County will be entitled to
purchase from the Marlette System will increase by 13,000 gallons and the annual use limit will
increase 7.9 acre feet for each additional year, Delivery of these increased amounts is subject to
the Marlette and Storey System Limitations set forth in section 4.2 and elsewhere in this
Agreement. '

4.2 Marlette and Storey System Limitations. The Parties agree, understand and accept
that the current capabilities of both the County System and the Marlette System do not allow for
the delivery of the daily peak limit of water 1o which Storey County is entitled. The Parties
further recognize that neither System is capable of frequent nor extreme fluctuations in the
amount of water delivered. Based upon the current condition of the syphon, the current
tolerances of the County System may not exceed an operating pressure of 670 psi at the low
point of the syphon resulting in the maximum delivery of water in the amount of 325 gallons per
minute. These tolerances are based upon the pressure that the siphon can safely maintain while
ensuring water flows through the siphon. Storey County agrees to manage the flows to
customers as may be necessary to insure that adequate water levels are maintained at the Five
Mile Reservoir and Five Mile Tank. The Parties further agree and understand that as the County
System ages and/or is upgraded; these tolerances may be revised further by mutual written
amendment to reflect updated tolerances consistent with the current condition of the County
Systern and the Marlette System.,

The Parties further agree, understand and accept that the right of the County to receive water
from the State under this Agreement is subject to the limitation of, or the inability of the Marlette
System to supply water by reason of inadequate funding, breaks in the water line, or unavoidable




stoppage or interruption caused by weather conditions, icing, snow, floods, droughts, erosion,
vandalism, strikes, or other acts of God beyond the control of the State. Failures of delivery by
the State due to accident, disaster, mechanical breakdown, or otherwise are forgiven provided
reasonable steps are taken to restore service as soon as possible.

4 .3 Ceost of water. The County must pay the State for Raw Water at the rate of 55 cents
per 1,000 gallons for the current year and increasing to 75 cents per 1,000 gallons on July 1,
2015, amounts up to the specified daily peak limit or annual use limit. The Parties agree to
establish a time and place for payment.

4.4 Changing the cost of water. The County and State agree that the rate set forth in
section 4.3 is a reasonable reflection of the present costs of the System maintenance and water
delivery and market price as required by NRS 331.160 (5) (a)-(c). The County and State agree
that the methodology for setting the new cost for water delivered through this Agreement is
based on all the items necessary, but not limited to, operation and maintenance costs for pumps,
motors, pipelines, and water treatment, if any, including but not limited to replacement costs for
all such infrastructure.

4.5 Notice of cost change. The State shall give written notice in January of every odd-
numbered year to the County of any price increase in connection with providing water to the
County reflecting changes in the costs of the Marlette System maintenance, enlargements,
improvements, or water delivery. Any price increase made will not take effect until July 1* of the
year in which the increase is made.

4.6 Request for available water. The County may request Available Water from the
State after the County has received the daily peak limit of Raw Water for any one day in a
specific year or the annual use limit of Raw Water in any specific year provided for in section
4.1 and demonstrates a need for the additional water, The State, upon request, will determine if
the requested water is available. The County and State agree that aside from the Raw Water
committed per year to be provided the County, the State is not obligated to supply the County
with any Available Water at all if the State, in its sole discretion, determines that Available Raw
Water is not available, the system is not capable of delivering the requested water or may be
needed to meet other commitments.

4.7 Water Quality. The State only provides Raw Water from the Marlette System to the
County. However, the State in compliance with Nevada Department of Environmental
Protection (NDEP) performs annual water quality monitoring consistent with NDEP regulations.
The State shall provide the County with all testing and analysis generated from the State’s annual
monitoring. The cost of testing is shared by the County and other Raw Water recipients and is
included in the overall cost of operation.

4.8 Liability for Water Quality. The Parties acknowledge that the State is providing and
the County is receiving Raw Water, as defined herein. The State makes no warranty, expressed
or implied, as to the quality of water. The County agrees to indenmify and hold harmless the
State from and against any and all losses, costs, claims, damages, and expenses, including but not




limited to attorney’s fees, which the State may incur in any manner arising out of or connected
with the quality of the water provided to the County.

ARTICLEV
METERING, INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE

5.1 Maintenance and Repair. The State will be responsible for the maintenance and any
repairs needed for the Marlette System as defined in section 1.3. County will be responsible for
the maintenance and repair of the County System as identified in section 1.4 above.

5.2 State Meter/County Access to SCADA. The State must provide, place, and maintain
meters at points it determines as reasonably necessary to monitor flows of water supplied to the
County. All water delivered to the County is measured at the Lakeview Tank, The County has
limited access to the SCADA system data and can request upon reasonable notice to view
additional portions of the Marlette System, including pumping operations data via their own
computer system, at their own expense.

5.3 Meter Calibration. The State shall calibrate the Lakeview meter according to
manufacturer recommendations on an annual basis, The State shall provide the County with
copies of any resultant data.

5.4 Cooperation. The County will continue to allow the State access to the monitor at
Five Mile Tank and upper level storage facilities through the County and State’s VPN tunnels
and the SCADA system. The County will further ensure that no excessive runoff occurs at Five
Mile Tank (and that any runoff that does occur meets the requirements of all applicable laws and
decrees) by constantly monitoring water levels at Five Mile Tank. The County shall perform all
necessary maintenance to insure that the County’s monitoring system is operational and accurate.

5.5 County Inspection/Notice. The County agrees to inspect the entire County System at
least once a quarter for any unauthorized diversion of water from the County System. If the
County discovers any unauthorized diversion of water, the County will immediately act to end
the unauthorized diversion. The County will also immediately inform the State in writing and
provide the State with access to all information concerning the unauthorized diversion and fully
cooperate with any State efforts to end the unauthorized diversion.

ARTICLE VI
GENERAL PROVISIONS ON WATER SERVICE

6.1 Changes to System. The Partics agree that the Matlette System supplies the water
needs of numerous users and that the present and future needs of all users must be considered by
the State in making enlargements and improvements to the Mariette System. The State agrees to
provide the County with available information for any changes to the Marlette System.

6.2 Franktown Decree. The Parties agree that this Agreement is subject to the terms of
the Franktown Decree and the laws of Nevada and that the State may take all necessary actions
to ensure that none of the provisions of the Decree or laws of Nevada are violated by this




Agreement or by any action taken under or in connection with this Agreement by either the
County or the State. See Exhibit D, Franktown Decree.

6.3 Resale. The County agrees that it will not sell or resell water obtained by this
Agreement to any other distributors or to other than its normal municipal users without express
written permission of the State.

6.4 Impossibility. If any legal action is commenced in the future against the State in its
administrative or proprietary capacity in the administration of the Marlette System or the lands
embraced within the Marlette System, which action may culminate in a judgment against the
State, a depletion of the quantity of Available Water with which to supply the County, and
creation of impossibility of performance, the State shall be released from the obligations of this
Agreement to the extent of impossibility of performance thus created.

6. 5 Water Transfer. The State in its sole discretion may cause the transfer of water by
pump or other means from Marlette Lake to the Hobart Reservoir. A surcharge for the transfer
(comprised of the actual cost of the pumping system calculated on a unit basis per 1,000 gallons)
shall be added to the County’s base rate payments. The State shall manage and conduct such
transfers. Under no circumstance may these transfers disrupt the spawning activities of trout
brood stock or cause the surface level of Marlette Lake to fall more than three feet below the top
of the spillway of the existing dam.

6.6 Bond Payment Obligations. Pursuant to NRS 331.160, gencral obligation bonds
were issued on July 8, 2006 (Bond Issue 2006B), April 22, 2008 (Bond Issue 2008A), and
December 21, 2010 (Bond 2010D) to finance the capital costs of improving and modernizing the
System. Consistent with NRS 331.160 the water rate charged the County includes their
proportionate share for the repayment of the general obligation bonds. In the event, the County
secures an alternative water source, the County’s obligation to pay its proportionate cost of the
general obligation bonds remains until the bonds are paid in full. This paragraph survives the
termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE VII
GENERAL PROVISIONS

7.1. Service to other entities. The State will notify the County if the State desires to
supply other persons, entities, or political subdivision not currently served with Available Water
from the Marlette System. This notification does not give the Couanty any right of first refusal.
The State also retains the right to reallocate to other persons, entities, or political subdivisions,
following a reassessment by the State of the County’s use in the preceding year, the amount of
any Raw Water not used by the County in the preceding year. Any reallocation may occur only
after 30 days’ notice to the County.

7.2. Limited liability; Indemnification. Each Party agrees to indemnify and hold
harmless the other Party, to the extent provided by law, including, but not limited to, NRS
Chapter 41, from and against any liability arising out of the performance of this Agreement
proximately caused by any act or omission of its officers, agents, and employees. The Parties




will not waive and intend to assert available NRS chapter 41 liability limitations in all cases.
Contract liability of both Parties does not include punitive damages.

7.3. Reasonable Care. Each party must exercise reasonable care in the performance of
its obligations and rights under this Agreement to ensure that the other party’s facilities and
operations are not impaired or damaged.

7.4, Protection of a Party’s Separate Facilities. If any occurrence or conditions during
operation or maintenance of the interconnection threaten the physical integrity or operational
capability of a party’s separate facilities, upon notification to the other party the affected party
may stop operation or maintenance of the interconnection or take any action that the affected
party determines to be necessary to protect its own separate facilities. Any party may remove
part of the interconnection, if required, for emergency repair of its separate facilities provided
that the removing party restores such affected interconnection facilities as soon as possible.

7.5. Severability. If any provision contained in this Agreement is held to be
unenforceable by a court of law or equity, this Agreement will be construed as if the provision
did not exist and the non-enforceability of the provision will not be held to render any other
provision or provisions of this Agreement unenforceable,

7.6. Breach of Agreement. If a party is in breach of a portion of this Agreement, then the
party alleging the breach must provide written notice to the other party specifying the nature of
the violation and allowing 30 days for the party in breach to correct the violation. If the breach is
not corrected within the 30-day period, then the matter must be submitted to dispute resolution as
set forth in section 7.11. This Agreement deals with water resources and the provision of utility
service by two retail community water utility systems. As such, the public interest is not served
by the termination by either party to this Agreement absent an opportunity to resolve the alleged
breach or have its position on the claimed breach heard before a qualified arbitrator,

7.7. Nevada Law. The laws of the State of Nevada apply in interpreting and construing
this Agreement.

7.8. Notices. All written notices under this Agreement must be delivered to the following
officials at the addresses set forth below:

County Manager, Storey County
Storey County Courthouse
P.O.Box 176

Virginia City, Nevada 89440
(775) 847-0968




Gustavo ‘Gus’ Nunez, Administrator

State Public Works Division,

Department of Administration, Buildings and Grounds Section
Marlette Lake

515 E. Musser Street, Suite 101

Carson City, Nevada 89701

(775) 684-4141

Notice of any changes in names and addresses must be in writing.

7.9. Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Agreement constitutes the full and final
agreement between the Parties. This Agreement may not be amended or assigned except by an
agreement in writing signed by both Parties and it will be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the Parties’ respective successors and assigns.

7.1C. Force Majeure, Neither Party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Agreement
if it is prevented from performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public
transportation, civil or military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or
acts of God, including, without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an
event the intervening cause must not be through the fault of the party asserting such an excuse,
and the excused party is obligated to promptly perform in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement after the infervening cause ceases.

7.11. Dispute Resolution. The Parties agree to mediate before a department of the First
Tudicial District Court of the State of Nevada in and for City of Carson selected by a flip of the
coin any dispute between them that cannot be resolved by negotiations between the Parties. If
mediation is unsuccessful, litigation may proceed before the other department of the First
Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in and for the City of Carson.

7.12. Mutuaal Drafting. The terms and condifions of this Agreement were negotiated by
both Parties; therefore any ambiguity will not be constroed against either party.

7.13. Required Approval. This Agreement becomes effective upon approval by the
Storey County Board of County Commissioners, and the Public Works Division of the
Department of Administration and the Nevada Board of Examiners.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of

the day of

. 2015,

Storey County Board of Commissioners

By

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Commission

Date:

Attest:

By:

Vanessa Stephens

County Clerk

Date:

Approved as to form:

By:

District Attorey

Date:

State of Nevada, Department of
Administration, Public Works Division

By:

Gustavo Nuifiez, P.E.
Administrator

Date:

Approved as to form:

Adam Paul Laxalt
Attorney General

By

Susan K. Stewart
Deputy Attorney General

Date;

Board of Examiners
{Required for Execution)

By:

Date:




Exhibit A




© 0 @ O & Gt g

oM g e g
2 2 @ » & B EE

ie

second pert, the veceipt vhereof is hereby acknowledged does

“RL

. . . Bory of Laml lanagemont
® O e
. A ;
; A,

NEVADA, pariy of the va_c*ond part

"IITNESSETH.

States of Amevica, to it in hand paid by the sa:.d party of the

by these presents, graunt, bargain, and sell unto the ssid pacty
of Ehe second part, all that certain real prc;perty dituate in
the Counties of Washoe, Qrmsby and Storey, Staté of Nevada, mowe]-
particplarly descrdbed as follows: :
- P, 15 H., R. 18 E., M.D.B. & M,
‘Sec. 1y SEl; 8% of NEh: Wk
ggg %g: 5‘“’1‘.%3152 ngys% S;%%F;fsg%;, jg03

7. 15 N., ®. 19 E,, M.D.B. & H.

Bec, 7: Lots 1 and 2 of SI}‘-- sl,g o,_ Lot 2 of W
Ses, 18:; Lot 2 of SWy; Lot 2 of o

T, 15 ¥., R, 12 &,, h_f-.D.B,. & M.
Sec. 4:  5Why
seée. 7: Ik
See. 83 (complete}
Sec. 17: % of W
Sec. 18: Wi of NEY
See. 19: iot 2 of N‘ﬁ‘?
Ty 15 M., R. 19 E., M.DLB.E& H.
Sec. 5¢  S¥y; 8%k of WEx
T, 15 ¥., R, 19 8., H. D.B. & K.
Sec. 31 oY of MF

T oA H..ROIOE, ML &L

o Sezvada corpomtmn, oarty of the fipst part‘ and ‘.he STAJ.‘E OF




)
-

..
- aTe

£. 16 N., R, 19 E., 4.D.B.& M. ‘_
"8ec, 36; A panecel of land 3.3;’:!.an€ in Washoe and

Se.'c. 3 .7:'5')?5* ‘
See. 32y g '3"’5.1:‘” % .
Sze, 33 "W

= 3
fac. 34t ‘SFX, E‘

Ormsby Counties and being a portion of the sSWk-
of the W of the Wiy of the SW of Sectiou 36,
T, 16 ¥., R, 19 B., #.D.B, & i{,, on-the douth~
westerly side of Highway 395 a_né containing -
the buildings =nd watér control facllities at
Lakeview, furtiuc desexibed as follows: .

Bagimning on the southwesterly right-of-way
line of such highway 90 feet left ef station
L. S, 180+80; thence rumping southwest 540
festy thence goutheast 250 feet; thence noxth-
east 540 feet more or less te the highway
vight-of-wiy line, theuce along the right-of~
way line northwest 250 feet to the point of
beginiing, Contaiwing 3.1 acres move or less.

T. 16 N,, R, 20 E,, M.D,B. & M. {(Five Hile Reservoir -

Property)
Sec., 2: 8% of BBk !

TOGETHER WITH certain water rights, more particularly

‘described as follows:

T, 15 N., R. 18 and 19 E., M.F.B. & M. (aclette
Lake Waters)

AlL vights of beneficidl use and flow (including
souree; place, manner and period of use; peints
and means of diversion; amoumt and priority of
appropriation) owned or held with respect to

all tho waters draiming iuto Marlette Lake from
the surrounding watershed located in Secs. 1, 12
13 and 24, T. 15 N., R. 18 L., and Secs. 6, 7 and
18, T. 15 ., R. 19 E,, and fo all the watars and
storage thereof in Marlerte Lake located in Secs.
12 apd 13, . 15 ¥., R. 18 E., and Secs, 7 and
18, T. 15 N., R, 19 B., or any enlarpement thersof
or supplement thereto.‘\

T. 15 and 36 ¥., R, 19 E., ¥.D,3. & M.

¢

&11 rights of beneficial use and flow (including
source; place, manner and perlod of use; points
and means of diversion; smount and prioriiy of
wypropriation) owned or held with respeet Lo

the water of Hobart Creek (twibutary to Frank--
Hyem Cxealy and cortain warews in the Franlhtown




at and aboye ‘Red House located"in’s
3% and .32, 0. 16 ¥., R, 19 E, JHand Seos
5,6,7,8,9, 1% and 18, T. 15 ., R, 1% E,
and to all waters and storage thereof in
Hobart Reservoix located in §%.of NEk and
SEy of Ses, 5, T. 15 W., R, 19 E., or any
enlargement tnereof or supplement theveto,
all as cuve fully set forth and dafined in
2roof No. 024319, forming part of Findings
of Fact and Conclusions of Lawy, Judgwent
and Uecree entared July 11, 1960, in Case
No, 182,418, Dept. No. 1, Second Judicial
Distriet Court of the State of Nevada, in

and for the County of Washoe. i

.

T. 36 N., R. 20 E., M.D.B, & I, (Five Mile Reservoir)

411 rights owned or held with respect to ail
the waters and stovage thereof in Five Hile
Reservoir loeated in the 8% of 3B of Sec. 2,

T- 16 N-, -Ro 18 aﬂd 19 E., i{' Dn Bq & I‘i-

411 rights of beneficial uee and Flow (ine
_eluding cource; ploce, manner and periol of
use; polnts and means of diversion; apount
apd priovity of agnrep:;iation) owvided or held
with respeet to all the waters of Mill Cveek, .
Tuanzl Creek and others drainiag into North
Flune from the sutrounding wgtershed located
in Hees, 13, 24 end 25, T, 16 N., =, 18 8.,
and Gics. 18, 19 and 3, T, 16 N, %. 19 %,
and grainivg into the Tumnel locabed in See.
25, T, 16 N., R. 18 E., aud See. 30, T, 1§
N., &, 19 &, .

TOGETHER WITH vonexclugive easements for roadway

purposes, more particularly deseribed as fo.llows:

1. Road ruming norfherly from Sec. 1, T. & ¥.,

R. 18 E., near Spoone¥'s Summit to Narletwe Lake,

vight-of-way based on rights of record, written
£agement grants 2nd United States Forest Sexvice
use permiﬁ__s, ) .o
2. QRoad rumning from Marlette Lake northeasterly to
Hobaxt Creek Reservoix located in Sec. 5, 7. 15
¥., R. 1% B., right-of-way basad on rights of

record and weitten eascment gronts.

3. Road rumning from Hobart Reservoir eastorly,
to the Syphom Inlet (tanks) located in W of
Witk of Sec. 3,.T. 15 N., R. i9 E., right~of~way
based on rights of use snd rights of record,

’ - - . -




.

Road ruuning from Lakeview, northeasterly, -

i 5.

to Five Hild Reserveir, located in the 5% .
2 of SE% of Sec. 2, T. 16 N,, R, 20 E., 1zt .
_ of~way based on written easement granis -and
3 United States B, L. M. use permits, :

& 6. Roud rupning from Hobari Resexrvolr, noxrtherly,
and easterly through Red House diversion point
5 - {located in Sec, 3%, T. 16 ¥., R, 19 E., o
- old Frankeown highway in the Sif; of See. 22,
8 T. 16 N., R, 19 3., right-of-way based on
rights of uge, rights of record and writcten

7 easement grents,
8 7. Road ypuaning from Sze. 29, T. 16 M., B, 19

: E., (intersection wich Red House road), north~
9 westerly over the Tumnal (located in Secs, 25,

T. 16 ¥,, R, 18 E'fg and 30, T, 16 ¥., R, 19 E,)

10 to State Highway 28 in See. 23, ¥. 16 N., X, 18
. E., wight-of~way based on rights of use, righis
-2 of rzeeord and written easement grauts.
iz TOGETHER with easements for flumes and pipelines,
*% 4 more particularly described as follows:
14 1. Zasement for pipeline running from Macletie Lake °
tortherly to the west poptal of the Tumnel o
15 located in Sec. 25, 2,716 N., R, 18 E., wight-
R Ij of-pay based on rights of record, writlen esnagw
6y ment granks smd United States Forest Service
usg permits. .
17
2. ZEasement for flume (ox pipeline) ruwning south-
28 casterly from the east portal of the Tunmnel
] iocated in 8ee, 30, T. 16 N., R, 19 E., to Red
18 . House diversion poiunt Located in Seec, -§2, T. 18
2 R., R. 19 K., rwight-of-vay based on vights of
Y record and written easement prants.
2L 3. Pipeline easement running in a semicircular
24 route i a northerly and easterly direction
~ . fxom Red Hougse diversion point to the Syphon
23 Inlet (tanks) located in the N& of the ik
of See. 3, T. 15 N,, R. 19 E., right-of-way
24 based on ancient xights of use, rights of
tecord apd written easement grants.
=G 4, High pressure syphon pipeline easement Ffrom the
26 Syphon Inlet (tanks) running northeasterly
through Lakeview (Sec. 36, ¥. 16 N., R. 19 E,)
o termingting at the Syphon Outlet in the &4 of
Sec, 15, ¥. 16 W., R.'20 E., xight~of-way
ba based on written easement grankts and United
’ States B, L. M. use permits, ‘

29 b e .. Coed




M g

=

w 0 W ® o

10
1L

1z

13
14
18
le
17
13
19
20

2L

22

23

24
26
26
27

2

R, 20 E., vight-of-way based on written
easement grznty and Unlted States B, L., M.
use permiits.

6. Easement for flume (or pipeiine) Ffrow the
8% of 8ezc, 13, T. 16 W., R, L8 5., wunoing -
southerly tp the vest portal of the Twaazl
Jocated in rhe £y of Bee, 25, T. 16 ¥W,, &,
$18 2., rvight-pf~way based on wights of ra.czd,

TOG.CHER WITH a cerbain easement knowm as the »oBART .
CREER EASEMENT, more perticularly described as follows:

Right to flow watex from Hobars Lesctvoix
located in the B4 of Sec, 5, T. 5 4., B, 19
E., down Hobart Cresk (noxtherly) co Red Nuusa
polnt of divetsion located in the 8% of 8Sec, 3%,
T. 16 N.; R. 19 E., right-eF-way badted on rishts
oF record. . '

TOGETEER. WITH an easexent for the puxpose of a tuwanel,

more pantleularly described as follows:

Easement for a Tumnel rwaning from the L"’g of
Sec, 25, T. 16 N., R. 18 Z., to che ¥ of
Bec. 33, T. 16 W,, R, 19 K., in a general
east-west. direstion, righr-of-way based on
rights of wecord.

TOGETHER WITH a certain Speecial Use Permilt in ceunec~
tion with Marlette Lake, move particularly deseribed as follows:
Special Use Permit granted by Uniped Stares
Forest Service with vespect to W of Sec.li8,
T. 3 W, R, 19 E,, and NRE of Sec, 12, T, 15
N., R. 18 E, .
TOGETHER, WITH, as to all the aforesaid launds, water

rights and easements, all improvements, tenements, hereditaments

and appurtenances thereunte belonging or in anywise appertatning,|

and all the roversion and reversions, remainder and remainders,
venis, iseves and profits the¥eof, iamcluding but not by way of

limitation, all water collectlon, storage, transmission and dis-

tribution facilities, agyeducts, ditches, tunnels, tanks, water:

gates, f£lumes, weirs, syphons, waterco,m.'ses,;C(I'am_s,':"q\z}'_.verts N

Yeidmae  mater gomdntea. watermetevs, vinelines avd flums lines,




DY I

T =2 o ;

L]

1o
11
12
13
14
15
18

17
18

1%
20

21

22
23
265
26
27
28

29

o 0

the water in the North Fluke area, Hobart Creek and Franktown
Cuesk Watershed and Mhr;ette Lake, to and including a point on
the pipeline leading casterly £rom the easterly outlet of the
Five Mile Reservoir to Virginia City, Stovey County, Novada,
which point is located aﬁpzoximataly 600 feet, more oy loss,
ecasterly from such cutlet and at which there‘%s prasenily
installed a watermeter. .

TO HAVE AND TC TOLD the sajd presicas, together with
the gppurtenences, uato the said party of the second part, and
to its successors and assigns forever,

IH WSS WEEREOF, the sald party of the £izst pact

has.hereunto set iis hend and corporate seal the day and year

‘first hereinabove weltten.

MARLETTE LAKE CDi‘f}l??iN} .
By _ﬁéﬁﬂ;/éf}é”ﬂ,&gjéi;gg{i?y
i P

Title  PRESIDENT -

ATTEST: .o
By, 5f o1 .ﬁE £,
Title _srqunzany

s




o ey .
RS & &
i STATE OF _NEW JERSEY 3 , '
| comry or BERGEN g o8
$ On this ___ doy of . 3063, sudire
% me, the mdersigned, a otary Fublic in ond fou said County
B and State, personally appeared _ Herbert J, Kaell ool
é Francis B, Fallon » known to me o Be tha Fressdont
7 and Secretary of MARLETITE LAKE COMPANY, the corporation thst
8 executed the forvegoing instrument, and upon cath gid depose
i that they aré the officers of said corporation as above
01 designated; that they ave acquainted with the seal of said
1 corporation and that the seal affized to $aid instrument is
2 the corperate seal of said coxvoration; that the signatures .
¥ I to satd instrument was made by officexs of said sorporation :
% as ihdicated afrer said' signatures; and that tl;ze said corpo- {
15 rati:bn executed the said instrument freely anri"voluntarily .?
AR and for the uses and purposes therein mentioned ’
7 IN WIINESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto sek my hand aud i
18 affived my official seal at ny office in sa:.d Cou-w.t Y. and State. f
19 the day énd yedr in this certificate first .ab? e_ m’itten.
20 :
# ; ‘LQB\ Guinety Hv—w 'R
20 . : Nota GRLTC ™ Moty LB A0 < o
} a5 || o My_ cﬁmiss}.on eRpIT LI AN
25 '
!
27 ,
28 R o e.
2 . !




i

¢ W

Department of Conservation and Natural Resources

Division of State Lands REERVRE
Bur, of Lond {anagomant
HEVAUA LAND ORI9GI

FEB26 1964 Joso

FEVATIS VA ¢YORG
A0, HEVAD

Garson tlty, Nevada
Pebruary 24, 1964

Application for Right of Way

I, Hugh A, Shamberger, State Land Reglster of the
State of Nevads, State 0ffice Bullding, Carson City, Nevada,
by the authority vasted in me by Chapter 462 - 1963 Statutes
of Nevada do heveby meke application to the Department of
the Interlor, Bureau of Land Management, for an eagement
fior & right of way over and through the following deseribed
property, to-wit:
' T Mount Diablo Mgri’di.an
T. 15 N., R, 18 K., L
Seq. 12, In WWY v .
2 ) . 5 TfV
T. 13 ¥., R 19 E., !% 65 :
58018, Tn NEY WY / I—
T. 16 No, Re 19Eey — 04 § #7729
Sec. 35, sWk, .
Sec. 36, SEk W, ek o ¥PF "
T A6 N., R 20 E,, REr e
, e a0 S
Sec,. 10, BY SW%, B} W0k, WyNEY,.c3
Bec, 2, 8% Sw,-»37¥0%
Sec, ;.a SEY SBY, 0 ¥ B AL
Sec, 20, 5%, =~ odTH¥ETEL
gec. 30, ML - o H¥ 2
The State plauns to use thisg right of w

purpese of mailuntaining the pipeline for the trafispdeaion and
storage of watdy at Marlette Lake.

PN

v

State Lend Repister
/s Fle




Exhibit B




10
12
12
13
14
15
15
17
1s

19

21
22
25
24
28
26
27
28
29
30
31
32

DECEIVE
. LQEAP:;E 195’4& @

DIREGYOR OF GEMERAL SERVICES
CONTRACT 7O SUPPLY WATER AND CONVEY
“THATER DLGIRIBLTICH PACILITIE
STETE OF NEVADA -~ CODUTY OF ST0REY

THIS CONTRACYT, made and entered into this ggﬁﬁgflday of
é£4J¢~L ", 1974, by and between the State of Nevada, in bohalf
of’its MARLETTE LARE WATER SYSTEM, hereinafter referred to herein
as “State”, and the County of Storey, in behalf of the Storey
County Water Company, suceessor to the Virginia Clty Water
Company, to be a county-gwned water utility sexvicing the gf;ies
and communities of Virginia City, silver City and Gold Hill,
Nevada, hereinafter reforved to herein as "County"

WITNESSETH:

THAT WHEREAS Chapter 713, Statutes of Nevada 1373 autho-~
rizes the Director of the Depariment of Administration to sell
and cenvey a portion of the water system deseribed hereln, and
k0 execute this contract with Virginia City, it is recognized by
the parties hereto that, under Nevada law, the unincorporated
town of Virginia City iz not sui juris and ﬁhah Storey County
iz the proper contracting party on Virginia City's behalf, and

WHEREAE the County has entered into negotiations with the
Virginia City Water Company to purchase the said Water Company,
and .

WHEREAS said County has applied to the Fafmers'ﬁome
Administration, U. $. Department of Agyiculture, United States
Government, for funds to purchase the gama, and

WHEREAS the Parmers Home Administration requires a contract
to supply water be executed prior to.the release of any funds
for the purchase of sald Water Company, and.

WHEREAS it is agreed by the parties hereto that the said
water rights shall be transferred to and possessed by the County
upon the purchase of the Virginia City Water Company, and

WHEREAS the State and the County desire to renew that

1.




L - I R

10
i
12
13
14
15
18
17
ig
19
20
21
22

23

25
26
27
23
29
30

31

certain contract entered into between the State of Nevada and the
Virginia City Water Company, dated February 15, 1967, substitute
ing the sald County for the Viecginia Qlity Veter Company,

NCW, therefore, in consideration of the premises and the
mutual undertakings and obligations herein assnmed, ths parties
hereto do agrea and contract as followa:

1. The State agrees to delivar 300,000 gallons of water a
day to the County pursuant to a recognized prierity right. BAny
water delivered to the County beyond the amount of 300,000 gallons
per day is delivered at the discretion of the State and the County
has no prioxity under the terns of this agreement to any addi~
tional water. The State will atbempt to make additional watex
avallable hut such water 15 delivered at the discretion of the
State. The water used in large amounts in esuppressing and extin-
guishing fires will not bs charged to the Uounty, The conditions
of limitations upon the duty of the State to supply water to the
County, a5 in this paragraph recited, are the following:

{2} In the even®t that a Jegal action or leqal actions
ars commenced in the future against the State in its administra-
tive or proprietorship capacity, 15 the administration of its
Harletie Lake Water System, elaiming rights to the distribution

of the water of said system, or the lands embrased within saild

system, wiich action or actions may cuiminate in a judgnent or

judoments against the State, thereby depleting ths gquantity of
available waters for the discharge of the aforementioned provi-
sion, creating an bmpossibility of performance, the Stake shall
be released from the obligation to the extent of the'impossibility
of performanca, thus created. At present no such actions are
pending or contemplated. '

{b} The rights of the County hereundexr +to receive
wafer fxom the State, by its Marlette Lake Watexr System, under

the terms and provisions hereof, are subject to the further

24




~N ®m o o W

Les]

10
13
12
13
14
i5
16
17
18
19
20
21
2z
23
24
25

27
28
29
30
31

limitation of the inability of the state to supnly, by reason of
breaks in the water line, unavoidable stoppage or interruptions
caused by weather conditions, icing, znow conditions, floods,
drought, ervsion, the public enemy, strike or other acts of God
hayond the control of the Btate,

{c} That parties reoognize that evaporation, leaks
and other causes will result in unaccounted for losses of water
in the County system For which the County will not be reimbursed
by its customers. To eguitably adjust and distribute the expense
of such unaccounted for losses bstween the partles the State
agrees to give the County a oredit of ten percent (10%) cn each
monthly billing provided in paragraph 4 hereof. -

2. The State agrees to deliver the water to the County at a
meter presently located near the five mile reservoir. The State
will remain responsible for the repair and maintenance of the
system lying between the water source and the syphon to Highway
385 at Lakeview, and the County will be responsible for the
repair and maintenance of ite system lying from Highway 395
through the balance of the distribution system.

3. The water gold, or to be sold and delivered, under the
terms and provisions hereof, shall be measured by meter owned and
méintained by the County at the present location or at a point
mutually agreeable to both parties, and the reading of the meter
shall be by an agent of the State, monthly, on the last Gay oY
approximately the 1a§t day of each month during the torm hereof.

4. The price st which such water shall be sold during the
term of this contrxact shall be sixteen cents ($.16) per one
thousand (1,000} gallons as neasurod by said meter until July 1,
1877, at which time the price shall he reneactiated on a reason-
able bésis as reflected by the cconony and the actual nocessity
of chamting the price. Billings by the State to the County shill

be at or ncar the beginning of each month duwring the torm hercof,

3.




A

o

~ @

T 1o

1l
iz
13

14

18
7
1g
19
20
21
22
23
z4
28
28
27
29
2¢

30

1%
[

and the County agrees to pay and settle each billing on or before

© the fifteenth {(15th} day of the month after receipt of billing,

representing the payment of the water services for the past com-
pleted calendaw month.

L fhe provisions of this contract shall become effective
in respoct to the metered charge of water congumed by the County,
at the rate provided in the lasi preceding paragraph, on the date
hereaiter that the County shall purchase and assume control of
the Virginia City Water.COmpany.

6. The prcvisiong of this contract shall remain in effect
until July 1, 1977. It Is further agreed that this contract
shall become effective on the date that the Ceunty completes
the purchase of the Virginia City Water Company, and ghall be
conditvioned tpon the said purchase. It is farther ayreed that
the State will hot hold County responsible for any water pur-
chased by the Virginia City Water Company prior to the time the
County asgumes control of the said Water Company.

7. The parties ayree that in the event of s losg of subw
stantial quantities of water by the County, occasioned by an
sarthouake, the public eneny, act of God, operational losses, oy
unforeseen circumstance beyond the control of the County, as a
consequence of which substantial guantities of water are lost
and although metered by the State are never sold to the consuming
public of the araz served'by the County, the County shall have
the right to make application to the State for an adjustment of
its billing and shall subnit evidence of such emergency loss.

In such event, it shall be the duty ¢f the State to adjust its
bllling ko discoﬁﬁt therefrom the metered charge of the water
establighed as lost. In making such adjustment, the State shall
considor the records a8 to waters previously metered and other
relevant dats and facts respecting the omergency loss, and the

County agreeg to remedy and repalr all such losses as quickly as

4.




[+ SN 7 .- I

@w o o~ o

10
It
12
13
14
i85
16
17
13
le
?0
22
22
23
24
25
26
=7
28
29

S0

31

52

reasonably possible,

B, The partles further agree that if a meter [or meters)
hreaks down, becomes "Jammed" or otherwise defective in its
{their) operation, by which, if such meter {or meters) had not
become defective or inoperative an acpurate reading would have

bean obtained, such faot shall he compunicated to the county.

-After such communication, the parties shall confer and the facts

shall be explained to the County, after which an adjustment

shall be made and an accord reached as to the water that was
consured, despite the fact that the meter (or meters) does not
regiater the same. In the making of such an adjustment or accord,
for the purposes of billing, the parties shall consider the
recoxds as to water previously metered, the pericd of time in
which the deféct existed, and other relevant data.

8. It is further provided that thls contract may be amended
or renewed npon mutwal agreement of the State and the County, IF
the two partles cap ndt agree upeh proposed increase ox decrease
in the rate rharged for water, the matter shall be submitied to
arbitration before three (3) arbitra;ors, one representing the
Departmnent of Adminiétratiog, one representing the County, and
one to he selected frxom the Publiec Service Commissicn and the
parties agree t0 ke bound by the decision reached by the arbitra-
tors.

10. The County shall, at its own cost and expense, comply
with all requirements of the Health Division of the Department
of Human Resources, relative to chloxination and purification
of all water to be sold and delivered hereunder. The State
will use ité best efforts o provide the County with water free
fxom contaeination, but cannot warrant or guarantec the purlty
of guch water,

il. Checks by the Cournty in pavment of the monthly billing

for water service or sales hereunder, at the rate aforesaid shall

5.




w o =~ o O b da 0 W

T
A W N OH O

)
[}

16
17
18
19
20
21
22,

24
28
28
a7
28
29
B0
31
32

be made paysble by the CTounty to the State, payable as Follows:
“STATE OF NEVADA"
RDepartment of General Services

Such checks shall be mailed to: Deépartment of General
Bervlces, Caxaon City, Hevada.

12. All notlees hersunder shall be In writing, by Reglatered
HMail, and shall be directed to the parties as referred in the
firet paragraph of this contract,

13. Hothing contained herein shall be construed in such a
manner as to require the repair or yeplacement of any of the
facilities owned by the State in the Administration of the
Marlette Lake Water System, or the construction of further or
enlarged facilitlas to such system, to the end that more watey
may ha made available to the County. In this respeck, the parties
agrea that any goch improvements to the said sysiem shall be undex~
taken entirely at the discretion of the Starae, both as o timing
and as to the projocts, lmprovenents and/or enlargements,

14, The State hexeby couveys to the County, in considera-
tion of the sum of Five hundred 2ollars {$500.00}, the syphon
sysvam and rights of way relating thereto, more particularly
described as follows:

(a) Hlgh vressure syphon pipeline eagement from the
center of Hijhway 393 eastward to a point termdinating at the
Syphon Qutlet in the SW 1/4 of Sec. 15, T. 18 N., . 20 E.,
right-cf-way based on written casement grants and United States
Boh ¥, use parmits.

(b} Pipeline casewment from the Syphon.oﬁtlet running
northeasterly to Five Mile Reservolr located in the § 1/2 of SE
174 oi Sec. 2, P« 16 W, R. 20 E., right-of-way based on written
easement grants and United States B.L.M. use permits, and also
including the Five Mils Rasarvoir.

In conjunction thexewith, it ig agresd that the pressure

6.




Lo RS oy th & w N

w

10
13
12
13
14
156
1ls
17
138
ig
29
21
22
25
24
25
28
27
28
20
50
3L

gauges fox the sald syphon systan will be located at the “"Lakeview

House",

15, The terms and provisions of this conkract shall be

binding upon and shall iaure to the benefit of the parties hercto

and their respective successors and assigns,

IN WITNESS WHEREOP, the parties hereto have hereunto executed

this contract, the day and vear first ahove written.

ESECUTED IN TRIPLICATE.

STATE OF NEVADA
Rarlette Lake Water Systenm

Department of Administration

By -Q—'“D-:fifﬁ- éé.wﬁeﬂ.—f

Yeagy Glover, Director
Pepartment of General Services

Approved by commitiee actlon
taken in Carson Clty, Nevada,
on March 29, 1374, pursuant

to section 8, chapter 713,
Statutes of Nevada 1873,

-

ETOREY COUNTY COMMYISSIONBRS
in and for Storay County and the
Storey Tounty Water Company

7 ;/"
2  d—
(ﬂlﬂyé%“ﬁ Raleman By//mu/ ﬁﬁ,wq

Interin Finance Committes

Cpalrman




Exhibit C




REVISED 7/29/2014

Departmeni of
Conservation &
Maturaf Rasources
| ]
NEVAD

Mf ¥ _7.~

i1
NTATE Lani

/,m

MARLETTE PIPELINE SYSTEM
TRANSFERRED TO
STOREY COUNTY

-~ EASEMENTS AND FACILITIES
- TRANSFERRED

NORTH

0 1,500 3,000
I S
Feet

This map hes besn pragared lor the use
of ihe Woveoa Divisor of Siate Lands for
Husirative Jurposos orly 12 doos mof
roprasent & survoy of ive sramisas. No
lHabifily is azyamed BS lo o sullfciancy
or 2ccuracy of the dala delinsated heroon,




MR BAlEGINOD RIOP BY) 10 ASBNTIIE IO
Aausioung Gy 01 59 POUINTSS ©) Aaei
oy saspuad oyl (0 Aoans B uRSO0R
Jau aoop i Ao sasodmd sapensag)

404 SAUET G1R1T JO UOISIART BRBAN i} JO
asn ayy Jof pasodayd usae oy dal Syl

jasd
aze 091 Q

Hi4ON

QAIHHFASNYEL
SALMOVE ONY SLNINITYS —edd

INIWO3S NE2LSZM
ALNOOD ATHOLS
QJ. QIVYTISNVYHL
WILSAS ANIMAdid 21LE318VIR

wagmasey |enjeny
2 hofeBsUGY
Ioswhedag

PLOZBZIL QATIATY




Exhibit D




364 P.2d 1069
77 Nev, 348, 364 P.2d 1069
(Cite as: 77 Nev. 348, 364 P.2d 1069}

B

Supreme Court of Nevada.

In the Matter of the DETERMINATION OF THE
RELATIVE RIGHTS IN AND TO THE WATERS
OF FRANKTOWN CREEK and its Tributaries in
WASHOE COUNTY, State of Nevada.
FRAKTOWN CREEK IRRIGATION COMPANY,

Ine., Appellant, )
v.
MARLETTE LAKE COMPANY, a Nevada Corpo-
ration, and State Engineer of the State of Nevada,
Respondents.

No. 4386,
Sept. 27, 1961.

Proceeding on exceptions to determination of the
State Engineer in regerd to rights of various clajimants
to waters of a creek. The 2nd Judicial District Coutt,
Washoe County, Grant L. Bowen, J., granted sum-
mary judgment adverse to an irrigation company and it
appealed. The Supreme Court, Thompson, J., held that
irrigation company did not acquire prescriptive rights
in waters flowing in a creek, even though it used all
such water for statutory period, where such use was
not adverse, but was with permission of parties in
control of a diversion works.

Judgment affirmed,
West Headnotes
{1} Judgment 228 €186

228 Indgment
228V On Motion or Summary Proceeding
228k 182 Motion or Other Application
228k186 k. Hearing and determination.

Page 1

Most Ciied Cases

Ir deciding propriety of the grant of a summary
Jjudgment, all evidence favorsble to party against
whom such judgment was rendered would be accepted
as true.

[2] Water Law 405 €=1771

405 Water Law
405X Prescriptive Rights in Water or for Use or
Access to Waters
405k1770 Elements of Prescription
405k1771 k. In general. Most Cited Cases
(Formerty 405k138, 405k137)

To establish a prescriptive right to use of water,
the use and enjoyment must have been uninterrupted,
adverse and under a claim of right and with knowledge
of owmer, and such use must have been for a period of
at least five years, N.R.S, 11.15(),

[3] Judgment 228 €186

228 Judgment
228V On Motion or Summary Proceeding
228k182 Motion or Other Application
228k186 k. Bearing and determination.
Most Cited Cases

In deciding whether an issue of fact was raised,
for summary judgment purposes, a court had to rely
vpon fact deposition of a person and disregard con-
clusions of a verified pleading, where the deposition
did not support averment of the verified pleading.

[4] Water Law 405 €=1773

© 2014 Thomson Reuters. No Claim to Orig. US Gov. Works. -




364 P.2d 1069
77 Nev. 348, 364 P.2d 1069
(Cite as: 77 Nev, 348, 364 P.2d 1069)

405 Water Law
405X Prescriptive Rights in Water or for Use or
Access to Waters
405k1770 Elements of Prescription
405k1773 k. Adverse character of use and
possession in general. Most Cited Cases
(Formerly 405k138)

An irrigation company did not acquire prescrip-
tive rights in waters flowing in a creek, even though it
used all such water for statutory period, where such
use was not adverse, but was with permission of par-
ties in control of a diversion works. N.R.S. 11.150,

[5] Water Law 405 €=21607

403 Water Law
405V Appropriation of Waters
405VII{A) Nature and Elements in General
405k 1606 Abandonment, Relinquishment,
Cancellation, or Forfeiture of Rights
405k1607 k. In general. Most Cited
Cases
(Formerty 405k151)

‘Where a water right vested in owner's predecessor
before 1913, it was necessary fo establish owner's
intention to abandon and relinquish such right before

an abandonment could be found. N.R.S. 333.060, .

subd, 2.
[6] Water Law 405 €=1607

405 Water Law
405V1I Appropriation: of Waters
405VH{A) Nature and Elements in General
405k1606 Abandonment, Relinquishment,
Cancellation, ot Forfeiture of Rights
405k1607 k. In general. Most Cited
Cases '
{Formerly 405k151)

Page 2

An irrigation company could not be deemed to
have acquired right to use of certain water through
abandonment of another’s right to such water, where
irrigation company did not acquire a prescriptive right
te wse such water, as in the event of abandonment,
such water rights would have reverted to the state.

[7] Water Law 405 €1609

405 Water Law
403V Appropriation of Waters
405VII(A) Nature and Elements in General
405k1606 Abandonment, Relinquishment,
Cancellation, or Forfeiture of Rights
405k1609 k. Proceedings to determine
rights. Most Cited Cases
(Formerly 405k151)

An irrigation company could not except to state
engineer’s final order of determination in regard to
water rights on theory of a party's abandonment of its
rights, where irrigation company was unable to show a
vested right to the water, or a right under permit from
the state engineer. N.R.S. 533.145, §33.170.

[8] Water Law 405 €=22460

405 Water Law
405X11 Reclamation, Irrigation, and Other Agri-
cultural Use
405XHI(C) Irrigation and Other Agricultural

Purposes
403XTH{C)8 Sale of Water and Supply and
Use for Irrigation
405k2460 k. In general. Most Cited
Cases
(Formerly 405%254)

Sale of waters from North Creek 1o an imigation
company had no relation with waters of Frankiown
Creck and its tributaries, and therefore irrigation
company had no right to use of a certain amount of

© 2014 Thomson Reuters. No Claim to Orig. US Gov. Works.




364 P.2d 1069
77 Nev. 348, 364 P.2d 1069
{Cite as: 77 Nev, 348, 364 P.2d 1069)

water from Franktown Creek based on previous sales
to it from North Creek.

**1069 *348 John S. Halley, M. A. Diskin, Reno, for
appeliant.

Vargas, Dillon & Bartlett, Reno, Roger D. Foley,
Atty. Gen., L. William Paul, **1670 Deputy Atty.
Gen., Carson City, for respondents.

*349 THOMPSON, Justice.

Throughonut this opinion Marleite Lake Company
will be referred to as Marlette, and Franktown Creek
Irrigation Company, Inc., as Franktown.

Marlette owns a water distribution system by
which water is supplied for domestic, industrial,
commercial and mmunicipal purposes to the general
area comprising Virginia City, Gold Hill, Silver City
and Carson City. *350 Franktown is a private corpo-
ration through which its shareholders manage their
interests in the waters of Franktown Creck.

Pursuant to NRS 533.090 Franktown, by petition,
requested the state engineer to determine the relative
rights of various claimants to the waters of Franktown
Creek and its tributaries, including Hobart
Creek. Following investigation, the state engineer
entered his order granting the petition, and arranged to
proceed with his determination. The final order of
determination was subsequently made, and thereafier
filed with the county clerk of Washoe Coun-
ty. Verified exceptions thereto were filed by Frank-
town and Marlettee. NRS 533.170."A pretrial con-
ference was held, during which various exhibits were
received and certain admissions of fact made. Depo-
sitions were secured and affidavits obtained which,
with the pleadings, exhibits, and admissions, formed
the supporting decuments for the motion for summary
judgment thereafier filed by Marlette. Summary
judgment was granted. Franktown appeals from that
judgment. '

Page 3

For the purposes relevant fo this appeal, the
summary judgment entered by the lower court ap-
proved the final order of determination made by the
state engineer. The judgment thus entered permits
Marlette to apprapriate 10 ¢. T, 5, of water from Hobart
Creek, a tributary to Franktown Creek, above the Red
Honge diversion, for municipal, commercial, indus-
trial and domestic purposes, The period of use s
designated as January 1 to December 31, in the gen-
eral area comprising the oities of Carson City, Virginia
City, Silver City and Gold Hill. The judgment granted
Franktown permission to appropriate 37.09 ¢. f. 5. of
water from Franktown Creek helow the Red House
diversion, for irrigation, stockwatering and domaestic
purposes for-use on a full year basis. The allocation to
Franktown is not disputed. However, Frankiown as-
serts that the allocation to Marlette is excessive. To
understand Franktown's position in this regard, the
following factual information is necessary.

¥351 In 1878, by agreement and deed, the pre-
decessors of Franktown sold and conveyed to the
predecessors of Marletie all waters naturally flowing
in Hobart Creek at and above the Red House diver-
sion, From that date to the present, Marlette and its
predecessors have completely controlled the means
which allow waters arising above the Red House di-
version to flow down Franktown Creek to the lower
users. At Red House the water is diverted into two
flumes which, in turn, convey the water to storage
tanks, and from the tanks the water is fransmitted by
pressure pipe lines to the Virginia City area, All wa-
fers pot so diverted at Red House are allowed to spill
into Franktown Creek channel, where they flow down
the creek and are used by the shareholders of Frank-
town,

The watershed of Franktown Creek, Hobart Creek
and tributaries, is located on the eastern slopes of the
Carson Range. To the north, and on the western slopes
of the Carson Range in the Mt. Rose area, is a separate
and distinct watershed. Waters from the

© 2014 Thomson Reuters. No Claim to Crig. US Gov. Works.




364 P.2d 1069
77 Nev. 348, 364 P.2d 1069
(Cite as: 77 Nev, 348, 364 P.2d 1069)

last-mentioned watershed would flow naterally into
Lake Tahoe, onless artificially diverted. In 1946 a
predecessor of Marlette sold 5.5 c. f. 5. of water to a
Mr. Heidenreich who later sold fo Franktown. These
waters were collected from North Creek in the Mt.
Rose watershed and artifically diverfed to a point
above Red House where they commingled with the
waters of Hobart Creek, These commingled waters
were then diverted at Red House in the manner above
indicated. The **1071 waters collected from the M.
Rose watershed were of such amounts as permitted
diversion at Red House to the flumes without ad-
versely affecting the ability of the diversion works to
carry the waters from the Franktown and Hobart Creek
watershed, except to the extent of surplus waters due
to seasonal variations. The carrying capacity of the
flumes below Red House is admitted to be at least 10
c fs

From about 1936 until about 1943, Marlette's
predecessor diverted at Red House from 1.5¢. f. 5. to
4.5 ¢. . 5. of water into the flumes, During that period
of time, all waters not so diverted flowed into Frank-
town Creek *352 and were applied to beneficial use by
Franktown. Before, during said period, and since,
Marlette and its predecessors maintained full control
ofthe diversion works at Red House, Franktown never
demanded water from Marlette's predecessor during
this period, or at any time. It simply made use of the
water that was not diverted and used by Marlette's
predecessor.

In support of its claim that the district court erred
in granting summary judgment, Franktown contends:

First: That before 1949 (Stats.Nev.1949, Ch. 83,
P. 102; NRS 533.060(3)) it had acquired by prescrip-
tion, 1. ¢,, by adverse use for the period of five years,
the right to use all of the waters of Franktown Creek
and its tributaries except the 1.5¢c. £ s.to 4.5 ¢. £ s.
mentioned above; that, in any event, an issue of ma-
terial fact in this regard was reised, thus precluding
summary judgment,

Page 4

Second: That Marlette or its predecessor, aban-
doned its right to use the waters of Franktown Creek
and its tributaries, including Hobart Creek, except the
L5 ¢ fs.t04.5¢. £ s mentioned above, and that such
abandonment is available to Franktown as a defense to
this adjudication; that, in any event, an issue of mate-
rial fact in this regard was raised, thus precluding
sumrmary judgment. '

Third: That Marlette's right to use the waters of
Franktown Creek and its tributaries, inciuding Hobart
Creek, should be reduced by the 5.5 c. f. s. of water
sold in 1946 by Marlette's predecessor to Heidenreich
who, inn tum, sold to Franktown; that, in any event, an
issue of material fact in this regard wes raised, thus
precluding summary judgment.

{I] These contentions were presented to the
lower court, In deciding whether that court was cor-
rect in granting summary judgment, we accept as true
all evidence favorable to Franktown, Parman v.
Petricciani, 70 Nev. 427, 272 P.2d 492; Smith v.
Hamilton, 70 Nev, 212, 265 P.2d 214.

[2] *353 1. Prescription. To establish 2 right by
prescription in Franktown before 1949 to the use of
water claimed by the predecessor of Marlette, the use
and enjoyment must have been uninternypted, adverse,
under a claim of right, and with the knowledge of such
predecessor. Authors v. Bryant, 22 Nev. 242, 247, 38
P. 439, 440; Application of Filippini, 66 Nev. 17, 23,
202 P.2d 535, 538. Such use must have been for a
period of at least five years. Vansickle v. Haineg, 7
Nev. 249, 286; NRS 11.150. Though it is clear that
Franktown did use all waters flowing in Franktown
Creck and its tributaries (except the 1.5¢. f.s. to 4.5 ¢.
f. 5. of water diverted by Marlette's predecessor) for
the statutory period, the record on appeal does not tend
to establish that such use was adverse and under a
claim of right. The opposite appears to be true. Such
use was permissive, not adverse or hostile. It is ad-

© 2014 Thomson Reuters. No Claim to Orig. US Gov. Works.




364 P.2d 1069
77 Nev. 348, 364 P.2d 1069
(Cite as: 77 Nev. 348, 364 P,2d 1069)

mifted that Marlette and its predecessors have always
maintained absolute control of the diversion works at
Red House. Waters not diverted at thai point were
permitted to flow in Franktown Creek and were ap-
plied to beneficial yse by the lower ranchers. The
cases relied upon by Frankiown to support its position
on this issue are not in point, In Smith v. Logan, 18
Nev, 149, 1 P. 678, the trial court had found ali ele-
ments of adverse user to be present. Because of that
finding the Supreme Court affirmed the trial court in
decreeing a prescriptive right in the lower user. The
trial court made a similar finding in the cases of
**1072Gardner v. Wright, 49 Or. 609, 91 P, 286 and
Pflueger v, Hopple, 66 Idaho 152, 156 P.2d 316. In the
instant case, the elements of adverse use under a claim
of right are not present.

[3] The exceptions of Franktown to the State
Engineer's final order of determination constitute the
pleadings, as hetween those parties. NRS 533.170(2).
Those exceptions were verified by Lathrop, secretary
of Franktown, and contain the conclusion that its use
of the waters during the period mentioned was ‘open,
notorious, hostile and adverse,” Franktown insists that
such averment *354 contained in a pleading, verified
by an officer of the company, of itself creates an issue
of material fact and thus precludes a summary judg-
ment. We need not decide this question, because in
this case Lathrop subsequently gave a fact deposition,
covering the same subject miatter, which deposition is
a part of the record on appeal. That deposition does
not support the averment of the verified pleading
mentioned above. Under such circumstances, we hold
that, in deciding whether an issue of fact is raised, the
lower court must rely upon the fact deposition of such
person and disregard the conclusions of his verified
pleading. Bennett v. Flanigon, 7 Cir., 220 F.2d 799,
303.

[4] In our view, the lower court properly decided
for Marlette on this issue.

(31 2. Abandonment: It is admitted that, as of

Page 5

September 11, 1878 (the date of the agreement and
deed between the predecessors of Franktown and the
predecessors of Marlette), Marlette's predecessor had
a vested right to use all of the waters of Frankiown
Creek and its tributaries, including Hobart Creek,
flowing at and above the Red House diversion.
Franktown contends that such right was abandoned by
Marlette's predecessor by reason of the nonuse of all
but L5 ¢. £ 5. t0 4.5 ¢. £ 5. of water during the period
from 1936 to 1943, The water right having vested in
Marlette's predecessor before 1913, it is necessary to
establish the owner's intention to abandon and relin-
quish such right before an abandonment can be found.
Stats Nev.1913, Ch. 140, § 8; amended
Stats Nev.1917, Ch. 190, P. 353; 1943 NCL § 7897;
NRS 533.060(2). In re Waters of Manse Springs, 60
Nev, 280, 287, 108 P.2d 311, 315. Franktown snbmits
that nonuse for the period mentioned is some evidence
of an intent to abandon the water right, and of suffi-
cient substance to withstand a motion for summary
judgment. We agree that nonuse for such a period of
time may inferentially be some evidence of an intent
to abandon. In re Waters of *355 Manse Springs,
supra, 60 Nev, 200, 108 P.2d 311; Valcalda v. Silver
Peak Mines, 9 Cir., 86 F. 90, 95. However, in this case
we need not decide whether such evidence of itself
defeats summary judgment on this issue.

[6] We have heretofore determined that the lower
court was correct in deciding that Franktown had not
acquired a prescriptive right to use such waters. It is
admitted that Franktown has never sought to appro-
priate such waters by first making application to the
state engineer in the manner required by statute, If
abandonment had in fact occurred, as Franktown
contends, such waters reverted to the state without any
title to its use outstanding against the state. In re Wa-
ters of Manse Springs, supra, 60 Nev. at pages 286,
287, 108 P.2d 311, Had Franktown desired to apply
for such waters, it was required by statute to follow the
statutory procedure. No other avenue was open by
which Franktown could acquire a right 10 use the
waters here being considered. Accordingly, it is clear

© 2014 Thomson Reuters, No Claim to Orig. US Gov. Works,




364 P.2d 1069
77 Nev. 348,364 P.2d 1069
(Cite as: 77 Nev. 348, 364 P.2d 1069)

that its claim of abandonment set forth in the excep-
tions to the final order of determination can amount
only to a claim that Marlette was awarded water that
belonged to the state; it is not, and cannot be, a claim
that Franktown is entitled to such waters.

[7] NRS 533.145, designating who may object to
a preliminary erder of determination, appears to re-
quire that the objector claim an inferest in the siream
system by reason of a claimed vested right or under
permit from the state engineer. One or the other need
be shown to establish his interest**1073 in the adju-
dication. NRS 533.170 permits exceptions to the final
order of determination to be filed by a party in interest
who is aggrieved or dissatisfied. Therefore, it is clear
that the court below was correct in deciding that
Franktown's claim of abandonment was not a valid
exception to the state enginger’s final order of deter-
mingtion. Franktown is not a party in interest as to that
claim. Accordingly, no genuine issue as to a material
fact exists as to this issue, and summary judgment was
proper.

[8] *356 3. Subtraction Theory: In 1946 Marlet-
te's predecessor sold 5.5 ¢. f. 5. of water to a Mr,
Heidenreich who, in turn, sold to Franktown, Because
of that sale, Frankiown insists that Marlette should not
be permiited to divert more than 4.5 c. f. s. at Red
House. It reaches this conclusion by stating that the
capacity of Marlette's flumnes at the Red House diver-
sion has always been, and is, 10 ¢. £. 5.; subtraction of
the 1946 sele from the flume capacily leaves for
Marlette’s use the aforementioned 4.5 c. £, 5. of water.

In our view, this contention is without merit. It is
not disputed that the source of the water sold to Hei-
denreich is North Creek, sometimes called Third
Creek, and tributaries thereto. That creek is located on
the western slopes of the Carson Range, and is a part
of the Mt. Rose watershed, having fts natural drainage
into Lake Tahoe. North Creek is not included in the
present adjudication. The pre-trial order of the lower
court states: “The state engineer defined the statutory

Page 6

adjudication as encompassing the watershed of
Franktown Creek, including its tributary Hobart Creek
and the minor tributaries of Franktown Creek on the
eastern slope of the Sierra Nevada [Carson Range] in
the same watershed. No other waters have at any time
been comprehended in the adjudication proceeding;
more particularly, Lake Tahoe, Washoe Lake Ophir
Creek, Marlette Lake, North Flume and waters int the
Mt. Rose area, all distinct and separate watersheds,
and not encompassed thereby.” The sale in 1946 by
Marlette's predecessor to Heidenreich of 5.5 ¢. £ 5. of
water had nothing to do with the waters of Franktown
Creck and its tributaries, including Hobart Creek,
embraced in the present adjudication.

Judé-ment affirmed.
BADT, C. J., and McNAMEE, 1., concur.

Nev. 1961

In re Determination of Relative Rights in and to Wa-
ters of Franktown Creek, Washoe County

77 Nev. 348, 364 P.2d 1065

END OF DOCUMENT

© 2014 Thomson Reuters. No Claim to Orig. US Gov, Works.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 6/16/15 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Personal Defense, Montgomery Turner, CCW Instructor Business License Request

2. Recommended motion: Approve application of Business License for CCW Instruction in
Storey County

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Background complete. There are no disqualifiers found. Sheriff Antinoro
reviewed his curriculum and found it to be sufficient and appropriate.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald Antinoro

W/Afi

~

% Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ ] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[ Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. | /




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Resolution 15-423 Augmentation of the Tech Fund
2. Recommended motion Approve
3. Prepared by: Jessie Fain for Hugh Gallagher
Department: Commissioners/Comptroller Telephone:

4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for augmenting a budget.
3. Supporting materials: Resolution 15-423

6. Fiseal impact:
Funds Available: ~ YES  Fund: 165 4 Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

QJ’L/_COHHW Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
f] Denied

-Approved with Modifications
Continued

—yr—
[ N —

Agenda Item No. |8




RESOLUTION # 15-423

RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT THE 2014/2015 BUDGET OF STOREY COUNTY
TECHNOLOGY FUND.

WHEREAS, total resources of the TECHNOLOGY FUND, Storey County were
budgeted to be $ 115,091.00 on July 1, 2014; and

WHEREAS, the total available resources are now determined to be $130,091.00.
WHEREAS, said additional unanticipated resources are as follows:
ASSESSOR TECH FEES $ 15,000.00

Total $15,000.00

WHEREAS, there is a need to apply these excess proceeds in the
TECHNOLOGY FUND.

Now, therefore, it is hereby RESOLVED, that Storey County shall augment its
2014/2015 budget by appropriating $15,000.00 for use in the TECH FUND,
thereby increasing its appropriations for the TECH FUND from $80,000.00 to
$95,000.00. A detailed schedule is attached to this Resolution and by reference
is made a part thereof.

IT1S FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Clerk Treasurer shall forward the
necessary documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED the __16th _ of June, 2015.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:

Marshali McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk




RESOLUTION #15-423

Fund 165 Tech Fund I

15,000 from Assessor Tech Fees (34106) (higher than anticipated current revenues)
3,000 Rents & Leases 53027-270 Plotter Lease

12,000 Assessor Tech Acquisiton 54106 Spring Flight

15,000 15,000




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Resolution 15-424  Augmentation of the Justice Court Fund
2. Recommended motion Approve
3. Prepared by: Jessie Fain for Hugh Gallagher
Department: Commissioners/Comptroller Telephene:

4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for augmenting a budget.
5. Supporting materials: Resolution 15-424

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: YES  Fund: 187 % _Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
__ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

@Munty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action: _ ‘
[1] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[1 Denied I1 Continued

Agenda Item No. lq




RESOLUTION # 15-424

RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT THE 2014/2015 BUDGET OF STOREY COUNTY
JUSTICE COURT FUND.

WHEREAS, total resources of the JUSTICE COURT FUND, Storey County
were budgeted to be $ 26,547.00 on July 1, 2014; and

WHEREAS, the total available resources are now determined to be $31,547.00.
WHEREAS, said additional unanticipated resources are as follows:
JUSTICE COURT FINES $ 5,000.00

Total $5,000.00

WHEREAS, there is a need to apply these excess proceeds in the
TECHNOLOGY FUND.

Now, therefore, it is hereby RESOLVED, that Storey County shall augment its
2014/2015 budget by appropriating $5,000.00 for use in the JUSTICE COURT
FUND FUND, thereby increasing its appropriations for the JUSTICE COURT
FUND from $1,000.00 to $6,000.00. A detailed schedule is attached to this
Resolution and by reference is made a part thereof.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Clerk Treasurer shall forward the
necessary documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED the __16th _ of June, 2015.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:
Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:
Storey County Clerk




RESOLUTION #15-424

{Fund 187 Justice Court Fund |

5,000 from Justice Court Fines {35104) (higher than anticipated current revenues}

5,000 Professional Services 53070
CPA Audit, Test kits for offenders

5,000 5,000




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date; June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Reguylar agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Resolution 15-425 Augmentation of the Park Fund
2. Recommended motion Approve
3. Prepared by: Jessie Fain for Hugh Gallagher
Department: Commissioners/Comptroiler Telephone:

4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for augmenting a budget.
5. Supporting materials: Resolution 15-425

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: YES  Fund: 190 - ¢4, Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s QOffice
County Manager Other agency review: .

9. Board action;
[] Approved
[] Denied

‘Approved with Modifications
Continued

i
Tt g

Agenda Ttem No. ZO




RESOLUTION # 15-425

RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT THE 2014/2015 BUDGET OF STOREY COUNTY
PARK FUND.

WHEREAS, total resources of the PARK FUND, Storey County were budgeted
to be $ 7,272.00 on July 1, 2014; and

WHEREAS, the total available resources are now determined to be $18,772.00.
WHEREAS, said additional unanticipated resources are as follows:
INTEREST-VC HIGHLANDS $11,500.00

Total $11,500.00
WHEREAS, there is a need to apply these excess proceeds in the PARK FUND.
Now, therefore, it is hereby RESOLVED, that Storey County shall augment its
2014/2015 budget by appropriating $11,500.00 for use in the PARK FUND
FUND, thereby increasing its appropriations for the PARK FUND from $2,000.00
to $13,500.00. A detailed schedule is aitached to this Resolution and by

reference is made a part thereof.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Clerk Treasurer shall forward the
necessary documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED the __16th _ of June, 2015.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:
Storey County Clerk




RESOLUTION #15-425

Fund 190 Park Fund |

11,500 from Interest-VCH (36100-502) {higher than anticipated current revenues)
11,000 Park - VC Highlands 54613 Paving Basketball Court

500 Refunds 56530 Refund building permit
11,500 11,500




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required | ]

1. Title: Resolution 15-426 Augmentation of the Virginia City Tourism Commission Fund

2. Recommended motion Approve

3. Prepared by: Jessie Fain for Hugh Gallagher
Department: Commissioners/Comptroller Telephone:

4. Staff summary: Proceduyral matter per NRS 354.598005 for augmenting a budget.
5. Supporting materials: Resolution 15-426

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: YES Fund: 230 72@ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by: - :
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
ounty Manager QOther agency review:

9. Board action:
[ - Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[ Denied [

Continued

R Sy W

Agenda Item No. 2 {




RESOLUTION # 15-426

RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT THE 2014/2015 BUDGET OF STOREY COUNTY
VIRGINIA CITY TOURISM COMMISSION FUND.

WHEREAS, total resources of the VIRGINIA CITY TOURISM COMMISSION
FUND, Storey County were budgeted to be $ 1,388,592 on July 1, 2014; and

WHEREAS, the total available resources are now determined to be
$1,534,592.00.

WHEREAS, said additional unanticipated resources are as follows:

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE $ 96,321.00
SPECIAL EVENT FUNDING $ 49,679.00

Total $146,000.00

WHEREAS, there is a need to appiy these excess proceeds in the VIRGINIA
CITY TOURISM COMMISSION FUND.

Now, therefore, it is hereby RESOLVED, that Storey County shall augment its
2014/2015 budget by appropriating $146,000.00 for use in the VIRGINIA CITY
TOURISM COMMISSION FUND, thereby increasing its appropriations for the
VIRGINIA CITY TOURISM COMMISSION from $1,023,094.00 to $1,169,094.00.
A detailed schedule is attached to this Resolution and by reference is made a
part thereof.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Clerk Treasurer shall forward the
necessary documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED the __16th _ of June, 2015.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:
Marshalil McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk




RESOLUTION #15-426

{Fund 230 VCTC |

96,321 from (higher than anticipated Beginning Fund Balance)

49,679 from Tourism Tax (33512) (higher than anticipated current revenues)

3,000 Salaries and Wages 51010 Miscalculated
30,000 Special Event Funding 53060 Special Event Funding
10,000 Visitor Center Expenses 53061 Gift Shop Merchandise
9,000 Professional Services 53070 Promotion Retainers
94,000 Capital Outlay 54010

Purchase 910 S C St, Fairgrounds seating/panels

146,000 146,000




Storey County Board of County Commlssmners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Resolution 15-427 Augmentation of the Capital Projects Fund
2. Recommended motion Approve
3. Prepared by: Jessie Fain for Hugh Gallagher
Department: Commissioners/Comptrolier Telephone:

4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for augmenting a budget.
5. Supporting materials: Resolution 15-427

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: YES Fund: 070 % Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head - Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

wmty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ R )

Agenda Item No. ] 7




RESOLUTION # 15-427

RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT THE 2014/2015 BUDGET OF STOREY COUNTY
GENERAL FUND.

WHEREAS, total resources of the GENERAL FUND, Storey County were
budgeted to be $ 18,025,251.00 on July 1, 2014; and

WHEREAS, the total available resources are now determined to be
$20,235,914.00.

WHEREAS, said additional unanticipated resources are as follows:
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE $ 2,210,663.00
Total $2,210,663.00

WHEREAS, there is a need to apply these excess proceeds in the GENERAL
FUND.

Now, therefore, it is hereby RESOLVED, that Storey County shall augment its
2014/2015 budget by appropriating $2,200,000.00 for use in the GENERAL
FUND, thereby increasing its appropriations for the GENERAL FUND from
$26,507,272.00 to $28,707,272.00. (This appropriation will also take the form of
a transfer to the Capital Projects Fund.) A detailed schedule is attached to this
Resolution and by reference is made a part thereof.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Clerk Treasurer shail forward the
necessary documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED the __16th _ of June, 2015.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:
Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:
Storey County Clerk




RESOLUTION #15-427

[Fund 001 General Fund ]

2,200,000 from Higher than anticipated Beginning Fund Balance

2,000,000 Capital Project -Capital Qutlay 070-54010
Ongoing and future projects throughout all communites

82,000 Professional Services 105-53070
Federal Lobbyist, TRI Center remodel, Title 17 publication

118,000 Interest 105-56100
Settlement with Park Interest

2,200,000 2,200,000




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Transfer of Appropriations — Virginia Divide Sewer
a. ****Adjourn to Convene as Storey County Water and Sewer Board ****

2. Recommended motion Approve

3. Prepared by: Jessie Fain for Hugh Gallagher
Department: Commissioners / Comptroller
Telephone:
4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.5980035 for transferring appropriations

5. Supporting materials: Schedule of affected funds, functions, amounts and reasons.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: QQ /. Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action;
[] Approved
[] Denied

] Approved with Modifications
Continued

-
—_

Agenda Item No, 2%




Fund 130 Virginia Divide Sewer- - |
44,000 from Principle {57101) to be paid out of USDA Bond Fund

5,000 Salaries & Wages 51010 Acting and Standby Pay

1,000 Benefits 52010 Acting and Standby Pay

7,000 Operating Supplies 53024 Camera System, microscope, pipe, snake cable

6,000 Capital Qutlay 54010 Portion of new service truck, Backhoe loader
25,000 Sewer Plant Expansion 56100-150 Interest

44,000 44,000




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

I, Title: Transfer of Appropriations — Fire Protection District 474
a. ****Adjourn to Convene as the 474 Fire Protection District Board ****

2. Recommended motion Approve
3. Prepared by: Jessie Fain for Hugh Gallagher
Department: Commissioners / Comptroller
Telephone:
4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for transferring appropriations

5. Supporting materials: Schedule of affected funds, functions, amounts and reasons.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available; Fund: _ :ﬂ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review: _

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[ Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

b )

Agenda Item No. 2 4




[Fund 250 Fire Protection District 474
80,000 from Contingency {57900} to be split between Service & Supplies and Capital Outlay:

15000 Capital Qutlay 54010 Fire Prevention Officer Vehicle

5000 Computer Equipment 54160 TRI Office equipment for FPO
40000 Ambulance Supplies 54308 Stryker gurneys to prevent injury to medics
15000 Personal Protection Equip 53036 Replace expired gear

5000 Building Maintenance 53057 Repairs to Stations 71,72 and 74

80,000 30,000




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 16, 2015 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [

1. Title: Transfer of Appropriations
2. Recommended motion Approve
3. Prepared by: Jessie Fain for Hugh Gallagher

Department: Commissioners / Comptroller
Telephone:

4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for transferring appropriations
5. Supporting materials: Schedule of affected funds, functions, amounts and reasons.

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: A, Comptroller

7. Legal review required: _
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

@&‘Cﬁty-l\danager ‘ Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1 Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

ey
el b d

Agenda Item No. <) £




Fund 070 Capltal PrOJects L |
635,000 from Capital Outlay (54010) to be split between Principle and interest

625,000 Principle 57101 Fire Station 5, Sheriff & DA C St, E St,
Bank Building, B Street Parking Lot
10,000 Interest 56100 Fire Station 5, Sheriff & DA C Street

635,000 635,000

|Fund 001 General =~ . ]
312,324 from Contmgency (57900) to be split between Salaries, Benefits, Service & Supplies and Capital Qutlay:
73,500 Capital Outlay-Commissioners 101-54010 2 New BOC/ CM Vehicles
6,000 Capital Qutlay - Clerk 102-54010 Furniture for JOP clerk arrangement
2000 Salaries-Recorder 103-51010 Floater cost
1,000 Computer Equip - Recorder 103-54160 Staff Station
5,000 Saiaries - Assessor 104-51010 OT, floater and move from PT to FT
31,000 Capital Qutlay - Assessor 104-54010 New Vehicle
15,000 County Building -TRi Complex 106-54417-500 TRI Complex remadel, Service Vehicle
40,000 Overtime - Sheriff 107-51011 Coverage
10,000 Salaries -Community Dev 109-51010 Added Inspector, PT Admin to FT
14,000 Overtime - Community Dev 109-51011 Added Inspector
3,000 PERS - Community Develop. 109-52010 Inspector
8,000 Dues & Subscript-Comm Dev  109-53014-200 App for inspections
19,000 Capital Outlay- Comm Dev 109-54010 New Vehicle
18,000 Professional Services 111-53070 Investigations
19,500 District Court 112-54244 Juvenife Delinquents up
2,324 Justice Court 113-53070 Conflict Attorneys and Interpreters
14,000 Overtime - Communications 117-51011 Training New Staff
6,000 911 Service 117-54311 System charges
10,000 Salaries & Wages 121-51010 Added Position
15,000 Professional Services 121-53070 Taxation and IRS consulting

312,324 312,324




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: (-] (,~| 5 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval
2. Recommended motion; Approval
3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: _
X Departm Department Name: Community Development

J&ourﬁy Mdnager Other agency review:

0, Board action:
[] Approved
[  Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

k J T

Agenda Item No. le




Storey County Community Development

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office June 8, 2015

Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the June 16, 2015, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD

SECOND READINGS
A. SOLAR CITY CORPORATION - Contractor / 3055 Clearview Way ~ San Mateo, CA (solar install.)
B. TESLA MOTORS, INC. - General / Gigafactory Electric Avenue (manufacturing) TRI
C. SEQUEL ELECTRICAL SUPPLY, LLC - 1425 4" Street ~ Meridian, MS (electrical contractor)
D. EDWARDS ELECTRIC SERVICE, LLC - 6222 St, Louis Street ~ Meridian, MS (electrical contractor)
E. SMITH STORAGE SYSTEMS — 18875 Mesquite Avenue ~ Reno (racking installer)
F. STEPHON’S MOBILE BISTRO - General / 1810 Andesite Avenue ~ Reno (food truck)
G. IONIX, LLC ~ General / 3033 Waltham Way, Unit 5 (metal fabrication) location change TRI
H. RICH DOSS, INC. - General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

Inspection Required
ec: Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Kris Wilkison

Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor’s Office Jessie Fain




